COTTONWOOD UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
20512 West First Street
Cottonwood, CA 96022

AGENDA FOR Tuesday., November 15, 2022 6:30 P.M.

Regular Board Meeting, West Cottonwood Library

The Cottonwood Union School District Board desires that its meetings be conducted in an open fashion and
encourages public participation. Persons attending a meeting who wish to speak concerning an agenda item should notify
the Board Chairperson of their desire to speak prior to the start of the meefing and should come forward during the time
set aside for public comment and communication. It may be necessary, at times, for the Chairperson to limit discussions due
to time considerations.

Arrangements to place an item on the agenda and make a presentation concemning said item must be established with the
Superiniendent, or any Board Member, at least ten calendar days in advance of the meeting, The request to

address the Board shall be submitted in writing and the proposed stated in, or with, the request.

1.0

20

3.0

4.0

50

6.0

7.0

Call Regular Meeting to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Agenda

Recognition (Students, Staff, Curriculum) Curriculum Review

North Cettonwood Star Students

Public Forum/Hearing of Person Wishing to Address the Board
In order to conduct district business in an orderly and efficient manner, the Board requires that public presentations to the Board
comply with the following procedures: At a time so designated on the agenda at a regular meeting, members of the public may bring
before the Board matters that are not listed on the agenda. The Board shall take no action or discussion on any item not appearing on
the posted agenda, except as authorized by law. (Education Code 35145.5, Government Code 54954.2) Without taking action, Board
members or district staff members may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by the public about items not appearing on
the agenda. Additionally, on their own initiative or in response to questions posed by the public, a Board or staff member may ask a
question for clarification, make a brief announcement, or make a brief report on hisher own activities. {Government Code
54954.2) Furthermore, the Board or a Board member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information, ask
staff to report back to  the Board at a subsequent meeting concerning any matter, or take action directing staif to place a matter of
business on 2 future agenda. Comments shall be limited to 3 minutes per person and 20 minutes for all comments, uniess different
time limits are set by the Chairman subject to the approval of the Board.

Consent Agenda

6.1 Review of Consent Agenda

6.1.1  Approval of Board Meetings for: Regular Board Meeting held on
Tuesday, October 18,2022 (pg. 3-6)

6.1.2  Approval to Hire: Amanda Bautista - Preschoo! Instructional Assistant,
Charly McKenzie — Teacher, Haleigh Moreno — Teacher, Alonnah Torculas — Teacher

6.1.3  Accept resignation letter from: Olivia Brown — Instructional Assistant (pg. 7)

6.2 Approval of Consent Agenda
Discussion/Action items

7.1 Consider approval of the Commercial Warrants (pg. 8§ -32)

7.2 Consider approval COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) (pg. 33-51)




Agenda — November 15, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Page. 2

7.3 Consider approval: Board Policies/Administrative Regulations:

AR 4161.5 Military Leave {pg. 52-59)

AR 4261.5 Military Leave (pg. 60-67)

AR 4361.5 Military Leave {pg. 68-75)

BP 4216 Probationary/Permanent Status (pg. 76-78)

BP 4218 Dismissal/Suspension/ Disciplinary Action (pg. 79-87)
AR 4218 Dismissal/Suspension/ Disciplinary Action (pg. 88-96)
BP 4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/ Disciplinary Action (Merit System) {pg. 97-101)
BP 6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services {pg. 102-112)

BP 6178 Career Technical Education {pg. 113-122)

AR 6178 Career Technical Education {pg. 123-133)

BP 7110 Facilities Master Plan (pg. 134-140)

BP 7150 Site Selection and Development (pg. 141-144)

AR 7150 Site Selection and Development (pg. 145-148)

BB 9100 Organization {pg. 149-151)

8.0 Informational Items:

8.1 CTA Report
8.2 Superintendent’s Report
8.3 Principal’s Report

9.0 Information/Communication Items,

9.1 Enrollment Report November 10, 2022 (pg. 152)
100  Governing Board Discussion and Suggested Agenda Items
11.0  Futare Meetings:

11.1  Regular Board Meeting, Tuesday, December 13, 2022 6:30 p.m. in the West
Cottonwood School Library, 20512 w. First Street, Cottonwood, CA 96022.

12.00  Closed Session: Adjournment to Closed Session during this meeting to consider and/or take
action upon the following items:

12.1 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957
Public Employee / Discipline / Dismissal / Release

Public Notice of Action Taken in Closed Session

13.0 Adjournment

AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT NOTICE

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring special assistance to access the Board of Trustees meeting
room, to  access writien documenis being discussed at the Board meeting, or to otherwise participate at Board meetings, please
contact the District Office at (530) 347-3165. Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to make
reasonable arrangements to ensure  accessibility to the Board meeting and to provide any required accommodation, auxiliary aids
Or' Services,

DOCUMENT AV AILABILITY

Documents provided to a majority of the Govemning Board regarding an open session item on this agenda, including documents
distributed to the board less than 72 hours in advance of a board meeting are available for public inspection at the District office
located at 20512 West First Street, Coomood CA 96022 during normal business hours.

NOTE: Copies of the agenda, approved board minutes and board packets may be reviewed/downloaded on the Cottonwood
Union School District’s website at www.cwusd.com Each month’s board packet will be available on the website after 3:00
p.m. on the Friday prior to the Regular Board Meeting,

To review and/or print a board packet:

Go to www.cwusd.com

Click on Board of Trustees in the right hand column

Click on Board Meeting Documents in the left hand column, and

Click on Meeting Agendas, Minutes, or Board Meeting Packets to review or download as you would like.




Cottonwood Union School District
20512 West First Street
Cottonwood,

Tuesday, October 18. 2022
Regular Board Meeting, West Cottonwood School Library

- Members Present: Mr. Iles, Mr. O’Brien, Mrs. Suizer, Mrs. Cordova, Mrs. McDougail
Others Present: Superintendent: Doug Geren

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

Principal: Terri Wright, Cecile Lamar
Vice Principal: Kara McNeely, Daneka Barber
Laura Merrick, CBO

Approximately 60 Staff and Community member present
Call Regular Meeting to Order at 6:30 pm by Mr. Iles
Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Iles

Approval of Agenda

ACTION: Mrs. Cordova made a motion, seconded by Mrs. Sulzer to approve the agenda as
presented

YOTE: Unanimous in Favor

Recognitions (Student, Staff, Curriculum) Curriculum Review-
* Mr.& Mrs Stevens — West Cottonwood Leadership Team
* 15 North Cottonwood Students were recognized as Star Students

Public Forum/Hearing of Persons Wishing to Address the Board
None at this time

Consent Agenda

6.1 Review of Consent Agenda

6.1.1  Approval of Board Meetings for: Regular Board Meeting held on
Tuesday, September 20, 2022

6.1.2 Approval to Hire: Lesli Bishop-Dinsmore — Preschool, Jessica Callahan —
Instructional Assistant, Rachelle Hasty- Instructional Assistant, Shandi Leach —
Instructional Assistant, Michelle Wooner- Instructional Assistant
Deanna Gida — Instructional Assistant

6.1.3  Accept Retirement letters from: Katie Baugh — Payroll- HR,
Lorraine De Nardi-Byrd, Transportation Lead, Larry Church — Custodian,
Sharon Howard, School Secretary, Julie Kostelec — Teacher,
Laura Merrick — CBO, Tom Phillips — Skilled Maintenance, Debra Shuman-
Instructional Assistant, Glenda Stull- Cafeteria, Cecelia Swetland — Librarian



o hceNoA

CWUSD Regular Board Meeting Minutes October 18, 2022
Page |2

6.1.4  Accept Leave of Absence request from: Dankea Barber — Intervention
Teacher, Josh Swetland — 5™ grade Teacher, '
Heather Vanderley — 3 grade Teacher

6.2.1 Approval of Consent Agenda

ACTION: Mrs, Cordova made a motion, seconded by Mr. O’Brien to approve the
consent agenda
YOTE: Unanimous in Favor

7.0 Discussion/Action Items

7.1 Consider Approval: Commercial Warrants

ACTION: Mrs. Sulzer made a motion seconded by Mrs. McDougali to approve the
commercial warrants
YOTE: Unanimous in Favor

7.2 Consider approval of Server Surplus

ACTION: Mrs. McDougall made a motion, seconded by Mr. O’Brien, to approve
the surplus of the Server
VOTE: Unanimous in Favor

7.3  Discuss and consider approval of Advertising

ACTION: Mr. O’brien made a motion, seconded by Mrs. McDougall to approve the
advertising options
YOTE: Unanimous in Favor

7.4 Consider approval of (2) New Instructional Aide 3.75 hrs./day West

ACTION: Mr. O’Brien made a motion, seconded by Mrs. Sulzer to approve adding 2
new Instructional Aide 3.75 hrs./day at West Cottonwood
YOTE: Unanimous in Favor

7.5 Consider approval of Change of (2) part time 5 hr. Preschool Teacher Position td full
time 8 hrs/day

ACTION: Mrs. Sulzer made a motion, seconded by Mrs. McDougall to approve the
change of (2) part time 5 hr. Preschool Teacher positions to full time 8 hrs/day
VOTE: Unanimous in Favor

7.6 Consider approval of TOSA Vice Principal position at North
ACTION: Mrs. Cordova made a motion, seconded by Mr. O’Brien to approve TOSA

Vice Principal position at North.
YOTE: Unanimous in Favor




- acewoa

CWUSD Regular Board Meeting Minutes October 18, 2022
Page |3

7.7 Consider approval of (3) New Instruction Aide 3.75 hrs./day North

ACTION: Mrs. Sulzer made a motion, seconded by Mrs. Cordova to approve (3) new
Instructional Aide 3.75 hrs./day positions at North Cottonwood. '
VOTE: Unanimous in Favor

7.8 Consider approval of New Instructional Aide 5.75 hrs./day North

ACTION: Mrs. Cordova made a motion, seconded by Mrs. McDougall to approve new
Instructional Aide 5.75 hrs./day at North Cottonwood
VOTE: Unanimous in Favor

7.9 Consider approval of Board Policies/Administrative Regulations:

ACTION: Mr. O’Brien made a motion, seconded by Mrs. McDougall to approve Board
Policies and Administrative Regulations, BP 5141.21, BP/AR 4118, BP 4119.1, BP
4219.1, BP 439.1, BP 4140, BP 4240, BP 4340, AR 4161.2, AR 4261.2, AR 4361.2, it
was requested to NOT approve BP/AR 3515.3 at this time

VOTE: Unanimous in Favor

7 Informational Items-

8.1 CTA Report —
New CTA Officers: Teresa Madison - CTA President,
Rachel Bamnett - Vice president
with the recent promotion of Daneka Barber to TOSA Vice Principal
32 Superintendent’s Report —
Mr. Geren spoke briefly about the bathroom issues at West.
3.3 Principal’s Report — '
Mrs. LaMar - provided the board with a handout outlining student achievement,

elective/enrichment/extra—cunricular/communi’cy involvement, facilities and Maintenance
and current enroliment updates.

Mrs. Wright provided the board with a handout outlining updates for professional
development, electives/enrichment/community involvement, facility and maintenance,
current enrollment and announced, 6® Grade Girls® Basketball Coach is Mrs, Steele
8" Grade Girls’ Basketball Coaches are Mrs. Ballard and Mrs. Springer.

9.0 Information/Communication Items
9.1 Enrollment Report October 18, 2022

9.2 Shasta County Pooled Investment Report for September 2022
923 Williams Quarterly Report October 2022




CWUSD Regular Board Meeting Minutes October 18, 2022
Page |4

10.0  Governing Board Discussion and Suggested Agenda Items

10.1  Further discussion on Window Film Covering

11.0  Future Meetings:

11.1  Regular Board Meeting, Tuesday, November 15, 2022 6:30 p.m. in the West
Cottonwood School Library, 20512 w. First Street, Cottonwood, CA 96022.

112 Further discussion on Window Film Covering

12.0  Closed Session: Adjournment to Closed Session at 7:33 pm to consider and/or
take action upon the following items:
12.1  Pursuvant to Government Code section 54957

Public Employee / Discipline / Dismissal / Release

13.0  Adjournment- the meeting adjourned at 08:45 pm

Matt [les, President Heather Sulzer, Clerk

Kim Cordova, Member Deidre McDougall, Member

James O’Brien, Member




MO0 O AR AN S m

N

A Mﬁj R TALNA BN | 3. ‘W,wﬁ Qy‘m

o

v, ruw WO \M\ ynﬁ/%,ﬂa ﬁCx/ WA SOy () Qw

NEEREAS WA

R O
hop kST Ay
\m WA Qf.%,ﬁis.w ﬂi | C,m ' m@(@

DU D T

eros( @[\




WVBE'LL 2202 0} AON ‘(TF9YIINY) 139VOIN YANYINY 10} pajelauas 2SI jooyag uolUun poosuojlod - gyo

G¢ 0 G2 abed (A = 049z 'N = L901ApYNoaYD AQ yesig abey
BENIRNGEE 3dvosi '0v8£20 = (S)P| Yojeg [eavsddy ‘A = ¢PIOH UO ‘N = 9dA ] JuswAed N = poyjely juswAed ‘gt = B10) Aq passiiid ‘UondO Jepi0 ¥oeuD dv AQ pepiog  uoosiag
LL'600'8Y6$
18'261°1.268 JunowWY S0IAPYABYD [BIOL o uno) piedA g WNOD HOV  gg WNOD HBUD - 00z Junog Juswhed - sjejo) Lodoy

juswied |eul4 sajoup 4
Bweu Juswied uey) JUSISHIP SWBU 30aYd $8jausp 4,
L SIOPUSA OSly aaAo|dwg JO Jagquiny g
sjuswAed Ajljiger Jo lequiny @
suawAhed pledaid Jo sequinp j
10puga Jualsytp e o} sjuawied Jo Jequing
wnenr LSTHIINI O SWAL| svsn
- 000°000°L$
666'666 - 000°00S$
668'6675 - 000°002%

L 666'661% - 000°001$
£ 666'66% - 000°GLS
L 666'7L$ - 000'0L$
£ 666'65 - 000'G$
6l 666'v$ - 000'L$
6 666% - 005%
oL 66¥E - 00L%
8 66% - 0%
SLNNOO NOILNAIY1SId LNNOWY IDIAAY/MOTHD
/926112 wnowy asuadxg (2104,
00'$ Xe] sajeg pledun) |eloL
L8°26L°LEES JUnowy adIADY I8y [B10],
0 QIIARY PIBDA O JSUNN
0 0ADY MOV J0 Jsquuiny
ILVQ IYAOM ALY 18°261°1Z8$ (1 S498Y3 Jo Jequinn
o 00z sjuawAed Jo laquny
_ 12261128 lejol 7
L'908'0L1 69°921'v81 8L'0LE'EL el

SFE08'E6Z'E #1'929'109'e 69'228'20¢ L0
“eduslofa. __ L

ALNNOD UN00Y jureq - ANNd A SASNIdXT

AUnod - ALNNOY N0y jueg ¢20¢/60/1 | - T20Z/80/1 1 PIINpayog

191siBay JuswAed egoledbay




WYBE'LL 2Z0Z 01 20N ‘(T38YOINY) 139VON YONYINY 10} pejeiaussn J0siq |oeydg uojun pooMuUoNes - gy

Gz jo | abed (A = ¢0i0Z 'N = ¢e0olApypioays Aq yeaig ebeg
34vJs3 1 '0¥5220 = (s)PI yojed [eaciddy ‘A = iPIoH UQ ‘N = 8dA L Juswded ‘N = POUISI luelAey ‘gp = B10) Ag paislily ‘uondQ J8pl0 ¥oBYD dv Ag papog  uoiosies
WAD
Z90ve'L ZO0rE'L upny ze/8ofLL +£899588E88 W04 INIHOWIW 3D 80200-€28%Y ZZ/H0/0L £Z/220z 4
- # Jasibay 01200-£28Fd #Cd 8120 39940 plLoey
-000-00.€ -0000 -0LS¥ -0000-0LES-L00-EL (688100) £207
G G 5GP Hpny TZIBO/LL SE86EOPBEESS  SIITAdNS NAHDLIM 01Z00€28¥M zZ/0i0L €2/2202
# 1313160y S0Z00-£281d #Od s1eQ ey piyoleg
-001 -000L -0L L) -0LEY -0ZFZ -00L L -060-10 {681100) €202
_ AQvYD gye
00’522 00'sz2 upny TTIROILL £9EC/898Y/01 - SINCHJAvYaH S0Z00-£28bY  ZZ/HF0/0L €2/2202
# Jaysibay v2100-£287d #0Od |1eq #8yn PIL21ey
¥1°29 "Z271-000L-0LLL-0LEP-0S60-0000-050-10 (Z82+00) €707
LY'6EL -001 -0¥1€-0000-0LS¥ -0000-0¥35-100-L0 (8+ZL00) €202
30I440 HLTvaH
HOJ HIANYIA 30|
85902 §5'002 npny TZIB0ML $955885F866F  ONY STION3d SIgd vL1L00-S28PY  Z2/H0/0L €2/zz0z o
# 19)siboy L 1200-£28d #Od 81 YI8YD plyoieg
~001-0L18-0000-0L5F-0L1L8-0000-020-L0 (S¥ZLO0Q) €70Z
¥5'652 ¥ 652 upny Ze/a0/LL £G665/ 66981 S31L ONINID LLZ00€28vY  ZZ/0/0L £2/2Z02
_ 8560-£5E0E VO 'VINYILY
8560£5 X049 °'0'd
(2/095000) GONAS /INOZYWY 10pUSA oy
994D 00°'669 Junowry a310Au| |2)0 §
# 15180y £EZ00-E281d #Od 81 yoauD plyaeg
-000-002L-0000-0L25 -0024-0000-100-10 {(S.ZL00) €202
220T Iwwng
00'669 00'689 Ipny T2180MLL 0LOSZANI diysiepesa ygov EE200-£28vY  ZE/FE/0L €elzzoz 4
0LOFE WD 'TNVONITYNG
AVMHDIH SHOHSAYS 5261
(5/920000) WAY TYNOLLYDNAT HO4 NOILYANNOA
ysSov 10pUBA dy
HI8YD  00'brlL unowy 00_o>:_ el
-000-00Z4-0000-108S-202Z -0000-100-L0 (095L00) £202
72
001 00l upny ZZI80/LL 9051 120 SINHd®IONIA Ze/VE/0L EEIZT0E

66096 ¥2 ‘ONIGQAY
£80066 XOg Od -
(1/666000) LNIHd-NDOV
Ee s g b

€Z0Z/60/1 1 - TTOZ/80/LL pPojnpayasg

J9)s169y juswfed egoAegbay




WVEBE:LL 2202 01 AON '(1F8VDINY) TITVIN YONVINY 10) pojeleus 1oLsIg 004 UoIUM POOMUORHOD - B0

gz jo g abed (A = (019Z ‘N = £90IAPYMOBUD AQ yealg ebeg
3dv357 | 0¥5£20 = (S)PI yoreq [eaoiddy ‘A = ¢PIOH O 'N = 8dAL Juswied ‘N = POUIOW IusUIAed ‘g = B1O) AQ paIsiId ‘Uondg 1OPIO H90UD dy Aq periog  Lonoeies
S1¥Vd HaN3dO
91ze 912% Hpny Z2I80/L L v888YIreYers  NVD INIWIOVI4IY 0£200-€28vd  ZT/0/0L €2/220 4
# re1s|fay 01200-828td #0d BIB(] M09UD) piyoieg
-000-004€-0000-0LS¥ -0000-01L€S-100-€l (688L00) £20Z
1829 1829 Hpry Ze/RoiLL §£¥599/8659/  SAITddNS NIHOLM 01200-€28PY  ZZ/O0/0L £2/Z20Z
# 15191Bay £0Z00-628%d #Od ajeq ¥oayo plyoIeg
-001 -0028 -0000 -0LSY -0028 -0000-050-10 (€£SZ100) £zZ0Z
8e'G) 8e'5/ Hpny Ze/80/k L 19681958849 10NN /M Ny 20200-€Z8%Y €2/90/0L €T/ez0T 4
# so)siboy £2Z00-S28Fd #0d 81e() ¥o8UD Plysies
~000-000L -0LLL -OLEY-02PZ-ZL2E-1L00-L0 (682000) £20Z
asvo
d¥vH ONYSLI4/NAd
T 768z 69°82 upny 2Z/80/L1 S88YFEAESY.S H3avay £2Z00-E28¥Y  Z2/90/0L €7/220 4
# loysiboy 22200-£28Pd #0d eleq yoayn Plydteg
~001L -02¥Z -0000 -0LEY -0ZFZ -00LL -020-10 (6SL1L00) £70Z
S6°201 567201 upny ZZi80/ 11 G/8969E+R696 NI CTTO0ET8YY  ZT/S0/0L €2/2207 4
# Joisibay 122006281 d #0d sjeq AosyD pluEg
"Z€071-000) -0l -0LEY 0SB0 -0000-050-10 (Z8.r00) €Z0Z
SIVGAN HO4 dI1D
20081 20091 npny T80/ L 1691988/6665  dVNS /M SNOgalY IZZ00-€Z8PH  22/50/0) €2/2202 o
# 1e1s100y L2Z00-€28pd #Od 2120 W2uD pPIysieg
| -001 -0¥ L€-0000-DLSY -0P95-01L06-100-L0 (9/6900) €202
| 62°88 62'88 upny ZZiB0/LL 98/¥69E/8V9F ST TddNS ISHNN 12Z00-€28YY  Z2/90/0L £Z/2202 4
# 18)s160y 90200-£28%d #Od a1e(] ¥oayn pljoleg
-001 -0028-000¢-0L5Y -0028 -0000-0S0-10 (£5Z100) £20Z
SY11398WN
8611 [99L1 upny ZZ/B0/LL YOBELFSY. V6 /SNOIS dOLS 90200-6Z8%H  2Z/P0/0) £2/220T
# te)sifioy 60Z00-£28pd #Od B)eq %I3UD piyotey
~G0L -00Z¥ -0LLL -0LEY -0L00-004) -0Z0-10 {(1911L00) £202
Mooq
YOS YIDO0S
Z0°€61 20661 npny ZzZ/80n1 969/606/6588 /ONITS QIV LSHI4 60Z00-€28YY  ZT/P0/0L £2/220Z
# sosiboy 20200-£29d #0d 2180 o5y pPIusteg
-00L-000L-0L}LL -0L¥¥ -0000-00L1-020-10 (GE.+00)} €202
(penujuoo) WAD
(panuguoo} uphy Z2iR0/ L1 ¥E899G8EEPER H0d INIHOYIA 321 80200-€¢8Pd  C2/Y0I0L £2/2202 4
h PenuRuod) (panuguoo) {2/095000) GONAS INOZYWY 10pUBA gy
unewy - 3 P @E:E. : e .

Aunog - AINNOD uNo22Yy yueg

19)s169y Juawhey

egoAegboy

ZZ0Z/60/L) - Z202/80/1 1 penpsayag




AVEe-Ll ¢clc DL ACN (138VIINY) 139V0N YANYINY 10} petelaust) LIS |ooyag uoluf poomuonos - gro

SZ Jo g abeg {A = 01827 ‘N = 80/ApY/0a4D Aq yealg abiey
3d4VD57 | 0v6420 = (S)p1 uated 1enoiddy ‘A = 4pIOH UQ N = edAL Juswiked ‘N = pouley JuswiARd ‘8 = 610) Aq Pesell ‘UORAQ J9PIQ F98UD dy Aq poios uogos|ag
-000-002£-0000 0165 -00Z. -0000-L00-10 (+8E100) £202
£2'9¢6 . £8°9Z6 Hpny Ze/80/L1 51805681 AH3S INOHd ZTBLIOL £2/2202
SZ09-26109 N ‘WyIYLS TO8YD
LL0B X08 'O'd
(e/£¥0000) 181y 10puap paag
yoays NN.oma.N .E:OF_< a%loAU] [e)o)
000 -0028-0000-D1GS -0¥28-0000-100-10 (980Z00) ¢z0zZ
S2°GL6 §2'GL6 Upny ZZi80/1LL 2-1€50-69T9EET AYIS FOVaNYD ZZIEO/LL  €2/Z20T
-000-0028-0000-01SS -0¥Z8 -0000 -L00- 10 {(980200) £207
Lrvel'l LPpal'L Hpny Ze/80/LL G-1£50-2909EE2 AYIS IOVEEYD TTIEOILL £2/Z20T
S90L-pS006 VD ‘STIIONY SOT
G90L+S X049 Od
(1/500000) IDAYS dSIA AOOMNOLLOD-NOSHIANY lopuap aig
¥34Dd  00'sZ8 unoty a910AU] [ejo)
# 19isifioy ¥91.00-£281d #Od PEQ Mo2uD) piyaeg
~00L -OFLE -0000-0LSY -0¥95-0106-100-10 (9/6900) £zZ0Z
00'5Z8 00'5z8 Ipny 22/807L) 90S/11108 531ddNs a3v rOLO0-EZ8FM  ZZ/P0I0L £Z/2202
SE0EE Td "UWINYHIN
. AVM IAILLNDTXT 1LSLE
m (1/8101,00) gAY NYORIINY JOPUBA Y
HBUD  pEZEY'Y UnoWY 3210AU] [e10] _
# JeisiNay 02200-£281d #Od 818() 084D pluaIEg
“00L -0¥1€-0000-0LG5F-0%95-0L06-100-L0 (9/6500) £202
NOILYNIGNOD
pielen]
or'ie 0¥'1Z upny 2280/ 1 BEBBPSIBSESH HOLYY3D| Y43y 02Z00-EZ8v  22/60/01 £2/z202 4
_ # Jeisibay £Z200-£281d #0d fpeq sy rlyneg
“000-000) -OLLL -OLEY -02+Z-212E-L00-1L0 (681900) £z0Z
Asyo
QYYH ONVS1I4/Nad
0£'825°) 0£'82g°L Ypny Z2/80/1LL 816.818/93€0% ¥3avay £2Z00-628vY  ZZ/80/01L £Z/220Z A
it 4a1510ey 0£200-£281d #Od gleq §oeyy pludeg
~000-004€ -0000-0LS¥-0000-01L€5-L00-¢L {(688100) £20Z
{penupuos) S1uvd ¥3N3dO
{panunuoa) Iy 22/80/LL ¥B88POrEYEFE  NYD LNIWIDVIdIH 0EC00-E28¥H  2Z/L0/0L £2/220Z d
[ {penujuod) _ (2/095000) GONAS /NOZYNY 19DLRA Y

uaWiWo i 8

ceoe/ L - 220Z/80/L1 pa|npsysg

19)siBay Juswhed , egohAedboy




Wvse- L €20z 01 AON "(TI8VOINY) 138VON VANYINY J0) pejelsuag PLISI] |00YIS VORI - PoomMUONOS) - 810

ST Jo ¥ abeg (A = $0J0Z ‘N = 4201ApY 3D AQ yeeug abey
14V w.mﬂ ‘076220 = (8)P1 Uoleq |eacuddy ‘A = ¢PIOH UQ ‘N = 8dAL JuswAeg ‘N = poutely Juswey ‘gy = B10) Aq pausyiig ‘uondo Jopio YoeuD dv Aq patios  uonosjeg
¥o8UD 686292 oWy 3310AuU] (B30
# 1o1sibay 21Z00-€281d #Od sl sy pijoreg
-000-000L -L0GO-0L¥¥-0000-00LL -0S0-L0 {£86900) £207
62'6.9°C 68'GLOT upny Ze/80/1 L BESBFYY HOLYNINYT L1200-£28vY  ZE/\Ti0) £Ziezoz 4

66096 VYO 'ONIQQ3Y
1S 1SND0O1 288

{1/96£000) SANIHOVIN 321440 S, 1T0HYD 10puas dy
A29YD  00°58S unoury anoau| jejo|
- -004 -00.Z 0000 -0£9S -00/Z -0000 -020 10 (SEEL00) £207
05'292 05292 npny ZzZI80/L L L9g1g AYIS WavTY 2Z/ZO/L L £2/Z202
=001 -00.2-0000-0€9%-0042-0000-050-10 (vZeL00) €20z
00'081 00°081 Npny 220111 : €195 AY3IS WYY Y TLfe0/LL €21220Z )
-000-009€-0000-0€95 -G000-0000-100-L0 {S0ZEA0) £20Z
05'2Z¥1 052kl Ipny Z2/80/L 1 580515 AYIS WHYTY ZZ/ZO0/LL E€212202
9560-66096 VD ‘ONIQQIY
956066 XOd Od
(1/1.20000) 0D ALIAVS VINHOLMNYD loguap 1840
Ny 05°ZLZ'PL Junowy 3010Au| |EJ0,

“001 -08L 1L -09.5-5085 -¥020-0059-100-L0 (825Z00) €20z
05212yl 0521l ipny Tei80/1L asano S30IAY3E 1O CZO/LL Egfeeog
£0096 VO 'ONIQOIY
¥ 31INS dOLT1IH 02

{1/920100) AdYHIHL TYNOILYANDDO NIASTHG 1OpUS A 18110
¥eUD b1z Junoty a2joAuf fejo
- o T ‘ -000-0028 -0000 -01 65 -09Z8 -0000-100 10 (£06100) sz0z
01 00 upny zz/30/)1 9911920 TVANSYNYL ZeLI0L 22202
~000-00Z8 0000 -01§5 -0928 -0000-L00-10 (Z06L00) £207
101 101 HpNY ZZ/30/L1 5912920 TYLNIH MNV.L Z2IvLI0L £2/220Z
20096 YO NOSYIaNY
avod 3AISLSYI 8229
{1/962000) SYO ¥v1S 3N HOpUBA 108
¥8UD  £9'0z6 Junoury 2010Au] je30)
; Y B P o G s

2202/60/1 | - TZTOZ/80/1 L P3INPaYdS

19)s169y Juawhey egpAedbay




WVYBE:LL 220Z 01 AON '(13gVDINY) T3aVON YONVINY Jof pajeleuss

JOUISIA [90YIS UOIUF) POCMUOHOD - 810

GZ Jo g abey (A = 0187 ‘N = s9onpypioeys Aq yeoug afiey
3dVIs3 | 016220 = (S)PI Yaleq [BA0IddY ‘A = LPIOH UO ‘N = 8dAL JusWAEd ‘N = POUIOW JusWwAE ‘gh = BIo) Aq Paraid uondo JBpI0 %09yD oy Aq papog  uoioejeg 4
- ' -300-D00L 0Lk} -D12S ~0000 -9929 - 100 -10 (996900) 6202
W30 §3d
00"+ 00'%8 npny z2/60/11 PErE MHO  HOVIE ONO1D1d T2/I8T/0L $TIZTOT
T o . -000-0001 -0LL4 -01ZS 0000 -9929-100-10 (998900) £20Z -
W3Ia ¥3d _
008 008 npny z2i60/L1 ZPPS MHO  HOWIF ONOT D14 ZT/9T/0L £2iEZ0z
001 -0001 -000G-4085-0L11L-0000-020-10 {8L2+00) £20Z
ANVTLIMS YO
00001 00°001 npny ZZ/B0/LL L#HS MHD ddV VILNIQ3IHO ZZI8LI0L £2/220Z
€2096 YO ‘TOOMNOLLOD
15 18414 "m ZL502
(1/900000) ANNA DNIATOATY TOOMNOLLOD 10pUsA 198K
N93YD 00 0SE'SE Juhowy adjoau| jejo]
# 1018160y SE100-£28pd #0Od sle 3oayn pljoleg
000 -0058 -0000-02Z9-0000-ZLZE€-0Z0-L0 {865500) £Z0Z
29000-228+d- L SaM
SWOOYHLYE 40 NO
00°05v'52 00'0St'52 Hpny Ze/60/L 1L d9-68¥0-OrY 5658815 I LYIOIWIN/HIVdIY SEL00-EZBFY  Z2/37/0L £E/220Z
20096 VD 'NOSHIONY
L 31INS
12D HOSYIH 06961
{2/182000) ILIMQUNG-ILIYNYITO Jopusp gy
¥oayD  gy'86T Junoury asloAuj (810
# losifisy 8/1.00-28Pd #0d a1eq ¥98yD plymeg
-000-000} -0LL )L -0bEY -02FZ-2L2€-100-L0 (682900) €Z0Z
09°916°} 09°916'} upny 2Ti80/L1 69106rd SMOQHINOHUHD BLL00-EZ8PY  Zg/LLI0L £z/Zzoz 4
# I91s1bay GZZ00-E281d #0Od aleq ¥oayD piyxeq
"00L-0L11-094G-0LE¥-0020-0089-020-L0 (L2£8200) £20Z
8t'86Z 8r'962 upny 22/80L1 HOPEEOC  HOLINOW /NYD 93Mm SCZ00-£Tery  ZZ/S0/0L £2/220Z 4
# J@)s1bay 8/100-€28¢d #0d LA ¥OBYS plyRYRY :
“000-0001 -0LLL -OLEY -0ZFZ-2125-100-L0 (68/900) £20Z
-09'0L6°L ~09'916'L upny ZZI%0/11L 646S9MD SHOOEANOHHS 8.100-EEBYM ZZ/0Z/60 £2Z/Z20Z. 4
G151-54908 1) ‘ODVYDIHD
SILSL 518
HA FONYLLHINTY 62

Auno) - AINNOJ UNoooy yueg

1915169y Juswhey

(1/651000)

opuap Jdy

2 (PLYOYER SuRL1)
poren o 1 (V11117 431

CZ0Z/60/L ) - TZOZ/20/Li pRINPaL DS

egohAedbay




WYL 2202 03 AON '(13gvOlY) 138V0N YANYINY 10} pajelsuas JolH)S|q [ooYyDS uoluny poomuonod - 80
GZ jo g sbed (A = 40197 'N = {89APYNHDRUD A yeaug abed

3dvOs3 ‘_ '0O¥GLZ0 = (3)p) udleg [eacuddy * A = $PIOH UQ ‘N = adA) JuswAed ‘N = poyjely Juswhed ‘gi = Big) Aq pasel|d ‘uondo 19pI0 ¥99UD dy AQ PO LCHOS[aS

-000-0004-0b b} -0L2S -0000-9929 -100-40 (99£900) £z0%

Walq
H3d SNOILNTOS
004 00'v2 npny zzieo/LL FarSs MHD HOIAYHIY TZILEIOL £2/220C
-000-0001-0L11-0L25-0000-9929-100-10 (99£900) £Z0Z
W3la
d3d SNOILN10S
00vL 00'¥4 npny zZi60/11 £5G MHO HOIAVHIY ZZILE/0)L £2/2202
-000-0001-0LL1-0125-0000-9929-L00-10 (99£900) £Z0T
Wa1a ¥3d
00'v8 00'v8 pny Z2ersofll vam v_Io HJvY3dd OSNO1 O71d Z2i8CI0L £2/220Z
-000-0001 -0L L} -01LZS -0000-9929-100-10 (99€900) £20%
W3la ¥3d
0048 00'+8 npny Z2I60/11 LSPEMHO  HOVIE ONOT I7d Zeige/0) £TiTe0Z
-000-0001 -0L L1 -0LZS-0000-9929 -100-10 (99£900) £20Z
W3la ¥3d _
00't8 00'v8 npny Z2/60/11 0S¥S MHD  HOVIE DNOTO1d ZE/RZIOL £2i7202
=000 -0C0L -0LLL-0L2G-0000-9929-100-10 (99£900) €202
W31a 934
00't8 00'v8 upny zZ/60/11 BY¥S ¥HD  HOVIEONOTO1d 22/9T/0L £2/ZT0T
-000-000L -0+ 41 -012S -0000-9929-100-10 (99€900) £202
310 ¥3d
00'+9 00'+8 upny ZZI60/1 ) 8rPG ¥HD  HOVAE ONOT O1d Ze/8TI0L £2/2202
-000-000% -0L 11 -012$ -0000-9929-100-10 (99£900) €207
W3IQ ¥3d
00'¥8 00’8 Hpny czIB0iLL IPPS MHD  HOVIE ONO1 21d TZI8TI0L £2/2202
=000 -0001-0LEL-0L25-0000-9929-L00-10 (99€£900) £€20T
W31 ¥3d
0048 0048 uphy zEIBO/LL EPYSYHO  HOV3AONOT J7d TTISTIOL £T/TTOZ
-000-000L -0 11 -01ZS -0000-9929-100-10 (99€900) £20¢
W31 ¥3d
00'v8 00'¥8 Hpny z2IB0/ L OFFS MHO  HOYId ONOT D 72/82101 £2/2202
 -000-000L -0LLL-0125-0000-9929-100-10 (99£900) £20Z ‘
W31 ¥3d
0018 npny ZZ/B0/L ) SPPS MHO  HOYIE ONOT O 22/82I0L £2/2202
{penuyuoo) (1/900000) annd oz_>._o>m_x QOOMNOLLOD _ 10pUBA 108413

bcseo ALNNOD JUnoooy yueg 2202/60/L.) - ZZ0Z/80/LL POINPBYAS

J9ysifhoy juawhed egoAedbay




FIVRL ke LoVe Uy VN U IHaVONY) 138VONW YANYINY 10] pajessuag

PLISIQ [00Y2S UOIUN POOMUOHOY - Bpo

GZ 10/ abeg (A=cdorez ‘N= 20D oY D Ag Yeeug abey
EFTEIER '0¥8220 = (S)PI Yo1eg [2A0Iddy “A = ¢PIoH UQ ‘N = 8dAL JusLiAey N = Poutoy JusWIAed ‘gl = Bio) Aq PaIsllld uoydo 48pI0 YooY dy A peyog  uojosieg
8F08-80LE5 IM ‘NOSIAYIN
8v08 X019 0d
{1/080000) DN O2WaA J0pUBA dy
#2940 L8921y Wwnowy asioau] fejo
T T T e o o o -80-oomm-88-Smm-o..o\..mm‘,o,ooo..ﬂ@o-Foiamm.._&‘mm.mmwi.?\1.-!... -
S8 166') 58266'L npny 22190111 ceozg 120 000802 ISEAR-/YA ceiLziol eziezoz
E T o - T -000-0028-0000- 0155 -0€28-0000-100-10 (606+,00) 207 -
aL'zez'L 9veEE'l upny Ze/80/11 Ze0z 120 Z0L90) d3ALvm ZZ/LE0) €¢/z20z
_ R T T ~000-0028 -0000 -01$S -0528 -0000 - 10010 (60£100) £z0z
8L Ly - gLy Hpny T 2202 LOO LOLYoL HILVM ce/leiol ez/ezoz
T T e T ~ -000-0028-0000-015 -0828 -0000 <160} 1o (soei00) ezoz
81598 21°698 Npny 22180111 2202 190 00090} H3Llvm ZeLei0L £2/220T
22096 ¥ '00OMNOLLOD
0£1Z X08 Od
(1/200000) LOIMLSIA ¥ILYM ACOMNOLLOD 10puss, 108
#0242 22: unotuy adioAu| Ie30L
. ‘ - . T -00} -008¢€ -1 00 - -1085-0000-0059 - -100 - Sim.mmmoov..-mrwﬂ,l,,“E,il...A‘is.,-
_ 06'291 05291 upny Ze/6orLL 09PSMHO  dSNWHL LNIANLS TZIBO/LL £2/2Z0E
T T T e  -001-009E -0 +4-L08S -08} ) 0108 -050-15 “(000200) £z0z
£9°08 £9°08 ipny Z2i80/L L BSFEMHO  JSNVHL INIANLS 20/ L €eiz20z
e A -000-006€ 0000 -0415% 08 1 4 ~0L0E <1 0010 (29z£00) €20z
ATINYS
0009 00'09 . ipny 2260/ 85PS MHD  AQIIN AWVYD SYO zenenl _£ereenz
T T T T e N ~ -000-00ZZ-0000-0125 0022 -0000 100 - 10 {szzi00) €20z T
W3IQ ¥3d
0026 0026 npny 2260711 \.mvm MHD  dIHSY2dAY3] vsov ZerelolL mN\NNoN
T T o T  -000-000L-01}E-0125 0000 -9929 100 -10 {99€900) ¢zoz
Waia
H3d SNOILNT0S
0 b2 00°¥s upmy ZTIBO/LL 95¥G MHD H0IAVHAg ceIeiol 212202
T T T T 00000010111 01285000 -3 -9929-100-10 (99¢800) s20z T
EIfq]
Y¥3d SNOILNTOS
00"+ 00'+4 Hpny 2Z/80/L1 GGG MHD HOIAVHIY ZZ/LEIOL £2/Z20Z
amsc_zos Ewooooe ozsn_ ONIATOADY JOOMNOLLOD _ {opusAjoslq

>E=oo ALNNOD E:Seq yueg

198169y Juswhey

4 N___mc:‘_‘ Nwomch:‘_‘ _um_:_umsom

egohAegbay




WVSE: Ll 2202 01 AON (T3FYDIAY) T1F9VIN VANVINY 104 pereisuss) ouIsIq [00Yag UOIUN POOMUOROD - B8P0
§Z 10 g ebed (A = £0187 'N = L021ADY09YD Aq jesig abed
AdvIs3 ‘015220 = (s)pl uoleg |eaoddy ‘A = (PIOH UQ ‘N = AL JuswAed ‘N = powely JUaWAB ‘g = 10} Aq passl| 4 ‘uondg Japi0 YoaUD dy AQ pelog  uonoejas

£0096 VO 'ONIQUIY
AVM IOILSTINd 5L L

(1112000} DV 2 ONILYIH NOSHID AOPUBA d¥
Noayo 08'v6z Junoury adioau| jejo |
- -000-00.€ -0000-0L L+ -0000-04E5-L00-€l (068100) £20Z )
00°891L 00°891 upny Z2I180/L1 625500820 L AdINvY ZTIVE/0L £TITTOZT
~000-004€-0000-0L2¥ -0000-0LES-L00-EL (068LO0) £Z0Z
08'9Z1 08°921 upny ZZI80/LL 09¥S008Z0EYL AHIIVE ZTILLI0L £Z/2202
#592-7.006 YO ‘ST1AONY SO
$592¥. X049 '0'd
{1/2£5000) SIUTHVE ATINYL ZNYHS Jopliaj, 19840
Noayo  pa'sveL JUNOWY 3010AU| [E30]
# 1015180y 02000-£281d #Od ajeQ HoayD piystes
26'¥29 =00} -000L -0LLL-0LEY -0000-00L1L-050-1L0 {88L1L00)} £Z0Z
26've9 ~00) -0001 -0L L1 -0LEY -0000-00LL -020-L0 {(29L1L00) £20Z
TYMIANIY ISNIDIT
AYvHE ¥3gn3aw
o 6YZ | A pny Ze/B0/LL 506687L  LOIM1SIA ANILS3A 02000-€28FM  ZZ/20/0L €2/Z20Z  d
: 8160-€6909 T ‘OOVIIHD
IAIHA ¥ILNID NOILOITIOD 92816
{1/850000) DONI SNOILNIOS TOOHOS 1131104 Jopuap dy
NoayD Z9'E6l JUNOUIY 8DI0AU| |RJO|
ge19894  79100-628bd #0Od SiBQ %0940 pIyoleg -
-00% -0L18-0000-0LS¥ -0L 1§ -0000-020-10 (5¥ZL00) €20Z
@134
TIWEL408 -SLdvd
79'€6l z9°€6/ Npny 2280 L ZGELLLSL ANV SHIDINIHELS 19100-€28vY ZZ/ST/0L fT/ezoe  d
£0096 VO ‘ONIQa3y
HQ SAVOHSSOYD §10€
(1/679000) NOLLYDIHNI ONIMI JORUBA oy
¥ayo  i6eh JNowy 9310AU| [2)0 L
# ._w_m“m@w_ o £G200-£28pd #0d - 2B} 3O8UD) o piuoled o
-00L -02¥Z-0000-0LE¥ -0810-00L 1L -0Z0-30 (981L100) €20T
npny ZZ/80/LL 95Z€1Z.  SANAdNS AMvNEI £4200-C28vy  Ze/e0/LL £2/2E0C 4
{panunuoo) (1/060000) ONI OOW3A

10pUBA Y

usunes:

19)s16ay Juawhed egoiedbay




VY- L 6ol U4 AON 11J9VINY) T39VOIN VAONYINY 10} pajelausn JoHISI] [0OYOS UoIN POOMUONOY - gD
Ge Jo g abeg (A =é019Z 'N = j90iApy ey Ag yeaug abeg
EFT n_ vas3 y '0YS420 = (S)P1 yoreq [eaorddy ‘A = ¢pjoH uQ ‘N = odA) Juauifed ‘N = poursiy Juswied ‘g = BIO) Aq pausyiy ‘uondg JpIQ %934 dy Aq pamog co_uom_wm

-00Ll -0811 -094.5 momm ~£0z0 oomw Lo0-10 (LZEL00) €202

AL
00°80} 00'801 Jpny TTR0/LL  L-2Z0Z0SB0VINOSNMO ONIT3ISNNOD ZZIS0I0L £2/2202
£0096 ¥ 'NOSHIANY
"1S HLNOS 957
(1/2+5000) SWYHDOND 03 LNIANIJIANI 10pusA 1980Q
No3YyD  6T8Z0'T unowny aojoAu] fejoy
i ,A . ~000-002£-0000-0LZ¥ -0000-0L€5-L00-S} (068L00) €207
006 006 upny ZZIB0/L1 6626YSS 5334 J1VLS 004 220 s2rze0r
_ -000 004€ -0000-0}£¥ -0000 -04ES-L00-€} {062400) £20%7
0%’ 100"} 0¥ L00'L upny Z2I0/LL 986255 Q004 720/ €2/2202
o . , ~000-00LE -0000 -0L L+ -0000-0LES-1L00-EL (068100} £207
0£+Z 0E've Hpny 2Z180/L1 1859£5G aoo4 ZZI9EI0L £2/Z20Z
- o , 000 -00/€-0000-0LL¥-D000-0L€S-1L00-61 {068L00) £20%
v2'8.6 v2'8.6 Hpny zZ/20/11 LLG0GKS aoo4 ZZIBLI0L £2/2Z0Z
, ) _ ~000-00.€ -0000 -0LL¥ -0000-0185-100 €L (068100) €207
syl sgvl Moy 22/80/11 1001685 Qaoo4 ZZILZIB0 £2/2Z07
18216 ¥O 'OISYLNO
8257 X084 0'd
(z/0£9000) “ONI ‘SA00L VLS 0709 lopuap el
| A394D  00°SBY'OY Junowy aoj0Au] jejoy,
# iosifiey 0€100-6Z8td #Od ajeq ¥osuD plyoreg
"€01-0L18-0000-0£95-0L18-0518-020-40 (025800) £Z0Z
£902Z-08
TVSO0d0¥d WOOY
00'95€'6) 00'95€'61 pny ZZ/R0/L | §0981.268 dd YO OVAH 0SL00-€28PY  ZzZ/0/LL €2/zZ02 o
# JeysiBay 08100-E281d #Od aleq yoayo plyotes
"€01-0118-0000-0£95-0000-0648-050-10 (S2SL00) €202
LINN 111dS - WOOY
0088l 00°5.8'cL 1pny Zz/80/LL £ErSS.zE ANOO 23 HLHON 08L00-€Z8vd  ZZ/1Z/0L €2/ZZ0Z o
# iisiBay #2000-£28d #0d SIBC) ¥0BUD plyales
*Z07-0118-0000-0€95-0118-0518-020-10 (0Z5€00) £20Z
WOOY
SISHNN NI OV
00°+52'Z 00522 ypny ZZ/80/L1 109v1428  LIdS INIW TTYLSNI vL000-€Z8YY  ZZ/0Z/0L £2/720Z o

Anm:_.__Eoov

( ::Boe o< kil oz_:m._._ zowm_o _ 10pUBA Jy

Ayunog - AINNOD Junoooy yueg ZZ0Z/60/L1 - ZZOZ/B0/L | PAINPaYos

19ys)hay Juswhed egpAedbay




VLT 1L 2202 OL AON ‘(TAFVIIY} TIEVOIIN YANYWY 104 peleisuss PISIF 0oYy2S UoluN POOMUOYOY) - D
(A = £019Z ‘N = ¢{201ApYp08YD Aq Yeslg ebeg

5Z 40 0| ebeg

EPLA Eu,;wwa '0p5220 = (SIP| Yoled (ecsddy ‘A = ¢PIOH UQ ‘N = 8dA L Juswiked ‘N = poylely JuswAed ‘gy = Bi0) Aq palalid ‘uondo JapI0 JoBYD Y Aq pelos  uonosiag
SE'8E ge'8g ypny z2I80/L1 1Z9%9Z ANIS AHONNYT ZZ/20iLL  £2/2202
. -000 -00LE -0000 -1 089S -0000-01£5-100-€} (P68L00) £20Z o
8¢z e/ 1PNy 22801 90292 AMIS AHONNYT ZeI9Ti0L £2/220Z
. ) -000 -00Z8 -0000 0155 -0528 -0000-100-10 (906100) $207 )
LE16 L8168 upmy ZzI80/LL 702H9Z AMIS AHANNYT 72192/01  £2/2207
T ‘ , ‘ ) ,‘ ) -000 -0028 -0000 -01§5 -0528 -0000 - 100 -0 (S0£400) £20Z i
69°29 _ 69°29 ypny Z2/80/1 ) Z0Z19z AY3S AMANNYT 22/9zI0L £2/Z202
,, ‘ -000-0028-0000 -0 1SS -0628 -0000-1,00-10 (90£100) €20z ‘
00’0} 00°0L upny ZZI80/L ) L0ZP9Z AYIS AHANNYT 229201 £2/2202
- ) -000-00£€ -0000 -L08S -0000 -01€S -+00 -6 (168100} £207 o
Ge'8e 58 Hpny Z2/B0/LL 002492 AMIS AMANNYT Z2I9ZI0} £2/2202
#9659 Jpzoo-gzevdOd aeq peun ,.  pluoreg )
-001 -0028-0000-0LS¥ -0028-0080-020-10 (¥¥Z100) £20Z
$311ddNs
$9'10v'Z SO LOV'T ypny z2/80/L1 LIV9T TVIIOLINYP IVZ00-628vY  TZBLOL £2Z20Z 4
. _ ) _ A -000 -00.€ 0000 -1 085 0000 -0LES -100 -S| (¥68100) £207
SEUZ se/z 1pny T80/ | Z6/€92 AMIS AHONNYT 226401 £2/220Z
- _ ,‘ B S : , -000 -0028 -0000 -0 SS -0SZ8 -0000-100 -}0 (906,00) £207
1616 IE16 Hpny ZZI80/LL L62£9Z AMIS AMANNYT ZeBLI0L £2/2202
| - . _ h ‘ ‘ = . ) ~000-0028 -0000 -015§ -0§28 -0000 - 10010 (80€400) £207 -
| 69°29 69'29 npny Z2I30/L4 06.£92 AY3S AHONNYT Z2IBLI0L  £2/2202
o T _ ~-000-00Z8-0000-0455 -0528 -0000-1L00-10 (08100) £202 i
00°04 00°0k Jpny 2Z/80/L 1 68/£9Z AHIS AHANNVT 2eIBLOL 212202
_ _  -000-00ZE -0000 -1L08§ -0000 0185 -1 00 -1 (v68L00) €207
5e'8e Ge'9e upny Z2/80/L L Lzvese AMIS AHANNVT 726101 £2/2202
20096 ¥ 'NOSHIANY
86 XO8 Od
(L/L¥1000) OTIOM ANANNYT 10puUB/, 198JI(]
WoBUD  06°286°L Junoury 310U 230
_ o -001 -08L1 092G -G085 -£0Z0-0059 -100-10 (LZ€L00) €202
z20z/01
06'S0F 06°S0p upny ZZ/90/11 22021801 YAINTSNMO ONITISNNOD 22/20/L | €212202
o - . _ -004 -08 11 ~09G -G085 -€0Z0 -0089 - 10010 (L26400) £202
00bZy'L 00°¥2p'Z 1pny Z2/R0/1 Z20ZEZ0LASNMD 2202 100 ZZLEI0L £2/220T
. (PenupuoD) (penuguos) ___(/275000) SWYH9O0Nd a3 ANIQNIJIAN] Jopus/ oRIg
_”E:oE< payIs jojey sur yiauwiusoy

bcsoo ALNNOD 1Unoaoy yueg Z202/60/1 1 ~ ZZ0Z/B0/LL PRINPaYIS

1938163y Juawieyd egoAedboy




WYBe: b E ¢CUG UL AUN L THEVONY) THEVON VAUNYINY 101 PoleloUsas)

R POLHGSS U0 POOAMULRVD = 8YU

S0 || abeg

3dv 253

(A = &0187 ‘N = ¢801ApYHOaYD AQ Yeaig abey
'0p5220 = (8)p1 ysieg [eacuddy ‘A = LPIOH UQ ‘N = adAL Juswied ‘N = poyisiy Juswied ‘gy = Bi0) Ag pausyilg ‘uondQ 19pIQ X08UD dY AQ PENOS  UQoD[ES

20096 ¥ 'NOSYIANY
G # LMNOD HOSHIH ¥6961
{L/E£0L00) ONI HIV '8 ONILYIH S 3TvH OW

JOpUaA 108l

AIUD  00°GIE'T

JUnowy asioAu [EJ0L

4 esiBay 29200-€28%d #0d o18q ¥o8UD pIyaIeg
-000-0004 -0k} } -0125 -0000-99Z9-100-10 (99€900) £Z0%
SZ/L-b2/L LINWNS
00'S/ET 006262 upny ZZ/80/LL 809/}  THNLTIND TOOHOS 19200-€28vY  Z2/vT/0L €2/2Z0Z 4
21522 ON TliH T3dvHD
NOYIH LHOIN 25
(L/LE0L0G) DNI ONIAI YO ONINYYET jopusp, dv
N0 68 LPE'E Junowy as10au jejo
) -000 -002€ -0000 108G -0000 -0L£6-100-6L ($68100) €202
5587 65'gT wpny Z2I60/LL 290592 AMIS AMANNYT ZZIB0/L L £2/2202
) ) - ~ -000-00Z8-0000-015G-0528-0000-100-L0 (90€L00) £20Z
1E°16 €716 PNy Z2i60/LL 190592 AMAS AMANNYT 260/ €2/Z20Z
) B -000-00Z8 -0000 -01S5 -06Z8 -0000-L00-10 (90€100) szoz
69°29 69°29 npny Z2I60/11 090592 AMIS ANANNYT 260/ £2/220Z
T T -000-0028 -0000 -01.5$ -0528 -0000-1L00-10 (90£L00) £202
0004 00°0} Hpny Z2i60/LL 650592 AMIS AMANNYT Z2i60LY €2/220Z
T -000-0D0ZE 0000 1085 -0006 -0LES-100 -S4 ($68100) £20Z )
S€°8€ 5e'8e pny 22/60/11 850592 AMIS AMANNYT Ze/6OILL £2/220Z
B -000-002€ -0000 -108S -0000-0,€5-100-€L (¥68L00) £202
el ge'lz ppny z2/80/LL LE9¥OZ AMIS AMANNYT Z2/Z0/LL £2/220Z
o -000-00Z8 -0000 -0LSG -0528 -0000-L00-10 (90€L00) ¢zoz
1516 I£°16 ypny ZZI80/L1 0£9v9Z AYIS AMANNYT Z2/20/LL £2/2202
) T -000-00Z8 -0000 -0LSS -0528 -0000-100-,0 (80€4L00) €20z
69'29 69°29 oy Z2/BO/LL 629192 AHIS ANANNYT 2RO £2/2202
| S - T -000-0028 -0000 -01.55 -0528 -0000-100-10 (90£L00) €202
00°0L 000} Hpny Z2/80/LL 829v9z AYIS AMANNYT 22201 £2/2202
| ) B -000-002€ -0000 -108S -0000 -0L£S - 100 €L ($681L00) £202 N
_ (panupuoo) upny Z2/80/L 1 (panunuoo) /z9v9z AHIS AMANNYT Z2R0ILL £2/2202
il tpanuguod) {panunuod) {L/1¥1000) ITHOM AMONNYT 1GpUB A 3091

1935169y Juswdiey

juswIoy

ecpofedbey




WY8E:L | ZZ0Z 0L 20N ‘(TIFVOINY) 1IGYON YANYINY 0] pajelsuss LISIg [o0Yag UolUN POOMUONIC) - 81

SZ 40 Z| ebed

(A = (0197 'N = j201ApypoeyD AQ yeaulg abey

3dvIs3 | ‘075220 = (3)P) Uojeq [enoiddy ‘A = ¢PIOH UQ ‘N = 8dA L Jusuihed ‘N = pouisiy juswAed ‘gy = BI0) Aq pasellid ‘uondQ JapIO %08UD) gy Aq pepog  Uanssieg
0L ¥6P'SlL _ ~00L -0LE1 ~09.§-1085 -0020-0089-100-L0 {681500) S£ZOZ
ov'8eL's ) ~00L -0LLZ-1005-1085-0000-0059-100-L0 (LS6Y00) €202
89°6t1'Z) ~00L-0Z1€-0000-L0BS-0ZLE-ELZE-LO0-10 {9¥E900) €202
vZ'vi0'L -001 -0¥1€-0000-108S -0 LE-0000-L00-10 {Q1Z+00) £Z0Z
22’5528 2261528 upny ZEI80/LL SF000-CZANI AY3S Qads Z2UPLI0L £2/220T
£0096 YD ‘'ONIAAIY
THL NODIHO oFLoL
{1/7£6000) Vdr @3 dS ATTIVA NLW J0pUag, 1281
Moy 296 JUNOWY 82[0AU]| |BJO4
-001 -004Z ~0000 -015% -004Z -0000 -1 00 -0 (£¥2100) ¢zoze
62’9 529 upny TTIR0ILL £5L181 AYTS HALYM ETIITI0L £212Z02
-001 -009€ -0000 -0LS¥ -0000-000G-L00-L0 {£2ZEL00) £20Z
Z6'Zl Z6¢l pny Z2I80/LL 051191 AM3S ¥3ALwm Z2I92/0L £T/2Z0T
LOSL-E0096 Y3 ‘DONIGAIN
aAT8 M3IA NIML 8281
{1/9£0000) HILYM DONINAS YLSYHS LW 1BpUaA 309430
A03D  66'G9E'E JUnouly 93toAu| [2)0 4
| # J51s1Bay 26100-6287d #0d B HoYD piyaleg _
-001 -0028-0000-0L5¥-0028 -0000-020-1L0 {(P¥ZL00) €Z0ZT
LOLEOMD
JLOND S3AIddNS
z9'6LL 2951l Hpny 2T/80/LL V2900904 TYINOLINYT Z6L00-E28bY  2T/LE/0L £Z/ZZ0T
# wsifiay Z61L00-628bd #0d 81eq] %08uD) plynleq
-001 -0028-0000-01L5%-0028 -0000-0Z0-10 (+¥2L00) £€Z0Z
LOLEQHD
JLOND S3NddnS
187082 LE0SE'e ypny ZTIR0/1LL 290090y TYIMOLINYT 6100280y  TST/IOL €£Z/ZZ0Zz 4
10556 WO ‘vyIuN3
1S 3LHON 130 M 0£0L
(1/959000} ATddNS SIANIN Jopusp oy

HO3YD 000052 Junowy asioAu| jeja)

-000-0058 -0000-0229 0000 -ZL2E -020-10 (855500) £Z0Z
SINOOHLSTY
HIMOT
00°005'2 000082 Hpny 2280/ GEr| SNY4 1SNYHX3 ZS/LE/OL £2/2202
:82;83 :aBEe oz_ 1A m.z_._.<mz SITVH OW

10pUB A 19810
E:oE( g : Juroury : e

3::00 >._.ZDOU E:oou< jueq £z0e/60/Ll - Nmom\wo_.: Uw_:bmr_ow

1o)sifiay uswied egofiedhay




VY b ¢oUc O ACN T138VOINY) 139Y0IN VONVINY 10} pajessuss) 1281 j00y 98 volun poomuonog - gip
§¢jo £| abey (A =iorz N = 4OOIADY8YD Ag yealg abey

34V0S uJ_ '0¥5220 = (S)pi Yojeg (eaclddy ‘A = ¢pioH UQ ‘N = 8dA| Jusurfed ‘N = poyley JuswAed ‘gp = B10) Aq paseyi4 ‘Londo Jepio yoeyn dv AQ pallog  uanoojeg

# 1eysibey mmooo-m%#_ #0d ajeq Noaus pluseg
001 -000L 0141 ~0LEY ~0000-0011 -0Z0-10 {zo1100) czoz
SATMONM
87961 8E'961 upny 2z/20/L1 LO0L9EZ0565Z -._<_mmh<_>_52_ 66000~ £Z8vy _Zeie0i80 eziezoz 4
# J8)8:bay mmooo-m%i #od e ey pIUSIEg
“00L -000L -0LLL -0LEL-0000-00) ) -0%0 -0 (8811L00) gzoT
_ WNIN2IYYND
LA +2'Z6 npny ZZ/80/L1L L008S8ESELSE - H3dvd SS000-EC8YM  Z2/6T/10 €2/2202 o
8P26-8E058 2V 'XINIOHJ
8¥26Z X09 Od
{#£1.60000) NI ‘LOdIQ IDI440 10PUBA ofy
xomco 00" mov E:oE<mu_o>=_ _Eo._.
-001 -00Z¥ - 0b1LL-5085-0400 - ~0000-100 10 (zz5100) €20z
SIVIDIALO
00°sop 00'S0p Npriy ZZ/80/L1 ZZSEASINDOM Ve AJTI0A TZISOI60 £2/220T
6¥096 v2 ‘ONIad3y
Z88¥6F X089 '0'd
(2/£+2000) YOAAN lopuap 1oen(
xom:o mm m_. E:oE<¢u_o>:_ _m«o._.
-191-00.¢ - 1000 -01 24 ~€£51 -0000 - 080 -10 GEX.S £202
86°G1 86'G) upny ZZ/20/L 1 SFZOLPEOrE00 aood ZZI92/0) £2/Z20Z
22096 VO ‘QOOMNOLLOD
6EF XOH 'O'd
(1/92¥000) "ONI ‘ANIOOUD T1V.LS HLYON Jopuap 1eag
v_om.._U wm £06'0LL a:...o_.=<mo_0>:_ 1ejel
omﬁmv.m -00L 0114 -0945-5085 - -90Z0 - -0059 - F00-10 (2$6900) €20z
StyZE oL 7001 -0L11-0L1Z-508G-00Z0 -0089-100 10 {zols00) czoz
88'059'G1 _ 001 -0L L1 -0926 -108S -00Z0 - 0059-1L00-L0 (681500) czoz
800812 “001L-0LiZ-100%-1085 -0000-00§9-100-}0 {Ls6¥00) ¢zoz
12°996'v] “00) -0ZLE -0000-L08S -0Z L€ “ELZE€-100-10 (9vE900) £Zoz
L9€99'| 004 -0v1€-0000 -1 085 -0 LE -0000-100 <10 (8Lz¥00) czaz
9.°'8ZE'8% _ 9s'sze’ 85 ey ce/Bo/LL £5000-€ZANI A¥3S a3ds zeIL0/11 gzlezoe
SV 096 T -001 -041) -0925-1015 - 9020 -0099-100 - 10 (956900) €z0z
SU'E150) “G0L-0LL L -0L12-508S-0020-0069-L00-10 (z915060) ¢zoz
(PBNURUOY) upny ZT/B0/L ) {Panunuos) G+O0G-EZAN| AY3S aads ZZVLIOL £2/Z202

_ (panujuco) (1/v£6000) Vol 03 JS AFTIVA NLW JOPUBA 134G

b::oo ALN :oozzoueqx:mm mwowae: Nmoge:um.:umﬁm

19s1Bay JuawAey eGgoAedbay




Vet b ccle UL AON VId8VIINY) 13aVON YONYWY 10} pajelause

12141510 {00YG LOJUN POOMUOROD - 8P

SZ 10 | abey

(A =¢0i07 N = £82IApY P8y Ag yeaug abey

3dV053 ‘075220 = (8)P| uojeq reacuddy ‘A = ¢PIoH UQ ‘N = 004 JusiwAey ‘N = POy Jawhed ‘g = BI0) Aq pesayly ‘uondo JepIo yoayo dV Aq papog  uonosieg
75651 €07T-000L -0LLL -0LEY 0560 -0000-050-L0 (Z82¥00) £20Z
SNITASNNOY/SISd
_Zgest 25651 Hpny Ze/80/L ) 100796071992 - IVIMILYN LSNI 28100 €281y - 2e/iTie0 ezrzzoz
# 1815168y oNBo £28%d #0d ajeq ¥o9un plymseg
001 <0001 -0LLL -0LEY -0000 -001 L -020-L0 (29} 1L00) £20z
HINLId
E8'EY _egey upny. 22180711 £00Z¥SLOL19Z - TYIYALYIN LSNI 0ZL00-E28¥Y Z/9Z/60 €2/Z20Z 4
# 1s)sibey Nwzo mmmvn_ #0d aeq oy plyoleq
"00L -0LLE-0LLL-0LEY-0LLE-0000-050-10 (186900) £20Z
696 "€01-0001-0L1L -0LE¥-0560-0000-080-10 (Z8.$00) £20z
ONITISNNOD/SIgd
686 68'6 Hpny TZ/R0/LL L00v925€1997 -._<_mm_2s_ hmz_ Z8100-£Z87Y eeIzLien £2/ze0T
4 101516y Nwso mNmE 40d “eleq o345 plyoteg
001 -0LLE-0L1L-0LEY-0LLE-0000-050-L0 (186900) £z0%
go'gL "¢271-000L -0L1LL -0LE¥ ~0560-0000-050-10 (282400 ) €202
ONIMASNNOY/SIgd
89°81 Hphy Z2/30/11 _100.829€1992 - IVIAILYIN LSNI mm:oo mwwvm Nw:mao mﬁwmow d
91BQ H08UD piIeg
FANT:) “00(-0LLE-0LLL-0LEV -OLIE-0000-050-10 (186900 ) €202
7€07-000L -0LLL-0LEY-0560-0000-050-10 (Z8.v00) £20%
ONITASNNOD/SIFd
ZL'L9 _zile upny ZZIBO/LL 10081291992 -é_mm_bqs_ A8NI Z8L00-£Z8HY 221260 E2/2207
#9isbay - 28100- mNmE #0d sjeq y2eyn pluoteg
59/8 "00L-0LLE-OLLL -0LEY-0LLE -0000+-0S0-10 (186900 ) £Z02
7€27-000L-0LLL -0LEF -0S60 -0000-050-L0 (282400 ) €20z
ONINASNNOD/SIEd
Gg/8 5828 upny ZZI80/LL +00£029€1992 -._<_m_m.2s_ 1SNI 28100-£28¥Y Zzeie0 te/zzor
IESTING Z8L00- mmmvn_ #Od o)eq Hoaun plymreg
001 -OLI€-0L1L-0LEY -0LLE-0000-050-10 (186900) £20Z
SE°901 7¢01-000) -0LLL -0LEY -0560 -0000-050-10 (28/400) £20%
ONITASNNOD/SIAL
Se'90L S€°90L zeiB0/LL 1001819EL96 -~ TVINILY LSNI _28L00-6Z8bY ze/ieie E£e/ezoz
#1860y 78100-628bd #0d ~aleq yaus pltdleg
"00L-0LLE-OLLL-0LEY-0LLE-0000-0S0-10 (186900 ) €702
£62 "€01-000} -0LL 4 -0LEY -0S60-0000-0S0-L0 (28.+00) £z0Z
ONITISNNOD/SIEd
£6'/ upny T2801LL LO06L1L9E199Z - IYIMILYIN LS CBLO0-EZBYY Z2/12/60 £2/220Z

bcsoo ALNNOD E:Seq v_cmm

snjejg

1918169y JuswAhey

(¥/160000) ONI 'LOJIQ 301440 1OPUSA Y _

o:‘_‘ NNONBQ_: Uw_:_umr_uw

egphegbay




WY8E:L| 3Z20Z 01 AON “(TFEVONY) 139OI YONYINY 0} peteisuss }21381Q [00YIS UOIUN POOMUONPOD - 810

sglogLabeg (A = £018Z 'N = (801pYPBYD A Yeeg ebed
Fdvos3 '0¥5220 = {8)PI Yoted 1eaciddy ‘A = ¢PIOH UG 'N = adA | swied 'N = poulaiy juswAed ‘gp = B10) Aq passli4 ‘uondQ JapIo %087 gy Aq palog  uoioBieg
#12isi60y e6L00€28vd#0d 2JeG %0843 ; pryowg ‘ B
06856 -001L-0L1Li-09.5-0L¥y -#0Z0 -0059-060-10 {£BRE00) £Z0¢Z
06°856 -000-000L -1 000 -0L ¥ -0000-00L L -050-10 (£86900) £20Z
08°216'L 08°216') Ipny Z2/80/LL L00ZPIER0ELT »$3Q ¥IHOVAL 661L00-£28vY ZZ/GT/0L €zfecde 4
# sosyfiay PEZ00-€28Fd #Od 3B ¥934D PIyoleg
"00) -000L -0LL}L-0LEY -0000-00L1L-050-10 (881100) £20Z
3 g[E]
ZE'202'e TE'202'E upny Ze/orlL L LO0GSERELELZ  HOLYNIWY I/ YIdYd YEZ00-£28¥Y 2Z/STIOL €2/7202 A
# laisiboy ZE200-£Z81d #0d BB Wy s plyoleg
8. vee'L -G00-000} 1000 -0L++ -0000-00L L -050-10 (£86800) £z0T
0/704€ -001 -00£Z2-0000-0LS¥ ~00.2 -0000-0S0-L0 (252300) €Z0Z
8t'slg') er'GIS)L npny ZZ/80/LL LO00VH/SE0.42 ISVOMO0A/MSIA  2€200-628bd  Ze/LMOL €2/2207 4
# rsifiey §5000-£281d #0d je] 38U pIyoreg
-00L -000L -0LLL-0LEF -0000-00L4 -050-10 (88L100) £Z0Z
WATNDIEAEND
AN ZL'oF upny 2280111 L0005¥268892 - d3dvd SG000-CZ8FY  22/2LI0L €2/2202
# 1a1siBayy 92200-C28td #0d 1B} Ho8yD plyoleg
-00L-0211-0945-04E¥-1020-0059-050-10 {B0ZL00) £Z0Z
WILSAS AV
TdSIAHIZINIVOEO
- 66'81 66'821 npny 2280/ LO0BOY8YEELZ i AS3A 9zz00-eTekd ze/Zliol €2/2Z0Z A ]
# 131516y 92200-£28bd #0d B WoayQD piymeg
-001 -0Z1 L ~0945-0LE€F-1020-0059-050-10 (80ZL0OO) £Z0Z
WILSAS AV
TSIQEIZINIYOHQ
6989 6988 upny 22180111 LOOLE09r8T.T 533 9Z200-£28hY  ZE/ZLI0L €2/2202
# 191518y LEC00-€Z8rd #Od Fle(] HoaD piyoreg
~001 -0042-0000-0LS¥ -00£2 -0000-L00-10 (Z¥2L00) €20z
1E29 LE/9 HpY ZZ/80/L1 LO0S80LIVLLT 3dv1 139V LEZ00-£28PY  ZZ/0LO0L €2/2202 o
# Ja1sifiay LE1L00-829%d #Od . @\ PReyD Plutes
-001 -02¥Z -0000-0LEY -02¥Z-00L L ~06Z0-L0 (6GLL00) €Z0Z
6168 6.'G8 Upny ze/eonlL L00BZSLGEEDT ~3AAH - AN LELOO-EZ8YY  Z2/6T/60 £Tiezoz 4
it JosiBay Z8100-€281d #0d seq %983 plyoleg _

-00L -0L4€-0LLL-0LEP -OLLE-0000-0S0-10 (186900) £Z0Z
(penupuos)  ONIMISNAOD/SIE
{Panupuoo) ypny 2Z/20/LL LO0¥960Z 1992 - IVIM3LYW LSNI Z8100-EZ8YM  Z2/IT/B0 £T/ZT0T
(panUNUDD) {penupuoo} (#/1.60000) NI 'LOd3A 31440 10pUsA dy
BIS];

€Z0Z/60/L) - TZOZ/B0/LL PB[Npayos

J91s1Bay Juswihed ecoAedboy




WVYBE:L1 2Z0Z 01 AON '(T3GYOINY) 128VDIN YANYNY 10} pajessuss

J9LISIQ |00YDS UOIUN POOMUO}OY - 80

GZ jo g} abey

{(A=¢00Z ‘N= B0 AOBYD Aq yeorg abeyg

3dVD53 075220 = (S)P1 yoreg [eroiddy ‘A = ¢PIOH UQ ‘N = adA uswAey ‘N = POUSW JuswiAed ‘g = B10) Aq pasayiid “uondo Jepio %8y gy Aq peuog  uopoaeg
St'pOE St pog _upny Zeig0/ 1 9000£225£9 Adivad ¢elL2I0) €2/2T0T
T T - o 9099z “gpo- 00LE ~0000 -0 2% -0000 - ~99¥5 -L00 -§ ) (1e6g00) €20z
LG'6E ~000-004€-0000-0L.%-0000-0LES-L00 -} (068100) £Z0Z
Fleyelii 26°60¢ npny <e/80/ 1L 80/62225€9 A¥Iva ZZHTIO0L £2/2202
T ‘so9sz ._.5:__,._-08-oo\.lmwoooo-Et..o&.m-movm.ﬁo[m.m.rl (166900) £20z7 )
19°0Z ~000-004€-0000-0L£¥-0000-0LES-L00-€L (068100) £Z0zZ
9Z°19z 97°.82 npny zZ/80/11 496222529 AdIvQ CTITIOL £2/220T
ST o -000 -00.€ -0000 -0} 2 -0000 -9965 -1.00 5] (166900) £207
L9'Eee L9°€LE npny ZeigoiLL PEEBZZTIED AHIVG 22I0ZI0L £2/220T
- T - LoeeE  -000-004€ -0000 0L 2% -0000-6956 <, 00 -5} (166900) €zoz
6204 ~000-00.€-0000-012¥-0000-04ES-L00-EL (068L00) £20Z
000 00'b0F Npny ZZIBO/LL §8480085 AdIVQ ZTI0ZIOL  £2/ZE0T
T T  so'99z ~000-004€ -0000 -0} 27 -0000 -99%6 -100 -} (1e6900) gz0z
L89S 000-00.£-0000-0LLF-Q000-0LES-LO0-EL (068L00) £Z0Z
90°GzE 90°s2e upny Z2/80N1L S6062Z2SE9 Adiva TeLLOL £2/2202
T T [  espbz - -000-00.€ -0000-012% 0000 - @ﬂw;rom...m.r;:_.mlm.moou ¢zoz N
L) 000-004€-0000-04L1-0000-0LES-L00-€L (068100) £20z
Y2 orz 2 Orz Ipny ZZ/30/1LL ¥60BZZZGEY Adiva CeILLI0L £7/2202
LEZTI-GLLEE VD ‘ONSTHS
L£Z1L X089 Od
{1/£02000) AHIVO SHIDNAONd lopuap 198G
,__ow_._o —o mmhw E...oE( uo_o>:__ﬂc._.
T - T T  -000-0028-0000-0}55 -0928 -0000-100 10 (20€100) ez0z
19'G6.'Z O'6GL'E Ipny ZZ/BOILL 22022011 34v0 - DIY103713 TZIL0/LL EZ/ZE0Z
00£.-66856 ¥ ‘OLNINYHOVS
00£.66 XOg
(1/200000) 02 DIYLOTT ANV SYO DIIOVd lopuan pang
X28YD 60802 Junowy sotoAU} 1=oL
T T e - -001-0L18-0000-015 - 7-0118-0000-050-10 (sszio0) s20z
33ddns
60°802 60°80Z PNy Z2/80/L 1 B8ES5F60892 HIVdIY M3 ZZ/LLIOL €2/2202
L079-/Z6V6 Y3 MV LMINHOY
0¥ X089 O'd
{1/280100) ATddNS 30vd JopuaA JoBIG

SO'PSE'8 E:o:._< wo_o>:_ _Bo 1

a::oo ALNNOD 3Unosay yueg ZZ0Z/60/L L - ZZ0T/B0/LL POINPayag

198160y JuswAhey

egpoAedboy




FAVOL bk oGUC UL ANV ITdVONY! 139Y0N YANYINY 10§ pslessuag 12L381Q 100Y2g UOIL POOMUONO) - 810

Gz Jo /i abeg {(A=¢olaz 'N= £90IADY OB A yemug abiey
T3dvDST 0¥5220 = (S)P| yoreg lenosddy ‘A = ¢PIoH UQ ‘N = adAL Jswihed ‘N = poutely Juswiked ‘g = B10) Aq paselid ‘wondo 18PIQ HIBYD Y AQ POLOS  UOKDBieS
i ABYD  £6°ZPYL howy as10AU| je3o L
‘ -000 -00.€ -0000 -0F 2% ~0000 -0LES - 100 -6+ (068100} £207 -
82'9¢ 8Z'9g¥ upny 22/80/L1 9512969 aood ZZ/82I0L  £2/2207
I o A o -000 -002€-0000-0L b -0000-01€5-1.00 -6} (0681007 6202
59'900'} 59'900°1 upny ZZ130/11 $55969 aoo4 ZZIVZI0L £2/2202
8€656 VO WYHING
6901 X0Og8 '0'd
(1/16¥000) HST DIHIDVdONd iopusA eI

WPUD  00°Sp Junowy S9j0AY) [EjO |

“00L-0118-0000-L085-0LL8-0000-020-L0 (¥LZ+00) £20Z
0oSt 00'Gt upny Z2/20/11 8rE6L TONINGD 153d Ze/Le/0L £2/2208
86096 ¥2 ‘ONIGATY
205166 XOd Od

(1/£07000) SHOLYNIWHILXT TYNOISSI0Nd 1GpUsA 18110
¥oays  po'eze‘s Junowy asioAu| [ejo)
- o . eLoz ~-000-004£-0000-0+4¥ -0000-99¥5 1008} (166900) 5203
156E "000-002£-0000-0L4¥ -0000-0LES-L00-EL (068LO0) £20Z
bZ'0LE 1PNy 22/80/11 £820£22559 AMIVG Z2IL0ILL £2/2202
T - eet0s _ ~000 -004€ -0000 -0L 2k -0000 -99%5 -L00 -6} (166900 $205 S
91'5¢ ~000-004€ -0000-01 2% -0000 -0LES 100 -1 (068100) £20Z
| G1'8ee TR 1phy Z2I60/1L 8420822529 Adiva ZZIEOILL £2/220Z
T T 68018 _ -000-002€ -0000-0L4¥ -0000-99¥5-100 -81 (166600 £20% T
1G'6E -000-00.€ 0000 -042% -0000-01ES-L00 -6 (068L00) £20Z
0¥"0SE 0b 0%E pny Z2/601LL 9Pr0EZZSED AMIVG Z2LE0L £2/2202
T - T e T ~000-004E -0000-0L2% -0000-99%S -L00 -€ | (166900) £207 R
L5'BE -000-004€-0000-014F -0000-0LES-L00 -€L (0681,00) £20%
ARSI rARIL Ipny ZZIR0/L ShP0£Z25E9 AMIVA TZLEOL £2/2202
D , -000 -002€ 0000 -0LL¥ -0000 9955 - 100 €} (L66900) $202
6'EPT P6EPT ypny ZZ/B0/L) 2000522569 AMIVT Z2ilTi0L £212202
D T Tegenz ) -000-00.€ -0000 0Lt -0000-99+5 -100 €L (166900 ) 8207 T
09'2¢ -000-004€-0000-0L 2% -0000 -0LES -L00 S} (0681L00) £20Z
{panunuoo) Hpny Z2I80/LL  (panunuoo) 9000£ZZSEY ANV ZeIIT0L £2/2202

:Bowo_oe

Adlva ww_m_ODn_Omn_ .

lopuaa 108410

eaA

220z/60/L1 - £2T0Z/80/L1 palnpayos

J9)s1Boy Juawhey _ espAegboy




WV8E: 1L Z20Z 01 AON (T1IEVONY) TIGVOIN YANVYINY 10} perzieuss J01SIq [ooyas wolu poOMUONOD - BP0

§Z 10 g| 9bey {A =018z 'N = 4201ApY 28D AQ yealg afiey
EPREEER ‘06220 = (S)PI Yojed [eAosddy ‘A = 4DIOH UQ *N = adA | Juawhed ‘N = poys JuswAed ‘g = Big) Aq P3J3)iid “uondo Japi0 %0947 dv Aq papog  usivsieg
TOOHOSINOH
£/°€59 £4'€59 Hpny 2Z/80/LL 20028820 - IWIHILYIN LSNI PBL00-EZ8PY  ZZ/8L/0L £Z/EZ0Z o
§TLE-20LSY VD 'ALID NOSH34ar
G226 X08°'0'd
(L/P£7000) INIZYOVIN DILSYIOHOS JOpUBA oY
¥PUYD  00°052°2 unowy ssteaul jejoL os|y aafojdwz @
00'5/E "00L-01L1L8-0000-1085-0L18~0000-050-10 (/LZv00} £20Z
00°G.E _ “00}L-0L16-0000-1085-0L18-0000-020-L0 (¥LZb00) €20z
00052 00052 upny 2Z/80/1 ) 6422 AYIS NMVYT 728201 £2/ZZ0T
: 00'8.¢ "001L-0L18-0000-1085-0L18-0000-050-10 (Ll1Z¥00) £20Z
00°S.E *001L-0118-0000-,085-0L18-0000-020-1L0 (PLZPOO) £20Z
00°052 00'0S/ Ipny ZZ/80/LL 222 AYIS NMY ZZETI0L €2/Z20T
00°G.E ~00L -0L18-0000-1085-0L18-0000-060-L0 {ZL2v00) £z0Z
00's28 “00L-01t8-0000-4085-0118-0000-020-1L0 {(¢LZF00) €20z
00°052 00052 Hpny ZT/R0L LLZ2 AYIS NMYT ZTISLI0L £2/2202
L0096 VD ‘ONIaaIy
Ha INILHIATOM €488
(5/925000) JHVD NAAYT SINVAY JopusA 8410
HBUD 00056 uNowy a3|0AY] [B]0]
# 118160y ZF200-8Z8bd #Od ajeq yoayD Plyoleg
“HOT-0001 -0LLL -0LEY -0000-00€9-0S0-L0 (5£2100) €207
ANNOYOAY1d
00°056 00'056 upny ge/eoiLL 789.¢ ONIOYIY 1Sv1g ZYZ00-£28YY  22/92/01 €Z/2T0Z 4
8v00-81802 QW ‘NHOI NIgvD
9% X0d Od
(1/¥96600) 971 0D ONIAYIY LYIHD ATIVIN 10PUBA oY |
WAYD 007069 junowry asjoAu| |ejo ),
# 1o1sibioy #F200-628bd #0d 818Q #oayD piyoieg
"l07-0001 -0LLL -0LEY -0000-00E9-020-L0 (2811L00) €20z
9979020
#3AL0OND S3SNI0IN
00'069 00°069 Upny ZZIR0/LL 601957 AN aQvIy Yre00-£28bY  22//Zi0L £Z/270Z7 4
L2LSS NW "iNvd LNIVS
009
318 "UQ YALNID ILYHOLHOD 18zl
(1/801000) ATTVHNLYN Qv3d 10PUBA JY
T < R =

19)s1Bay Juswhed ecphedboy




WVSt-L1 ¢cd0c 0l AON "(T38VOINY) 139VIIN YONYWY 10j pojelauay 123SIQ 100Yas uoluf) poomuonoy - gpo

SZ 106 wmmn_%ilif i . (A = ¢0187 N = Ls0mpypiasy) Aq yeerg ebey
AN NO - REFRBEE] ;ﬁ ‘0rS220 = (S)P] yoleq [eaosddy ‘A = LpIoH UQ ‘N = 8dA] Juswhed ‘N = poujely JuswAed ‘gy = B10) Aq pasayiy ‘uondo Jepig 08y gy Aq papos  uopsaleg
b EEUTL T - TV Junowy s310Au| [ejo ).
T T T 00'00sZh ~00L-001¥-0LLL -508S ~0000-0409 -020-10 (5/£100) 6202
vl “00% -00L¥-04LL-LOLS-0000-0109-020-L0 (950200) ez0z
1s3am
ZrelsTL TreL8'TL upny ZT/80/1L EBS00-EZANI  JHVHS Em_,omn_: ZTELIOL £2/220Z B
00'00S'2) “00L -00L¥ -0iLL -S085-0000-0109-050 -1 0 (£2£100) czoz
aLvll'Lz "001 -00L¥-0L1 L -L0LS-0000-0109-050-10 (650200 ) £202
HLYON
9lLpl9'ce gl ¥L9'ee pmy 2Ti80/11 Z6500-CZAN! FUVHS LO0Iroud ZTELIOL €2/Z20Z
L0096 VO 'ONIadIN
AV YITONDYI 791
(L/650000) NOILLYDNAT 40 ID(440 00 ViSVHS l0puaA 10840
NI L1gzE Winowy a2j0Au| [e3o |
T T T e © -00L-00Z8-0000-015% -0128 -0000 - 00-10 (vszL00) €zoz T
11°26g LL'EBE upny ZZI90fLL ZEBLEONS §301ddNS 1004 ZTILEOL £z/Z207

00} -0026-0000-GLS¥ -0L28 -0000 - 1 0O “L0 {¥szio0) ¢zoz

-00'021L -0004) ipny ce/BO/LL 6.FB880NS OWaW Lia3yo CC/ETIB0 £2/220%
2LLE6 WD TAHLISNANI 40 ALID
8¥Z08 X048 Od

(1218000} 71 SHOLNAIYLSI S Jopus A 100G
N2{YD  plsy unowy asloAul [ejo|
T sy T 6v200-cZ8bd #Od slegweuy pryoieg o -
“001 -0 L€ -0000-0L5¥-0¥9S-01L06-100-L0 (926900) €20z
S311ddns
v G v.'SPh Npry 22601 8¥200-£28%d ONILSIL ISHNN 6¥200-€28vY  E2/L0/L L £2/220Z 4
£2109 71 'SITHVHD 1S
INNIAY FOVTIVM ShLL
(2/285000) ATddNS ISUNN TOOHOS IOPUSA oY
¥93Yyy  ¢£s°g59 Junowy asloau] jejot
T Tesmen T YOLO0-EZ8Pd HOd v yoaus prEg ‘ ‘ . T
001 -0001 -0LLL -OLEY -0000 -00LL -020 -1 0 (z91100) ¢zoz
TOOHOSIWOH
(Penunuog) npny ZZI80/L1 {penupuoo) zoosee2 M - AVIAILYIN LSNI YGLO0-€Z28¥H  ZZ/BLI0L £2/Z20T E
(117 4#000) INIZVOYI OILS

1935169y Juswhey egoAedbay




WY8E:LL ZZ0Z 01 AON '(TIFVONY) TISVOIN YVANYIAY 40} pelessuso J2U3SI(] jooYIg UOILE) POOMUOLI0D - 810

62 §0 0T @bed (A = ¢048Z 'N = ¢201ApY/MOBYD AQ jEaig abey
"39dvIS3 ] ‘0¥5£20 = (8)p| yojeq [eacuddy ‘A = LPIOH UQ ‘N = 8dA] uswhed ‘N = POUBN 1UaWAed '8 = B10) Ag pausig ‘uopdQ J9pI0 ¥08YD dy Aq papog  uonaejes
08096 ¥O ‘4dNT19 43
18 UM 5101
(1/622000} 34YE 2 D07 NOSHIAANY
ALIYNJ3S ANY X207 0D YWYHAL Jopuaa 102410

WD  £1'8L JuNoWy asioau) [ejo)

-000 -009€ -0000-909% -0000-0000-100-10 (661£00) £202
HIONYL NMOUSd
€178l £L'8l Hpny cZ/80/L1 848950 ANFHO 86 S1Yvd cZ/LO/LL €2/2202
22096 YO 'NOSHIANY
Qd Add3d s71vE 0052

” (L/700000) 2# S1HVYd OLNY ¥OTAVL 10pUBA 19240
AO2D  9L'B6E'T Junowy 8310Auf ejo
) - ~000-00LE -0000 -0 L% -0000 -0bEG -400 -} {(068100) £207
-06'GE -06'58 PNy Z2/R0/11 19Z600LEY OWIIW LIgO ZTIR0ILL £2/2202
o - rsoz -000 -00.LE ~0000 -062% -0000 -01£5-100 -} (168100) £202
0r'990'L -000-00.€-0000-0L.¥-0000-0LES-LGO-EL (0621L00) €£€2Z0T
2T ey Hpny zZ2/R0/L) £9PYB6LEE Qoo+ ZZLTI0L £2/220T
) i T z9769 -000-00Z€ -0000-012% -0000 -0L€G-L00-¢} (068100 €202
86°S.¥ -000-00.€ -0000 ~0LS¥ ~0000 -0L€S -L00-€} (688100) £202
09891} 09°891°} pny ZZI80/L1 L00ZB6LEE aoo4 ZzI0ZI0L £2/2207
h T ~ -D00-002€-0000-06Z%-0000-0L£G-100-€1 (L68L00) £202Z
-65°0p -6'op upny ZZ/80/L1 J6LESELEL L1q349 22/02i60 £2/2207
. S - -000 -00.€ -0000 -064% -0000 -0L€S -1 00 -€L (168L00) £20Z T
8968 89'68 upny ZZROML - £5L0L6LEE  SHANIVINOD QOO4 Z2I0LI60 £2/220Z
1008-€1856 VO ‘OLNIANVHOVS
2008€1 XO8 Od
(1/691000) OLNIWYHIVS 40 SOAS 00Od ODSAS IOpUBA 1951(]
v_om.._o oLLe E:oE< 2010AU[ {010}
# iiBey 96L00-€28Fd #0d ajeg HOUD PlzEg i
-00} -004Z 0000 -04S¥ -00£Z -0000-100-L0 (Z$Z100) £202
OLN
Q¥v0S 04 31¥1d
oL'LE 0L°LE Hpny ZZI80/1L1 0/b0L  JWYN dA HLHON 96L00-678%Y Ze/8LI0L £2/2202 4
6190-22096 ¥ 'AOOMNOLLOD
619 X08 Od

:;.mmoooov 02_._.z_w_n_ <mm_m__w Encm> n_,q

acsoo ALNNOD Junoooy yueg _ ZZ0Z/60/1L | - TZOZ/B0/LL P3INPaYDg

19)s1609y Juswhed egohedboy




WVBE'L L 2202 01 AON ‘(739vDINY) TISVOIN YONYIAY 0} paessuss) JoMISIQ |00YIS UoiuN POOMUOCROD - 810
: {A = 0197 'N = £90IADYAPBYD AQ yealy ebeg

gz o |z ebed

I4VD m;.ﬂ ‘076220 = (S)PI Yoleq |eaoiddy ‘A = ¢PIoH UQ ‘N = 9dAL JuswAed ‘N = poujep JusAed ‘gp = b10) Aq paseliid ‘uondo JepIO 08U dy Aq peLog  uonosleg
Zriz 1z upny z2/30/11 50020 TVINILYIN LSNI ZZI9ZI0L €2/220Z
T .  -107-0001-1000 -0kE¥ -€2SE -0000-090-10 (282500) 20z o
AN Zviz 1PNy ZZ/BO/LL 896€20 TYIHILYIN LSNI TTIETIOL  €2/2202
) ,. . - ‘ _ , ‘ , -1971-00LE-L000-0b2b €25} -0000-090-10 (692500) $205 -
768 768 pny zZ2I80/L L LL0EZ0 Qoo ZZIEL0L £2/2202
2£50-91L216 Y3 AHLSNANI 40 ALD
ZES09 X08 'O'd
(2/1.2£000) YNVE SILLNNOI-YL Jopuaa paag
Haayn mw._\_‘_‘.N Junouwy BDI0AUY 1101
T T4 eeibey B2L00€Z8Pd #Od eleQ %380 plotes
-001 -0118-0000-0L5%-0L18-0000-0S0-10 (S52100) £20%
bL2EG __ 1785 PNy Z2IR0/LL 56584 IHLAN SNOIS ALIAVS BLL00-€28vY  2Z/L0/0L £2/220Z
- #ioisiey 8.100-€28%d #Od aleq 408U PIUoteg - B o
~001 -0118-0000-0L5+ ~0L 18 -0000-080-10 (562100) £20Z
L0°628 L0'625 upny zz/80/11 BLSBLIMLANI SNOIS ALTAVS 6LL00-€ZBFY  ZZ/M0/0) €2/2Z0E
o #losBed  §,,00-C28bd #0d e yoeus PrjIeg ,
“001-0L18-0000-0LG¥-04L18-0000-0S0-10 (SSZL00) £20Z
00501 #0°'0S0'L upny ZZ/80/L1 ZPERLINLANI SNOIS ALIAVS BLIO0-CZ8YY ZZ/ET/E0 £2/220Z 4
01809 1 'VIAYLYE
1S3lvis 3222
(1/1201L00) ONI ‘SLONTOMd dOLITHL Jopuan gy
¥o8UD  76'8.8°T Junowy so10AU} [e}o )
| _ R o '-000 ~002€ 0000 -DL/b -0000-0186 -100-51 (068100) s30z T
| 92°922°) 92'9.2°1 wpny z2/80/L1 182697 Qoo+ Z2/8Z/0L £2/2207
_ . _ 00°S6 ~000-00.% -0000 062 -0000 -016G 100 -5} (168100) £20% T
9/°900'} -000-00£€ -0000 012+ -0000-0LES -L00 - (068L00) £Z0Z
9/°104'L 92'104'} Hpny ZZ/80/L1 761682 Qoo4 ZZINZI0lL £2/2202
82656 V3 'O0IHD
LHN0D ALYOHLNOS SEF
{1/56¥000) ANVANOD NOSTIINYG FHL jopuB 1R
¥OBD  £0°81Z Junowry asjoAu [ejo,
- ‘ _ -001 ~0028 -0000 -0LS¥ -0028 -0000 02010 (#72100) §202
£0°8L2Z £0°81Z ypny Z2I80/L1 Ze0Lp SATH Z2I8TI0L €2/2207

{pPanupUGT) (1/622000) 33VS 8 MO0T NOSHIANY

18)s169y Juswihey eGoAedbay




RYEb b Gobe Uk AVN A 1I3EVINYI 138VOIN YANYINY J0) pajesauan 1181 100yoss uolun) poomuopoy - 8v0

SZi0gz mmmn_s--._,.,\.,...-.,._, (A = ¢040Z "N = ¢801ApY 2D Aq yEaug afed
Adv¥Ds1 4 ‘05420 = (s)P| Yojeq [eAouddy ‘A = ¢ploH UG ‘N = 8041 Juswhed ‘N = powpepy JuswAed ‘g = BIQ) Aq pa18yil4 "'uoRdQ JapIQ Yo8yg dy AQ papos  uoppales
22096 Y2 ‘QOOMNOLLOD
QY INIQd SY9 6£90Z
(1/142000) SHYMAYYH 20V 183M AITvA Jopusa peug
$YD  ZLL9L Junoury asjoaur jejo 1 _
e T 6ve - .oool.oog-ooooémv-oooo-Emm -Loo-eL {598100) gzoz a
LO'+ZL ~004 -0118-0000-0LSF -0ZL8-0000-100 -0 (0Gz100) €zoz
04118 060 -009€-0000-1L09¥ -0000-0000-L00 -10 (¢8L€00) £202
¥9'0£0°F v9'080'y zz/R0/LL . sesssgzzTo o Mand _ CZIEMOL £2iz20T -
600 -009€ -0000-L09%-0000-0000-100 -0 (861£00) czoz
8FocL'y 8p9EL's ypny ZZ/80/L L 20P¥56-22 10 13N4 CTISLI0L £2/2202
SrZL-1£256 VO 'dINYD HONINS
Szl X0g Od
{1/010100) WNTTOY.LId DIAIDVd ATTIVA 10pusA 1081
8y  pEee Wnowy asjoau) jejo)
T STy e — -000-0022-0000-1085-002.-0000-,00-40 (sger00) szoz T
t§ee ¥8ce Jpny ZT/80/L ) £6£98 SHE0r CTIELIOL £2/ZZ07
6¥STE 14 ‘HOVYIE NOL VA L8O
661Z X089 Qd
(1/986000) IONVTIAINOD OOVSL INWQ SN loguap 1ozl
y8YD  SEP09's WNoWwYy asioAL) |ejo)
e  zzz08'L “00L -0004 -0LL1 -0L9S-0Z11 -0011-050-10 (126100} £202
£Z'208°L “00L =000} -0L ) -0L9S -0ZLL -00LL -020 -0 {zieLo00) gzoz
Shi0o's S Y09'c Ny ZZ/80/1LL 85687581 SYId0D Ce/LTI0L £Ti2202
8¥0-621€9 OW ‘SINOT 1S
8v¥08. X049 '0'd
{1/855000) IONVNI INTFWLINDI YNVE SN JopusA e
YD Lyl junowy asjoau iejo)
T T T T T o tiz i sve o e ie 0000 0eim s (vosv00) g20z "
S3ddns
00°0% o0 or Ipny ze/R0/) 1 ‘ §96920  ONINVIID ZEIYTI0L €2/2T0Z
“137-00L€-1000-0bLP-€4G) -0000-090-10 (59/¥00) g£zoz
Sepoz Se'boT Npny eeigo/LL ‘ . Oyogzo . Good ] __ee9ToL gerzeor
-107-000} "L000-0LEY-€451 -0000-090-10 (Z8ZH00 ) €207
(panunuoo) Hpny ZZIB0/LL (panunuos} 50920 IVINILYIN LSNI 2Z/9ZI0L £2/2Z07

. @

19)s1B9y JuswAey

{p=nupuon)

(2/126000) NV SIILNAOO-THL
oeq suei ~ o NTE S

egohegbay




WYge- L €202 01 AON “(TA8YINY)

139YON YANVYINY 10} pajelsuas

191351Q [00YIS UOJUR POOMUCHOD - BQ

G Jo g ebed
TANIING

3dvos3 |

‘O¥5LZ0 = {s

)

{A = 20097 'N = £901ApYPIoBYD Ag yeaig sbeg
Pl yoleg leaosddy A = ipIoH O ‘N = 8dA] WswAed ‘N = bowsy JuswiAed gy = Bi10) Aq pessyi ‘uondo 18pI0y Ho8YD dY AQ papog co:om_ww

"001-0L18-0000-0L5¥-0L18-0000-020-+0 (Sv2L00) €202

95z 95T npmy 2280711 66950 S3ddNS LNV 2EILLIOL £2/T20Z
o o , T ~004-0118-0000-0L5¥-0L18-0000-020-10 (S+ZL00) £20% o
€1z £r'1T Hpny z2I80/L1 069520  SIMddNS INIVA 220V £2/2202
o T ) _ ~004-0418-0000-0L5¥-0118-0000-020 10 (SvZ100) 8202 o
69°62 69'62 upny 22IR0/LL 8950  $3MdANS INIVI TUVLIOL £2/2202
o -001-0419-0000-015% 0418 -0000-020-10 (5p2100) €20z
el 5Epl Hphy Z2I80/L 1 P/960  S3IddNS LNIYW 220l 2/T20T
o - -001 -0118-0000-0L6+ -0} 18-0000-020-10 (392100 €207 o
s8'ey se'zy npny Z2/80/L) 9960  S3MddNS LNIVIN Z2/LI0L £2/2208
....... , -001-01+8-0000-0L5% -0 1§ -0000 <020 -10 ($p7106) 6262 -
50'ze 507z 1pny Z2/80/L1 86960  S3ddNS INIVIN TUZLIOL £2/2202
““““ o A - “001-0118-6000-045¥ -0 18 -0000-020-+0 (5vZ100) 6302
\Z'6 126 1pny Z2IR0/L L 0S95/0  S3MddNS INIVIA _TYLUOL €eTE0T
o 4 . . _ ~001-0L18+-0000-0LS%-01 18 -0000-020-10 (Sv2100) £202 o
ZLz A% ypny z2i80/L1 49620 S3NddNS LNIVIN ZZILLI0L £2/2202
‘ . -001-0448-0000-015%-0L L8 -0000-020-10 (Sp2100) 5§30z -
99tz 99'bZ Ipny Z2I80/LL Z¥9SL0  SIMdANS LNIVI ZZILLOL £2/220Z
o o . -001-0418-0000-015%-0L18 -0000-020-10 (S4ZL00) €202
1882 upny Z2I80/L1 92960  $3NddNS LNIVIN Z2I0LI0} £2/T20
S T o o ~004 -0118-0000-0L5¥-0L L8-0000-020-L0 (StZL00) £202 T
85 85' Jpny Z2I80/L1 70950  S3NJdNS INIVW 7200V £27220Z
....... T _A ‘ -00L-0L18-0000-015%-0L18 -0000-020-10 (SpzL00) £202 B
PG pL'g Py Z2i80/L1 £0950  S3NddNS INIVIN 2200 €2IRZ0T
- ‘ o o S -001-0118-0000-045% -0k 18-0000-050-10 (5621007 sz07
8291 87'91 1PNy Z2I80/L 1 16950 S3INAANS INIVIY ZTTI0/0L £2/2202
T ) - 004 -0L18-0000-0LS¥ -0 18-0000-020-10 (SpZ100) §303
98'22 9827 pny Z2igo/LL 689520 S3ddNS LNIVW 22190101 £2/2202
- o -001 -0118-0000-04L5¥ -0L L8 -0000 -080 10 (597100) sz02
seuT 68'/z Jpny ze/801 ) 18860  $31ddNS INIVIA 22190i01 _€2/220T
o T o _ -001-0118-0000-015¥-0118-0000-020-10 (S+2L00) 20z o
06°05 06°05 wpny ZZ/80/ L 26560 . SHIIddNS LNIVI eZ/e0/0L £2/220e
B , A -00}-0418-0000-0157-0118-0000-080-40 (562100) £20z o
8Z'61 8Z'61 upny ZZ/80/L1 1PS60  SIddNS LNIVI TZIE0I0L £2/2207
[ = am:c_i,ue (1/1+Z000) mm<>>om<x 30V me:s ATTVA _iopuaA jasag

aczou ALNNOD E=80< x:mm

1915169y Juswihey

egpAedbay

NNcNB L) - NNQN‘_mQ_‘_._uw_z_omcuw




PAVOL kb GLUG UL AYIN L Iod VUINT) 1daVJIW YUNYINY U DalEIDUIY

12L.481Q 004§ Holuf) pooMuUo}I0g - 870

Gz o e mmmn_i%_e.-.!.s._,, (A= 40197 'N = ¢, 201APYPIOaYD AQ yEBlg efed
ECA A LE| ‘075220 = (S)PI yojed [erciddy ‘A = ¢PIOH UD ‘N = adA | JusliABd 'N = poyiep JuswAed ‘g = BI0) Aq palayiy UORAQ 49pI0 084D dy A PALDS  LoRosjRg
N3 07’52 Junowy 2010Au] 1230
D N -000-00ZZ -0000 -0} 6 -002Z -0000-100-10 (b8€100) 6202 o
02'ET 02'€T pny Zz/80/1) S995¥16166  INOH 7130 INIVIN T2I9TI0L £22T0T
8010-9925. XL ‘SV11vQ
801099 X0Og 'O'd
(2/802000) SSTTTHIM NOZINIA J0puBA 103¢
¥98yD  1Z°501 Junowy ao1oAu) jejo)
, ‘ -000-0004-0L L1 -L08G-0ZbZ -ZZE€-100-10 (066900) 6202
V2503 LZ'50L upny ZZ/80/1) 0Zb1 158166 $10dS 1OH TEILLIOL £2/2208
801079925/ X1 ‘SY11vQ
801099 X09'0'd
(2/802000) SSTITHIM NOZINIA iopuaA 193:1()
N0BUD  peEEs Jnowry 23j0AuUl (ejoL
‘ - -001-0118-0000-01S¥-01 L-0000-020-10 (sbzro0) szoz T
8091 80°91 uphy Z2IR0/L1 S186/0  S3I1ddNS LNV ZTILEDL €2/220C
A ) ‘ -001-0118-0000 -0LSK -0} 18-0000-020-10 (Sv2106) €20z
VL a npny Z2I80/L L 608520  S3MddNS ANIVW ZZI0SI0)L £2/2202
o ) .  -001-0118-0000-0L5%-0L L8-0000 ~0Z0-10 (87400) 6202 .
zze zze JipnY 22130111 8660  S3MddNS LNIVW Ze/8TI0L £2/2202
A ,  -001-0118-0000-01S¥ -0/ 18-0000-020-L0 (Sb2L00) 6202
LE0Z 1802 wpny Z2/80/L1 96/60  S3ANddNS INIVIY 22182101 £2/2202
B - - , -004 -0118-0000-01G% -0+ 18 -0000-020 -40 (SPZL00) 6202
042 0LL Py Zz/80/11 08620  S3IddNS NIV ZTI9TI0L £2/220C
o -001-0118-0000-0+5% -0 L8 -0000-0Z0-10 ($52100) £207
1512 1512 PNy Z2I80/LL 89610  S3NddNS LNIVW Z2/9zi0L . £2/2202
-001-0118-0000-0L57-0L18-0000-020-10 (Sp2100) £20Z
\Z'e 1Z'e upny ZZI801L 1 26450 S3NdNS INIVIN TTEIOL §2/2202
_ _ : ‘_ -001-0418-0000-015%-04+8-0000-020 -0 ($52100) 6207
1Z'gl V281 upny Z2/30/LL 67260  SINAANS LNIVI ZTWE0L £2/2T0T
, _ . -001-0L 18 -0000 -0LS% 0118 -0000-020-10 (8+2L00) 6207
LLO Loy PNy Zz/80/L1 £0/80  S3ddNS LNIVA T2BLOV £2/2207
(panuyuoo) Ipny ZZR0/LL (PoNURUOD) 669620 SAANS LIV ZTLLI0L £2/220T

{panujuos)

JOPUSA 108U

funog - ALNNOD JUNO2Y yueg

Jas169y JuswAiey

::vmooe m_mssoxg,_ m_o< Ema >m._._<>

ecoledboy

Z/60/1L 1 - £2202/80/L1 pPa3Inpaysg




COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP)
Cottonwood Union School District

This CPP is designed to control employees’ exposures to the SARS-CoV-2 virus (severe acute respiratory syndrome
coronavirus 2) that causes COVID-19 (Coronavirus Disease 2019) that may eccur in our workplace.

Date: 11/01/2022

Authority and Responsibility

The Superintendent/Designee has overall authority and responsibility for implementing the provisions of this CPP in our
workplace. In addition, all managers and supervisors are responsible for implementing and maintaining the CPP in their
assigned work areas and for ensuring employees receive answers to questions about the program in a language they
understand.

All employees are responsible for using safe work practices, following all d:rectlves policies and procedures, and
assisting in maintaining a safe work environment.

Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards
We will implement the following in our workplace:

* Conduct workplace-specific evaluations using the Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards form.
* Evaluate employees’ potential workplace exposures to all persons at, or who may enter, our workplace.
* Adhere to the current CDPH Guidelines (Sept. 30, 2022) and Testing Framework for k-12 schools (Aug. 19, 2022)

* Review applicable orders and general and industry-specific guidance from the State of California, Cal/ OSHA, and the
local health department related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention.

* Evaluate existing COVID-19 prevention controls in our workplace and the need for different or additional controls.

* Conduct periodic inspections using the Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections form as needed to identify and evaluate
unhealthy conditions, work practices, and work procedures related to COVID-19 and to ensure compliance with our
COVID-19 policies and procedures,

Employee Participation

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 1 of 19



} _

Employees and their authorized employees’ representatives are encouraged to participate in the identification and
evaluation of COVID-19 hazards by:

* Utilizing email, staff meetings, work order protocols, weekly site admin meetings with head of maintenance, and
weekly district admin meetings. )

Employee Screening

We screen our employees and respond to those with COVID-19 symptoms by:

We ask our employees to self-screen and stay home if showing COVID-19 symptoms. District will screen according to
CDPH guidelines as they change.

Correction of COVID-19 Hazards

Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices or procedures will be documented on the Appendix B: COVID-19
Inspections form, and corrected in a timely manner based on the severity of the hazards, as follows:

District will document inspections, hazards, and steps for corrections in a timely manner indicating who is responsible
for making corrections.

Controls of COVID-19 Hazards

Face Coverings

We will not prevent any employee from wearing a face covering when it is not required unless it would create a safety
hazard, such as interfering with the safe operation of equipment.

Face coverings will also be provided to any employee that requests one, regardless of their vaccination status.
Engineering controls

For indoor locations, using Appendix B, we identify and evaluate how to maximize, to the extent feasible, ventilation
with outdoor air using the highest filtration efficiency compatible with our existing ventilation system, and whether the

use of portable or mounted High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) filtration units, or other air cleaning systems, would
reduce the risk of transmission by: :

Portabie HEPA air filtration systems have been placed throughout the facilities for improved ventilation.

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 2 of 19




Cleaning and disinfecting

We implement the following cleaning and disinfection measures for frequently touched surfaces and objects, such as
doorknobs, elevator buttons, equipment, tools, handrails, handles, controls, phones, headsets, bathroom surfaces, and
steering wheels:

Although we will continue to maintain our cleaning protocols, the cleaning and disinfecting requirements for COVID
were deleted (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 8, § 3205(c)(7))

Should we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will implement the following procedures:

Hand sanitizing

In order to implement effective hand sanitizing procedures, we:

Distributing hand-sanitizer and soap in every classroom and common areas.

Posting signage about proper hand-washing.

Encouraging hand washing before students eat and after recess.

Modeling proper hand washing protocols with students.

Encouraging and allowing time for employee and student hand-washing.

Providing employees with an effective hand sanitizer, and prohibit hand sanitizers that contain methanol (i.e. methyl
alcohol).

Encouraging employees and students to wash their hands for at least 20 seconds each time.

Personal protective equipment (PPE) used to control employees’ exposure to COVID-19

We evaluate the need for PPE (such as gioves, goggles, and face shields) as required by CCR Title 8, section 3380, and
provide such PPE as needed.

Upon request, we provide respirators for voluntary use to all employees who are not fully vaccinated and who are
working indoors or in vehicles with more than one person.

All employees have necessary PPE to fulfill their job duties {including eye protection and respiratory protection when
necessary) The district has ample suppiy of face masks, face shields with drapes, gloves, goggles and disposable gowns
for identified personnel assisting with health protocols.

We provide and ensure use of respirators in compliance with section 5144 when deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA.

We also provide and ensure use of eye and respiratory protection when employees are exposed to procedures that may
aerosolize potentially infectious material such as saliva or respiratory tract fluids.
COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 3 of 19




Testing of symptomatic employees

We make COVID-19 testing available at no cost to all employees who had close contact in the workplace and have
COVID-19 symptoms, during employees’ paid time.

Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases

We have developed effective procedures to investigate COVID-19 cases that include seeking information from our
employees regarding COVID-19 cases, close contacts, test results, and onset of symptoms. This is accomplished by using
the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form. '

We also ensure the following is implemented:

COVID-19 over the counter tests are made available to all employees weekly or as requested.
Offer COVID-19 testing during an outbreak or major outbreak as required by CalOSHA.
Inform employees regarding quarantine instructions.

Provide written notice as needed via district email.

System for Communicating

Our goal is to ensure that we have effective two-way communication with our employees, in a form they can readily
understand, and that it inciudes the following information:

*  Who employees should report COVID-19 symptoms and possible hazards to, and how:

Employees will report illness to our COVID 19 Coordinator and Principal for planning of adequate staffing and to identify
if the symptom is a COVID identified symptom and if isolation/quarantine is necessary. If the illness is identified as a
COVID symptom, the employee will be counseled on isolation/quarantine, return to work date, and report the absence
in Ready Sub and prepare lesson plans.

Our COVID 19 Coordinator will work with the Principal to notify the local public heaith department of an outhreak and
send notifications to staff, students, and parents.

All employees will receive regular up to date communication via email and/or school messenger for District wide
applicable communication. Additionally, site and district communication will be sent to staff and families regarding

positive COVID cases.

Employees can report any immediate concerns to the site Administrator and Head Custodian.

e That employees can report symptoms and hazards without fear of reprisal.

COVID-18 Prevention Program Page 4 of 19



« How employees with medical or other conditions that put them at increased risk of severe COVID-19 illness can
request accommodations.

e Access to COVID-19 testing when testing is required:

COVID-19 testing will continue to be made available to all employees with COVID-19 symptoms. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 8, §

3205(c{7){D)).

e  The COVID-19 hazards employees (including other employers and individuals in contact with our workplace) may be
exposed to, what is being done to control those hazards, and our COVID-19 policies and procedures.

With the help of the COVID Coordinator, staff will be provided with options for on-site testing.

The Site Administrator will communicate with their site employees that were exposed or involved in an outbreak
designation and plan the for testing. '

This communication will be followed up within 24 hours with the formal notice.

Testing will be offered on site within 24 hours for exposed employees or in an outbreak.

Information about COVID-19 hazards has been communicated through signage, notes, and calls home, as well as various
technology notifications:

Templated notifications have been developed and distributed.

Record keeping procedures are in place, and employees and students are notified when they are required to quarantine
and for what duration.

The staff has received training in social distancing, mask wearing, frequent hand washing and sanitizing, and
confidentiality requirements. They have been instructed to contact the COVID Coordinator if experiencing symptoms or
believe they are a close contact, Staff will be provided with options for testing on-site.

Communication will be sent via email or auto-dialer to affected employees and/or student's families within one day of
known exposure. On-going District communication will be provided via website and/or auto-dialer.

Training and Instruction

We will provide effective training and instruction that includes:

e Our COVID-19 policies and procedures to protect employees from COVID-19 hazards, and how to
participate in the identification and evaluation of COVID-19 hazards.

e Information regarding COVID-19-related benefits {including mandated sick and vaccination leave) to which
the employee may be entitled under applicable federal, state, or local laws.

s The fact that:
o COVID-19 is an infectious disease that can be spread through the air.

_ ¢ COVID-19 may be transmitted when a person touches a contaminated object and then touches their
eyes, nose, or mouth.

COViD-19 Prevention Program Page 5 of 19




©  Aninfectious person may have no symptoms.

¢ The fact that particles containing the virus can travel more than six feet, especially indoors, so physical
distancing, face coverings, increased ventilation indoors, and respiratory protection decrease the spread of
COVID-19 and are most effective when used in combination.

* The right of employees that are not fully vaccinated to request a respirator for voluntary use, without fear of
retaliation, and our policies for providing the respirators. Employees voluntarily using respirators will be trained
according to section 5144{(c)(2) requirements:
¢ How to properly wear them.
© How to perform a seal check according to the manufacturer’s instructions each time a respirator is worn,

and the fact that facial hair can interfere with a seal.

* The importance of frequent hand washing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds and using hand
sanitizer when employees do not have immediate access to a sink or hand washing facility, and that hand
sanitizer does not work if the hands are soiled.

* Proper use of face coverings and the fact that face coverings are not respiratory protective equipment. Since
COVID-19 is an airborne disease, N95s and more protective respirators protect the users from airborne
disease, while face coverings primarily protect people around the user.

o The conditions where face coverings musts be worn at the workplace.

© That face coverings are additionally recommended outdoars for people who are not fully vaccinated if six
feet of distance cannot be maintained.

o Empioyees can request face coverings and can wear them at work regardless of vaccination status and
without fear of retaliation.

* COVID-19 symptoms, and the importance of obtaining a COVID-19 test and not coming to work if the
employee has COVID-19 symptoms.

* Information on our COVID-19 policies and how to access COVID-19 testing and vaccination, and the fact that
vaccination is effective at preventing COVID-19, protecting against both transmission and serious illness or
death.

Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster will be used to document this training.

Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases

Where we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will limit transmission by:

* Ensuring that COVID-19 cases are excluded from the workplace until our return-to-work requirements are met.
* Excluding employees that had a ciose contact from the workplace until our return-to-work criteria have been
met, with the following exceptions:

o Employees who were fully vaccinated before the close contact and who do not develop COVID-19
symptoms, provided they wear a face covering and maintain six feet of physical distance from others in
the workplace for 14 days following the last date of close contact.

o COVID-19 cases who returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained free of
COVID-19 symptoms do not need to be excluded from the workplace for 90 days after the initial onset
of COVID-19 symptoms, provided they wear a face covering and maintain six feet of distance from
others in the workplace for 14 days following the last date of close contact.

o COVID-19 cases who returned to work per our return-to-work criteria who never developed COVID-19
symptoms do not need to be excluded from the workplace for 90 days after the first positive test,
provided they wear a face covering and maintain six feet of distance from others in the workplace for

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 6 of 19



o hcENoA

14 days following the last date of close contact.

* If we do not exclude an employee who had a close contact as permitted by the above three exceptions, we will
provide the employee with information about any applicable precautions recommended by CDPH for individuals
with close contact.

* For employees excluded from work, continuing, and maintaining employees’ earnings, wages, seniority, and all other
employees’ rights and benefits, This will be accomplished by

Access to district provided sick leave

Access to differential pay, when eligible

Access to another other federal and/or state provided COVID-19 leave (when applicable)
Coordination with other benefits if the employee is entitled to such benefits such as disability leave

* Providing employees at the time of exclusion with information on available benefits.

Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Access

It is our policy to:

¢ Report information about COVID-19 cases and outbreaks at our workplace to the local health
department whenever required by law, and provide any related information requested by the local
health department. _

¢ Maintain records of the steps taken to implement our written COVID-19 Prevention Program in
accordance with section 3203(b).

* Make our written COVID-19 Prevention Program available at the workplace to employees, authorized
employee representatives, and to representatives of Cal/OSHA immediately upon request.

* Use the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form to keep a record of and track all COVID-19 cases.

e Allvisitors/volunteers/mentors must register in the school office to be cleaned through the districts raptor
system.

All visitors, volunteers, and mentors must register in the school office

Return-to-Work Criteria

COViID-19 cases with symptoms will not return to work until all the following have occurred:

O At least 24 hours have passed since a fever of 100.4 °F. or higher has resolved without the use of fever-
reducing medications, and
o COVID-18 symptoms have improved, and
© At least 5 days have passed since COVID-19 symptoms first appeared and employee tests.
e COVID-19 cases who tested positive but never developed symptoms will not return to work until a minimum
of 5 days have passed since the date of specimen collection of their first positive COVID-19 test.
* Anegative COVID-19 test will be required for an employee to return to work once the requirements for “cases
with symptoms” or “cases who tested positive but never developed symptoms” {above) have been met.
* Persons who had a close contact may return to work as follows
o Test negative and remain symptom-free.
o Close contact with symptoms: when the “COVID-19 cases with symptoms” criteria (above) have been
met.

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 7 of 19




If an order to isolate, quarantine, or exclude an employee is issued by a local or state health official, the
employee will not return to work until the period of isalation or quarantine is completed or the order is lifted.

Superintendent, Doug Geren 11/01/2022

Title of Owner or Top Management Representative Signature Date

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 8 of 19




Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards

Evaluation of potential workplace exposure will be to all persons at the workplace or who may enter the workplace,
including coworkers, employees of other entities, members of the public, customers or clients, and independent
contractors. We will consider how employees and other persons enter, leave, and travel through the workplace, in
addition to addressing stationary work.

Person Conducting the Evaluation:

Date:

Name(s) of Employees and Authorized Employee Representative that Participated:

work task process,, _ e - . exposurés and em'p'ldyée's Exlstmg and/or addltlonal".
equupment and material T affected, including - | . COVID-19 prevention
- - Placesandtimes - -
that potentlallv exposes | © . T __members of the. publlc and controls includlng barrlers
employees to COVID-19 o s I employees of other partltlons and ventalatnon
hazards | 2 ol employers S

COVID-19 Prevention Program . Page 9 of 19




Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections

Date:

Name of Person Conducting the Inspection:

Work Location Evaluated:

S E#éoé’u'r'e'anftr._ol's'__ e ~ Status’. ' '| ‘Person Assigned to Correct .|~ :Date Cotrected.
Engineering
lati P .
Ventilation _(amo‘unt of -res.h A" Good Maintenance Team
and fiftration maximized)
Additional room air filtration | Good Maintenance Team
Administrative
Surface cleaning and
disinfection (frequently enough | Good Custodians
and adequate supplies)
Hand washing facilities
{adequate numbers and | Good Custedians
supplies)
Disinfecting and hand sanitizing
solutions being used according | Good Custodians
to manufacturer instructions
7 o Ex:pdsugé.cbntrdls , N $t'at_u§ | Person Assigned tp"éorfé_i:t" | ‘Date Corrected ™" -
PPE (not shared, available and
being worn)
Face coverings (cleaned L
d P I/5t
sufficiently often) Goo rincipal/Staff
Gloves | Good Principal/Staff
Face shields/goggles |Good Principal/Staff
Respiratory protection | Good Principal/Staff

*|dentify and evaluate how to maximize ventilation with outdoor air; the highest level of filiration efficiency compatible
with the existing ventilation system; and whether the use of portable or mounted HEPA filtration units, or other air
cleaning systems, would reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. Review applicable orders and guidance from the
State of California and local health departments related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention have been reviewed,
including the CDPH Interim Guidance for Ventilation, Filtrations, and Air Quality in indoor Environments and information

COVID-19 Prevention Program

Page 10 of 19



i i _

specific to your industry, location, and operations. We maximize the quantity of outside air provided to the extent
feasible, except when the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Air Quality Index is greater than 100 for
any pollutant or if opening windows or maximizing outdoor air by other means would cause a hazard to employees, for
instance from excessive heat or cold.

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 11 of 19




i _

Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases

All personal identifying information of COVID-19 cases or persons with COVID-19 symptoms, and any employee required
medical records will be kept confidential unless disclosure is required or permitted by law. Un-redacted information on
COVID-19 cases will be provided to the local health department, CDPH, Cal/OSHA, the National Institute for
Occupational Safety and Health {NIOSH) immediately upon request, and when required by law.

Date:

Name of Person Conducting the Investigation:

Name of COVID-19 case
{employee or non-
employee*) and contact

Occupation {if non-
employee, why they were
in the workplace}:

information:
Names of
employees/representatives Date investigation was

involved in the initiated:
investigation: '

Locations where the COVID-
19 case was present in the
workplace during the high-
risk exposureperiod, and

Date and time the COVID-19
case was last present and
excluded from the

kplace:
activities being performed: workplace
Date of the positive or Date the case first had one
negative test and/or or more COVID-19
diagnosis:. symptoms, if any:

Information received
regarding COVID-19 test
results and onset of
symptoms (attach
documentation):

Summary determination of who may have had a close contact with the COVID-19 case during the high-risk exposure
period. Attach additional information, including:

The names of those found to be in close contact.
¢ When testing was offered, including the results and the names of those that were exempt from testing

because: '

o They returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained symptom free for 90days (or a
different period than 90 days if it is required by a CDPH regulation or order) or, for those that never
developed symptoms, for 90 days (or a different period than 90 days if it is required by a CDPH regulation
or order) after the initial positive test.

® The names of those close contacts that were excluded per our Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Employees who
had a Close Contact requirements.
e The names of those close contacts exempt from exclusion requirements because:

o They were fuily vaccinated before the close contact and did not develop COVID-19 symptoms, and are required
to wear a face covering and maintain six feet of distance from others at the workplace for 10 days following
the last date of close contact.

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 12 of 19




o They returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained symptom free, and are required
to wear a face covering and maintain six feet of physical distance from others at the workplace for 10
days following the last date of close contact.

o They never developed symptoms and are required to wear a face covering and maintain six feet of
physical distance from others at the workplace for 14 days following the last date of close contact.

COVID-19 Prevention Program _ Page 13 of 19




- AcEDA

Notice given {within one business day, in a way that does not reveal any personal identifying information of the
COVID-19 case) of the potential COVID-19 exposure to:

All employees who may Date:
have had COVID-19
exposure and their |y, e of employees that were

authorized notified:
representatives.

Independent contractors Date:
and other employers
present at the workplace | oy a5 of individuals that were
during the high-risk notified:
exposure period.

What were the workplace
conditions that could have
contributed to the risk of
COVID-19 exposure?

Was local health
department notified?
*Should an employer be made aware of a non-employee infection source COVID-19 status.

What could be done to
reduce exposure to
COVID-19?

Date:

COViD-19 Prevention Program Page 14 of 19



Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster

Date:

Name of Person Conducting the Training:

(RS "l_:"mpl'ovée Name -

1_..',':-_"_)'Sc_i'g_h_at_t_l'rg_'_._ :j‘_':_:: SEIN

COVID-19 Prevention Program

Page 15 of 19




Additional Consideration #3

COVID-19 Prevention in Employer-Provided Housing

Assignment of housing units

We, to the extent feasible, reduce employee exposure to COVID-19 by assigning employee residents to distinct groups
and ensure that each group remains separate from other such groups during transportation and work. Shared housing
unit assignments are prioritized in the following order:

¢ Residents who usually maintain a household together outside of work, such as family members, will be
housed in the same housing unit without other perseons.

* Residents who work in the same crew or work together at the same workplace will be housed in thesame
housing unit without other persons.

» Employees who do not usually maintain a common household, work crew, or workplace will be housedin the
same housing unit only when no other housing alternatives are feasible.

Ventilation

We ensure maximization of the quantity and supply of outdoor air and increase filtration efficiency to the highest level
compatible with the existing ventilation system in housing units. If there is not a Minimum Efficiency Reporting Value
(MERV) 13 or higher filter in use, portable or mounted HEPA filtration units are used, where feasible, in all sleeping
areas.

Face coverings
We provide face coverings to all residents and provide information to residents on when they should be used in
accordance with state or local health officer orders or guidance,

Cleaning and disinfection
We will ensure that:
¢ Housing units, kitchens, bathrooms, and common areas are effectively cleaned to prevent the spread of
COVID-19. Housing units, kitchens, bathrooms, and indoor common areas are cleaned and disinfected after a
COVID-19 case was present during the high-risk exposure period, if another resident will be there within 24
hours of the COVID-19 case.

s Cleaning and disinfecting is done in a manner that protects the privacy of residents.
» Residents are instructed to not share unwashed dishes, drinking glasses, cups, eating utensils, and similar
items.

Screening
We wiil encourage residents to report COVID-19 symptoms to:

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 16 of 19




COVID-19 testing
We establish, implement, maintain and communicate to residents’ effective policies and procedures for COVID-19
testing of residents who had a close contact. All residents will be tested should there be three or more COVID-19 cases

in 14 days.

COVID-19 cases and close contacts
We:

s Effectively quarantine residents who have had a close contact from all other residents. Effective quarantine
includes providing residents who had a close contact with a private bathroom and sleepingarea, except for
COVID-19 cases who have met our return-to-work criteria and have remained asymptomatic:

o For90days after the initial onset of symptoms,
¢ For 90 days after the first positive test for COVID-19 cases who never developed symptoms.

e Effectively isolate COVID-19 cases from all residents who are not COVID-19 cases. Effective isolationincludes
housing COVID-19 cases only with other COVID-19 cases and providing COVID-19 case residents with a
sleeping area and bathroom that is not shared by non-COVID-19-case residents.

e Keep confidential any personal identifying information regarding COVID-19 cases and persons with

COVID-19 symptoms, in accordance with our CPP Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases.
End isolation in accordance with our CPP Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Return to WorkCriteria, and any
applicable local or state health officer orders

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 17 of 19




Additional Consideration #4

COVID-19 Prevention in Employer-Provided Transportation to and from Work

Assignment of transportation

To the extent feasible, we reduce exposure to COVID-19 hazards by assigning employees sharing vehicles to distinct

groups and ensuring that each group remains separate from other such groups during transportation, during work

activities, and in employer-provided housing. We prioritize shared transportation assighments in the foliowing order:

¢+ Employees residing in the same housing unit are transported in the same vehicle.

* Employees working in the same crew or workplace are transported in the same vehicle.

¢ Employees who do not share the same household, work crew ar workplace are transported in the samevehicle
only when no other transportation alternatives are feasible.

Face coverings and respirators
We will ensure that the:
¢ Face covering requirements of our CPP Face Coverings are followed for employees waiting for
transportation, if applicable.
s All employees are provided with a face covering, which must be wornunless an exception under our CPP
Face Coverings applies.
* Upon request, we provide respirators for voluntary use in compliance with subsection 5144(c)(2) to all
employees in the vehicle who are not fully vaccinated.

Screening
We develop, implement, and maintain effective procedures for screening and excluding drivers and riders with COVID-
19 symptoms prior to boarding shared transportation.

Cleaning and disinfecting
We will ensure that:

o All high-contact surfaces {door handles, seatbelt buckles, armrests, etc.) used by passengers are cleaned to
prevent the spread of COVID-19 and are cleaned and disinfected if used by a COVID-19 case during the high-
risk exposure period, when the surface will be used by another employee within 24 hours of the COVID-19
case.

e All high-contact surfaces used by drivers, such as the steering wheel, armrests, seatbelt buckles, deor handles
and shifter, are cleaned to prevent the spread of COVID-19 between different drivers and are disinfected after
use by a COVID-19 case during the high-risk exposure period, if the surface will be used by another employee
within 24 hours of the COVID-19 case.

COVID-19 Prevention Program Page 18 of 19




*  We provide sanitizing materials, training on how to use them properly, and ensure they are kept in
adequate supply.

Ventilation
We ensure that vehicle windows are kept open, and the ventilation system is set to maximize outdoor air and not set to
recirculate air. Windows do not have to be kept open if one or more of the following conditions exist:
* The vehicle has functioning air conditioning in use and excessive outdoor heat would create a hazard to
employees.
¢ The vehicle has functioning heating in use and excessive outdoor cold would create a hazard to
employees.
* Protection is needed from weather conditions; such as rain or snow.

¢ The vehicle has a cabin air filter in use and the U.S. EPA Air Quality Index for any pollutant is greaterthan
100.

Hand hygiene

We provide hand sanitizer in each vehicle and ensure that all drivers and riders sanitize their hands before entering and
exiting the vehicle. Hand sanitizers with methyl alcohol are prehibited.

COVID-19 Prevention Program ' Page 19 of 19




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Regulation 4161.5: Military.Lea\fe o " ' _ . S.tai';us_':..AD_OPTED _

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2004 | Last Revised Date: 0209/01/20062022 | Last Reviewed Date:
0709/01/20062022 R R

CSBA NOTE: Employment and re-employment rights of employees who take military leave of absence
are protected by the federal Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA),
38 USC 4301-4334. The district may not refuse to grant military leave, regardless of the length of
employment or whether the employee volunteers for military service or is called up involuntarily.

The USERRA applies to all employees, except for personsindividuals employed for a brief, nonrecurrent
period for which there was no reasonable expectation that such employment would continue
indefinitely or for a significant period. i appears that the statute includes temporary certificated and
WWaWﬁWWBMMmeW
legal counsel:

20 CFR 1002.149-1002.150 and 1002.210-1002.213 and guidelines issued by the Veterans'Veterans’
Employment and Training Service (VETS) of the U.S, Department of Labor, “A Non-Technical Resource
Guide to the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act;,” clarify that federal law
generally protects seniority-based benefits (i.e., a right or benefit that is determined by or that accrues
with length of service) that would have accrued "with reasonable certainty" had the employee remained
continuously employed. Non-seniority-based benefits are generally protected to the same extent that
those benefits are preserved during comparable kinds of leave under local policies or state law. The
district should consult legal counsel regarding any questions about entitlements to benefits. '

Note that in cases where state law provides greater protections to employees, state law supersedes
federal law. In addition, the district should consult its collective bargaining agreements to determine if
the bargaining agreements provide greater military leave benefits than provided by law and should
modify or delete the following optional regulation accordingly.

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable state and federal law to employees
performing military duties on a voluntary or involuntary basis in a uniformed service, including active
duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty training, full-time National
Guard duty, examination to determine fitness for duty, and performance of funeral honors duty.
(Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.01, 395.02, 395.05, 395.1, 395.2, 395.9;
38 USC 4301, 4303, 4316)

An Any district employee who needs to be absent from the district service to fulfill histher military
service shall provide advance written or verbal notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless the
giving of such notice is preciuded by military necessity or is otherwise impossible or unreasonable. (38
USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.85, 1002.86)

Salary/Compensation

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Military and Veterans Code 395.01-395.05, employees on military leave are
entitled to receive their salary or compensation for a maximum of 30 calendar days for any one leave or
during one fiscal year. However, Military and Veterans Code 395.03 allows the Governing Board to




 heeNmA

an employee who is on active military duty as a member of the California National Guard or a U.S.
Military Reserve organization, for up to 180 days, the difference between the amount of the military pz
and allowances and the employee's salary.

The following paragraph shouid be revised to reflect decisions of the Board, if any, to extend
compensation beyond 30 days’ pay.

An employeeThe district shall receive hisfherpay an emplovee’s salary or compensation for the first 30
days of any one absence for military leave or during one fiscal year, under any of the following condition

1. Active Military Training or Exercises: The employee is granted a temporary military leave of
absence to engage in ordered military duty for purposes of active military training, encampment,
naval cruises, special exercises, or like activity as a member of the reserve corps or force of the
United States Armed Forces, National Guard, or Naval Militia, provided that: {Military and
Veterans Code 389, 395, 395.01)

a. He/sheThe employee has been employed by the district for at least one year immediately
prior to the day the military leave begins.

b. The ordered duty does not exceed 180 days, including time involved in going to and
returning from such duty.

2. Active Military Duty: The employee is on military leave, other than a temporary military leave, c
engage in active military duty as a member of the reserve corps or force of the United States
Armed Forces, the National Guard, or the Naval Militia, provided that he/shethe employee has
been employed by the district for at least one year immediately prior to the day the military leave
begins. (Military and Veterans Code 389, 395.02)

3. War or Other Emergency: The employee, however long employed by the district, is a member of
the National Guard who is engaged in military or naval duty during a state of extreme emergency
as declared by the Governor, or during such time as the National Guard may be on active duty in
situations described in Military and Veterans Code 146, including travel time to and from such
duty. (Military and Veterans Code 395.05)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Military and Veterans Code 395 and 395.01, the district has discretion as to
whether or net to compensate employees are compensated for military leave for periods of inactive
duty training. Optional iterltem #4 is for use by districts that choose to provide compensation to such
employees. :

4. Inactive Duty Training: The employee is a member of the reserve corps or force of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or Naval Militia who is engaged in temporary inactive duty
training, provided that he/shethe employee has been employed by the district for at least one
year immediately prior to the day the military leave begins and the ordered duty does not exceed
180 days, including time involved in going to and returning from such duty.

CSBA NOTE: When calculating whether the employee has been employed by the district for a minimum
of one year for purposes of determining the employee's right to a paid military leave of absence
pursuant to #emsltems #1, 2, and 4 above, anthe Attorney General epinien {opined in 77

Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 209 (1994)} states), that all prior military service is to be counted as public agency
service (i.e., the military service is "tacked on" to the amount of time employed in the district), even
when a period of time lapses between the military service and district employment. However, as opined
by the Attorney General in 18 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 178 (1951}, an employee may not "tack on" prior
employment in another district (48 Ops-CalAtty-Gen. 178 (4951, If a question arises as to whether
prior service should be counted, district legal counsel should be consulted.




employment shall be included.

For classified employees, 30 days' compensation shall be one month's salary. For certificated employees,
30 days' compensation shall be one-tenth of the employee's annual salary. (Education Code 45059)

WW%WWM%WM&%WMWM&
non-paying months of the year:
&M&WMM%MEWWM&%&WW#
the year

During the period of military leave, an employee may; upen his/her ewn request; to use any vacation or
similar paid leave accrued before the commencement of the military leaves in order to continue receiving
compensation for the employee's employment with the district. The district shall not require the
employee to use such leave. (38 USC 4316; 20 CFR 1002.153)

Benefits

An employee may elect to continue histher health plan coverage during the military leave. The maximum
period of coverage for the employee and histherany dependents shall be either 24 months from the
beginning of the leave or until the day after the employee fails to apply for or return to employment,
whichever is less. (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.164) '

An employee on military leave may be required to pay the employee cost, if any, of any funded benefit to
the extent that other employees on leave are so required. (38 USC 4316}

An employee absent for 30 days or fewer shall not be required to pay more than the employee share for
such coverage. An employee absent for 31 days or more may be required to pay not more than 102
percent of the full premium under the plan. (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.166)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is for use by any district whose Board has taken action to
extend benefits tofor up to 180 days to employees who are on active military duty as members of the
California National Guard or a U.S. Military Reserve organization, as authorlzed but not required, by
Education Code 44018.

Any employee called into active military duty as a member of the California National Guard or a United
States Military Reserve orgahization shall receive, for up to 180 days, the difference between the amount
of his/herthe employee’s military pay and the amount the employee would have received from the
district and all benefits that the employee would have received if he/she had the employee not been
called to active military duty, unless the benefits are prohibited or limited by vendor contracts.

(Education Code 44018)

Vacation and Sick Leave Accrual

An employee on temporary military leave under the conditions described in #em #% Active Military
Training or Exercises;item #1 in the section entitled "Salary/Compensation” above, shall continue to
accrue the same vacation, sick leave, and holiday privileges to which he/shethe employee would
otherwise be entitled if not absent. (Military and Veterans Code 395}

An employee on military leave who is serving in active duty in time of war, national emergency, or United
Nations military or police operation shall not accrue sick leave or vacation leave during the period of such



o _

Other Emergeney;ltem #3 in the section entitled "Salary/Compensation” above, shall not suffer any loss
or diminution of vacation or holiday privileges because of histherthe emplovee’s leave of absence.
{Military and Veterans Code 395.05)

Pension Plan Service Credit

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 20997, emplovers that participate in the California Public
Emplovees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) are required to inform employees who are CalPERS members,
of the rights of returning military veterans to receive employer-paid service credits for the period of
active military service,

Pension plan service credit and vesting shall continue during an employee's military leave as though no
break in service had occurred. Payment of employer and employee contributions shall be made in
accordance with law for members of the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees’
Retirement System. (Education Code 22850-22856; Government Code 20990-21013)

Employment Status

CSBA NOTE: Employees on military leave are deemed to be on furlough or leave of absence, pursuant to
20 CFR 1002.149 and, during the period of military leave, maintain non-seniority rights and benefits
generally provided by the employer to other emplovees with similar seniority, status, and pay who are on
furlough or leave of absence. However, pursuant to Education Code 44800 and Military and Veterans
Code 395, absence due to military leave may not be counted in satisfaction of an uncompleted
probationary period. '

Absence for military leave shall not affect the classification of any eertificated employee. In the case of 3
€ertificated probationary employee, the period of such absence shall not count as part of the service
required to obtain permanent status, but shall not be construed as a break in the continuity of service for
any purpose. (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395: 20 CFR 1002.149)

Reinstatement Rights

At the conclusion of the military duty, an employee shall be promptly reinstated in the position held at
the beginning of the leave, at the salary to which he/shethe employee would otherwise have been
entitled, except under the conditions noted below- in this section. (Education Code 44800; Military and
Veterans Code 395, 395.2; 38 USC 4304, 4313; 20 CFR 1002.180-1002.181)

Any employee who performs active military duty in time of war, national emergency, or United Nations
military or police operation has a right to return to histherthe position held prior to the military service,
during terminal leave prior to the employee’s discharge, separation, or release from the armed forces, or
within six months of arthe emplovee’s release, separation, honorable discharge, or placement on inactive
duty. Reinstatement rights shali not be extended to any such employee who fails to return within 12
months after the first date upon which he/shethe employee could terminate or could cause to behave
terminated his/her active service, (Education Code 44800: Military and Veterans Code 395.1)

When an empioyee has been on military leave for reasons other than war or national emergency, the time
frame for seeking reinstatement shall depend on the length of military service as follows: (38 USC 4312;
20 CFR 1002.115, 1002.118)

1. For aleave of 30 days or fewer, the employee shall report for duty no later than the beginning of
the first full work day following the completion of the military service; provided the employee has

mliie A narind Af ainht hanire tanf rack fallmarina « narimd far cafa Francrnartatinm A hic fharkbla



2. Foraleave of 31-180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for
reinstatement not later than 14 days after the completion of military service.

3. For aleave of more than 180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for
reinstatement within 90 days after the compietion of military service.

In eases where Where an employee’s reporting or application for reinstatement within the periods
specified in i#emsltems #1 and #2 above is impossible or unreasonable through no fault of the employee
he/shethe report or application shall repertbe made as soon as possible after the expiration of the perio
In the case of Items #2 and #3 where an application is required, the employee’s application may be mad
orally or in writing and need not follow any particular format. (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.115,
1002.117,1002.118)

An employee who is hospitalized for, or convalescing from, an illness or injury incurred in or aggravated
during the performance of military service shall report for duty or submit an application for reinstatemer
at the end of the period that is necessary fo recover from such illness or injury, but no more than two
years after the completion of military service unless circumstances beyond the employee's control make
reporting within the two-year period impossible or unreasonable. (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.116)

Upon receiving an application for reinstatement, the Superintendent or designee shall reinstate the
employee as soon as practicable under the circumstances of histherthe case, but within a time period no
to exceed two weeks, absent unusual circumstances. {20 CFR 1002.181)

If the employee’s previous position has been abolished, he/shethe district shall be reinstatedreinstate the
employee in a position of like seniority, status, and pay, if such position exists, or to a comparable vacant
position for which he/shethe employee is qualified. (Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.1; 38 USC
4313; 20 CFR 1002.192)

An employee failingwho fails to report or apply for reinstatement within the appropriate period does not
automatically forfeit his/her rights;the entitlement to reinstatement but shall be subject to the
Beard'sdistrict’s rules and/or practices governing unexcused absences. (38 USC 4312)

The Superintendent or designee may elect not to reinstate an employee foilowing military leave if any of
the following conditions exists:

1. The district's circumstances have so changed as to make such re-employment impossible or
unreasonable, such as a reduction in force that would have included the employee. (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)

2. The accommodation, training, or effort described in 38 USC 4313(a)(3), (a)(4), or {b)(2)(B) would
impose an undue hardship on the district as defined in 20 CFR 1002.5 or 1002.198. (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)

3. The employee's position was for a brief, nonrecurrent period and there was no reasonable
expectation that such employment will continue indefinitely or for a significant period. (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)

4. The employee's cumulative length of absence and length of all previous military leave while
employed with the district exceeds five years, excluding those training and service obligations
specified in 38 USC 4312(c). (38 USC 4312: 20 CFR 1002.99-1002.103)

5. The employee was separated from military service with a disqualifying discharge or under other
than honorable conditions. (Military and Veterans Code 395.1; 20 USC 4304, 4312: 20 CFR
1002.134-1002.138)



CSBA NOTE: 38 USC 4334 requires employers to post a notice of rights and benefits as provided below.
The U.S. Secretary of Labor has provided a sample notice listing these rights which is available on the
Department of Labor's USERRA web site.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees a notice of the rights, benefits, and obligations
~ of employees granted military leave and of the district under the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 USC 4301-4334. (38 USC 4334)

CSBA NOTE: 38 USC 4334 states that the notice may be placed where the employerdistrict customarily
places employee notices, as provided below. However, the VETS', “A Non-Technical Resource Guide to
the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)),” clarifies that an
employer may provide the notice in an alternative manner as long as the full text of the notice is
provided. Examples include handing the notice to employees, mailing it, or distributing it via email. The
district may revise the following paragraph to reflect district practice. :

This requirement may be met by posting the notice where the district customarily places notices for
employees, (38 USC 4334)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 22850-22856 Pension benefits;: STRS members on military leave

Ed. Code 44018 Compensation for employees on active military duty

Ed. Code 44800 Effect of active military service on status of employees

Ed. Code 45059 Employee ordered to active military/naval duty;; computation
of salary

Gov. Code 18540 Definition of armed forces

Gov. Code 18540.3 Recognized military service

Gov. Code 20990-21013 Pension benefits;; PERS members on military leave

M&V Code 146 Events justifying calling of militia into active service

| M&V Code 389 Definitions; temporary military leave

M&YV Code 394 Nondiscrimination based on military service

M&V Code 395-395.9 Military leave

Federal Description

20 CFR 1002.1-1002.314 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights
Act of 1994

38 USC 4301-4334 Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights

Act of 1994




Attorney General Opinion
Atterney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Court Decision

Court Decision

Publieati

U.S. Department of Labor Publication

Website

Website
Website

Cross References

Code
2121

4030

4030

4032

4112.9
4112.9-E(1)
4112.9-E PDF(1)
4116

4116

4161

4161

4161.1

4212.9
4212.9-E(1)
4212.9-E PDF(1)
4217.3

18 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 178 (1951)

63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 924 (1978)

69 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

77 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 56 (1994}

Bowers v. San Buenaventura (1977) 75 Cal. App.3d 65
Wright v. City of Santa Clara (1989) 213 Cal. App.3d 1503
Fhe Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment
Federal Scheol Law; 2003

A Non-Technical Resource Guide to the Uniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act {USERRA), rev.
April 2005

National Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and
Reserve

U.S. Department of Labor, USERRA

National School Boards Association

Description
Superintendent's Contract

Nondiscrimination In Employment
Nondiscrimination In Employment
Reasonable Accommodation
Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications
Probationary/Permanent Status
Probationary/Permanent Status
Leaves

Leaves

Personal lliness/Injury Leave
Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications

Layoff/Rehire




4261

4261.1

4312.9
4312.9-E(1)
4312.9-E PDF(1}
4361

4361

4361.1

Leaves

Personal lilness/Injury Leave
Employee Notifications
Employee Naotifications
Employee Notifications
Leaves

Leaves

Personal Iliness/Injury Leave




o heenoa

CSBA Sample District Policy Mant
_CSBA Sample Manual Si

Regulatiqn_4261.5: MililaryLeave'_ o N o T S.WS‘ADOPTE;D_

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2004 | Last Revised Date: 009/01/20062022 | Last Reviewed Date:
6709/01/26062022 SRR o - : SR

CSBA NOTE: Employment and re-employment rights of employees who take military leave of absence
are protected by the federal Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act {USERRA),
38 USC 4301-4334. The district may not refuse to grant military leave, regardless of the length of
employment or whether the employee volunteers for military service or is called up involuntarily.

Fhe USERRA applies to all employees, except for personsindividuals employed for a brief, nonrecurrent
period for which there was no reasonable expectation that such employment would continue
indefinitely or for a significant period. } appears that the statute includes temporary certificated and
d&amﬁagwhe%haa%empemwmsheﬁ%&memﬂeyeeb%v&e&d%&#ﬂsmadv&eéte%&
legal counsek

20 CFR 1002.149-1002.150 and 1002.210-1002.213 and guidelines issued by the Meterans'Veterans’
Employment and Training Service (VETS) of the USS. Department of Labor, “A Non-Technical Resource
Guide to the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act;,” clarify that federal law
generally protects seniority-based benefits (i.e., a right or benefit that is determined by or that accrues
with length of service) that would have accrued "with reasonable certainty" had the employee remained
continuously employed. Non-seniority-based benefits are generally protected to the same extent that
those benefits are preserved during comparable kinds of leave under local policies or state law. The
district should consult legal counsel regarding any questions about entitlements to benefits,

Note that in cases where state law provides greater protections to employees, state law supersedes
federal law. In addition, the district should consult its collective bargaining agreements to determine if
the bargaining agreements provide greater military leave benefits than provided by law and should
modify or delete the following optional regulation accordingly.

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable state and federal law to employees
performing military duties on a voluntary or involuntary basis in a uniformed service, including active
duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty training, full-time National
Guard duty, examination to determine fitness for duty, and performance of funeral honors duty.
(Education Code 44800: Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.01, 395.02, 395.05, 395.1, 395.2, 395.9;
38 USC 4301, 4303, 4316}

An Any district employee who needs to be absent from the district service to fulfill histher military
service shall provide advance written or verbal notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless the
giving of such notice is precluded by military necessity or is otherwise impossible or unreasonable. (38
USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.85, 1002.86)

Salary/Compensation

| CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Military and Veterans Code 395.01-395.05, employees on military leave are
entitled to receive their salary or compensation for a maximum of 30 calendar days for any one leave or J
during one fiscal year. However, Military and Veterans Code 395.03 allows the Governing Board to




an employee who is on active military duty as a member of the California National Guard or a U.S.
Military Reserve organization, for up to 180 days, the difference between the amount of the military pa
and allowances and the employee's salary.

The following paragraph should be revised to reflect decisions of the Board, if any, to extend
compensation beyond 30 days' pay.

An employeeThe district shall receive histherpay an emplovee’s salary or compensation for the first 30
days of any one absence for military leave or during one fiscal year, under any of the following condition

1. Active Military Training or Exercises: The employee is granted a temporary military leave of
absence to engage in ordered military duty for purposes of active military training, encampment,
naval cruises, special exercises, or like activity as a member of the reserve corps or force of the
United States Armed Forces, National Guard, or Naval Militia, provided that: (M|I|tary and
Veterans Code 389, 395, 395.01)

a. He/sheThe employee has been employed by the district for at least one year immediately
prior to the day the military leave begins.

b. The ordered duty does not exceed 180 days, including time involved in going to and
returning from such duty.

2. Active Military Duty: The employee is on military leave, other than a temporary military leave, tc
engage in active military duty as a member of the reserve corps or force of the United States
Armed Forces, the National Guard, or the Naval Militia, provided that he/shethe employee has
been employed by the district for at least one year immediately prior to the day the military leave
begins. (Military and Veterans Code 389, 395.02)

3. War or Other Emergency: The employee, however long employed by the district, is a member o
the National Guard who is engaged in military or naval duty during a state of extreme emergency
as declared by the Governor, or during such time as the National Guard may be on active duty in
situations described in Military and Veterans Code 146, including travel time to and from such
duty. (Military and Veterans Code 395.05)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Military and Veterans Code 395 and 395.01, the district has discretion as to
whether or not te cempensate employees are compensated for military leave for periods of inactive
duty training. Optional itemltem #4 is for use by districts that choose to provide compensation to such
employees,

4. Inactive Duty Training: The employee is a member of the reserve corps or force of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or Naval Militia who is engaged in temporary inactive duty
training, provided that he/shethe employee has been employed by the district for at least one
year immediately prior to the day the military leave begins and the ordered duty does not exceed
180 days, including time involved in going to and returning from such duty.

CSBA NOTE: When calculating whether the employee has been employed by the district for a minimum
of one year for purposes of determining the employee's right to a paid military leave of absence
pursuant to itemsltems #1, 2, and 4 above, anthe Attorney General opinion {opined in 77

Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 209 (1994)) states), that all prior military service is to be counted as public agency
service (i.e., the military service is "tacked on" to the amount of time employed in the district), even
when a period of time lapses between the military service and district employment. However, as opined
by the Attorney General in 18 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 178 (1951), an employee may not "tack on" prior
employment in another district {18 Ops.CalAtty.Gen. 178 (1951}, If a question arises as to whether
prior service should be counted, district legal counsel should be consulted.




- hcewoa

For classified employees, 30 days' compensation shall be one month's salary. For certificated employees
30 days' compensation shall be one-tenth of the employee's annual salary.  (Education Code 45059)

employment shall be included.

During the period of military leave, an employee may; upen histher own request; to use any vacation or
similar paid leave accrued before the commencement of the military leave: in order to continue receiving
compensation for the employee’s employment with the district. The district shall not require the
employee to use such leave. (38 USC 4316; 20 CFR 1002.153)

Benefits

An employee may elect to continue hisfher health plan coverage during the military leave. The maximum
period of coverage for the employee and hisfherany dependents shall be either 24 months from the
beginning of the leave or until the day after the employee fails to apply for or return to employment,
whichever is less. (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.164)

An employee on military leave may be required to pay the employee cost, if any, of any funded benefit to
the extent that other employees on leave are so recuired. (38 USC 4316)

An employee absent for 30 days or fewer shall not be required to pay more than the employee share for
such coverage. An employee absent for 31 days or more may be required to pay not more than 102
percent of the full premium under the plan. {38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.166)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is for use by any district whose Board has taken action to
extend benefits tefor up to 180 days to employees who are on active military duty as members of the
California National Guard or a U.S. Military Reserve organization, as authorized, but not required, by
Education Code 44018,

Any employee called into active military duty as a member of the California National Guard or a United
States Military Reserve organization shall receive, for up to 180 days, the difference between the amount
of histherthe employee's military pay and the amount the employee would have received from the
district and all benefits that the employee would have received if he/she had the employee not been
called to active military duty, unless the benefits are prohibited or limited by vendor contracts.
{Education Code 44018)

Vacation and Sick Leave Accrual

An employee on temporary military leave under the conditions described in iter #1 Active Military
Fraining or Exercises;ltem #1 in the section entitled "Salary/Compensation” above, shall continue to
accrue the same vacation, sick leave, and holiday privileges to which he/shethe employee would
otherwise be entitled if not absent. (Military and Veterans Code 395)

An employee on military leave who is serving in active duty in time of war, national emergency, or United




However, an employee who is a National Guard member on active duty as described in item #3 War of
Other Emergency;ltem #3 in the section entitled "Salary/Compensation" above, shall not suffer any loss

or diminution of vacation or holiday privileges because of his/herthe emplovee’s leave of absence.
(Military and Veterans Code 395.05)

Pension Plan Service Credit

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 20997, employers that participate in the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) are required to inform employees who are CalPERS members,
of the rights of returning military veterans to receive employer-paid service credits for the period of
active military service. '

Pension plan service credit and vesting shall continue during an employee's military leave as though no
break in service had occurred. Payment of employer and employee contributions shall be made in
accordance with law for members of the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees’
Retirement System. (Education Code 22850-22856; Government Code 20990-21013)

Employment Status

CSBA NOTE: Employees on military leave are deemed to be on furlough or leave of absence, pursuant tc
20 CFR 1002.149 and, during the period of military leave, maintain non-seniority rights and benefits
generally provided by the employer to other employees with similar seniority, status. and pay who are on
furdough or leave of absence. However, pursuant to Education Code 44800 and Military and Veterans
Code 395. absence due to military leave may not be counted in satisfaction of an uncompleted
probationary period.

Absence for military leave shall not affect the classification of any eertificated employee. In the case of a
certificated probationary employee, the period of such absence shall not count as part of the service
required to obtain permanent status, but shall not be construed as a break in the continuity of service for
any purpose. (Education Code 44800: Military and Veterans Code 395; 20 CFR 1002.149)

Reinstatement Rights

At the conclusion of the military duty, an employee shall be promptly reinstated in the position held at
the beginning of the leave, at the salary to which he/shethe employee would otherwise have been
entitled, except under the conditions noted below- in this section. (Education Code 44800; Military and
Veterans Code 395, 395.2; 38 USC 4304, 4313; 20 CFR 1002.180-1002.181)

Any employee who performs active military duty in time of war, national emergency, or United Nations
military or police operation has a right to return to his/herthe position held prior to the military service,
during terminai leave prior to the employee’s discharge, separation, or release from the armed forces, or
within six months of anthe employee’s release, separation, honorable discharge, or placement on inactive
duty. Reinstatement rights shall not be extended to any such employee who fails to return within 12
months after the first date upon which hefshethe employee could terminate or could cause to behave
terminated histher active service. (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395.1)

When an employee has been on military leave for reasons other than war or national emergency, the time
frame for seeking reinstatement shall depend on the length of military service as follows: (38 USC 4312;
20 CFR 1002.115, 1002.118)

1. For aleave of 30 days or fewer, the employee shall report for duty no later than the beginning of

oo Livrd Foill savmile Ay Lollmne sl bbam Rt T Pt NN 2 3 iy £ [ S AAlad b ananlavinm laan




| | AGENDA |

empioyee’s residence. !

2. For aleave of 31-180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for
reinstatement not later than 14 days after the completion of military service.

3. For a leave of more than 180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for
reinstatement within 90 days after the completion of military service.

In eases where Where an employee’s reporting or application for reinstatement within the periods
specified in itemsltems #1 and #2 above is impossible or unreasonable through no fault of the employee,
he/shethe report or application shall reperthe made as soon as possible after the expiration of the perioc
in the case of ltems #2 and #3 where an application is required, the employee’s application may be made
orally or in writing and need not follow any particular format. (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.115,
1002.117,1002.118)

An employee who is hospitalized for, or convalescing from, an illness or injury incurred in or aggravated
during the performance of military service shall report for duty or submit an application for reinstatemen
at the end of the period that is necessary to recover from such illness or injury, but no more than two
years after the completion of military service unless circumstances beyond the employee's control make
reporting within the two-year period impossible or unreasonable. (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.116)}

Upon receiving an application for reinstatement, the Superintendent or designee shall reinstate the
employee as soon as practicable under the circumstances of his/herthe case, but within a time period not
to exceed two weeks, absent unusual circumstances. (20 CFR 1002.181)

if the employee's previous position has been abolished, he/shethe district shall be reinstatedreinstate the
employee in a position of like seniority, status, and pay, if such position exists, or to a comparable vacant
position for which he/shethe employee is qualified. (Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.1; 38 USC
4313; 20 CFR 1002.192)

An employee failingwho fails to report or apply for reinstatement within the appropriate period does not
automatically forfeit histher rights;the entitlement to reinstatement but shall be subject to the
Board'sdistrict's rules and/or practices governing unexcused absences. (38 USC 4312)

The Superintendent or designee may elect not to reinstate an employee following military leave if any of
the foilowing conditions exists:

1. The district's circumstances have so changed as to make such re-employment impossible or
unreasonable, such as a reduction in force that would have included the employee. (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)

2. The accommodation, training, or effort described in 38 USC 4313(a)(3), (a)(4), or (b)(2)(B) would
impose an undue hardship on the district as defined in 20 CFR 1002.5 or 1002.198. (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)

3. The employee's position was for a brief, nonrecurrent period and there was no reasonable
expectation that such employment will continue indefinitely or for a significant period. (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)

4. The employee's cumulative length of absence and length of all previous military leave while
employed with the district exceeds five years, excluding those training and service obligations
specified in 38 USC 4312(c). (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.99-1002.103)

5. The employee was separated from military service with a disqualifying discharge or under other



Notices

CSBA NOTE: 38 USC 4334 requires employers to post a notice of rights and benefits as provided below.
The U.S. Secretary of Labor has provided a sample notice listing these rights which is available on the
Department of Labor's USERRA web site.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees a notice of the rights, benefits, and obligations
of employees granted military leave and of the district under the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), 38 USC 4301-4334. (38 USC 4334)

CSBA NOTE: 38 USC 4334 states that the notice may be placed where the employerdistrict customarily
places employee notices, as provided below. However, the VETS', “A Non-Technical Resource Guide to

the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)),” clarifies that an
employer may provide the notice in an alternative manner as long as the full text of the notice is
provided. Examples include handing the notice to employees, mailing it, or distributing it via emall The
district may revise the following paragraph to reflect district practice.

This requirement may be met by posting the notice where the district customarily places notices for

employees. (38 USC 4334}

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the palicy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject

matter of the policy.

State
Ed. Code 22850-22856

Ed. Code 44018
Ed. Code 44800
Ed. Code 45059

Gov. Code 18540

Gov. Code 18540.3

Gov. Code 20990-21013
M&V Code 146

M&V Code 389

M&V Code 394

M&V Code 395-395.9

Federal
20 CFR 1002.1-1002.314

38 USC 4301-4334

Description
Pension benefits;; STRS members on military leave

Compensation for employees on active military duty
Effect of active military service on status of employees

Employee ordered to active military/naval duty;; computation
of salary

Definition of armed forces

Recognized military service

Pensicn benefits;; PERS members on military leave
Events justifying calling of militia into active service
Definitions; temporary military leave
Nondiscrimination based on military service
Military leave

Description
Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights
Act of 1994

Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights
Art nf 1994



Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinien
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Attorney General Opinion
Court Decision

Court Decision

Publicati

U.S. Department of Labor Publication

Website

Website
Website

Cross References

Code
2121

4030

4030

4032

4112.9
4112.9-E(1)
4112.9-E PDF(1)
4116

4116

4161

4161

4161.1

4212.9
4212.9-E(1)
4212.9-E PDF(1)
4217.3

18 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 178 (1951)

63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 924 (1978)

69 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

77 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 56 (1994)

Bowers v. San Buenaventura {(1977) 75 Cal. App.3d 65
Wright v. City of Santa Clara (1989) 213 Cal. App.3d 1503
Fhe Unifermed Services Employment and Reemployment
Federal School Law; 2003

A Non-Technical Resource Guide to the Uniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), rev.
April 2005

National Committee for Empioyer Support of the Guard and
Reserve

U.S. Department of Labor, USERRA

National School Boards Association

Description
Superintendent's Contract

Nondiscrimination In Employment
Nondiscrimination In Employment
Reasonable Accommodation
Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications
Probationary/Permanent Status
Probationary/Permanent Status
Leaves

Leaves

Personal lllness/Injury Leave
Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications

Employee Notifications

Layoff/Rehire



4261

4261.1

4312.9
4312.9-E(1}
4312.9-E PDF(1)
4361

4361

4361.1

Leaves

Personal lliness/Injury Leave
Employee Notifications
Employee Notifications
Employee Notifications
Leaves

Leaves

Personal Iliness/Injury Leave



CSBA Sample District Policy Mant
CSBA Sample Manual Si

Regulatlon43615 MllltaryLeave o Status:ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date 03/01/2004 I I.ast Revised Da‘he: 0109/01/29962022 ] I.ast Reviewed Date:
03509/01/29962022 :

CSBA NOTE: Employment and re-employment rights of employees who take military leave of absence
are protected by the federal Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)
38 USC 4301-4334. The district may not refuse to grant military leave, regardiess of the length of
employment or whether the employee volunteers for military service or is called up involuntarily.

The USERRA applies to all employees, except for personsindividuals employed for a brief, nonrecurrent
period for which there was no reasonable expectation that such employment would continue
indefinitely or for a significant period. it appears that the statute includes tempeorary certificated and
determining whether a temporary or short-term employee is covered, districts are advised to consult
legal counsel

20 CFR 1002.149-1002.150 and 1002.210-1002.213 and guidelines issued by the Meterans'Veterans’
Employment and Training Service (VETS) of the U.S. Department of Labor, “A Non-Technical Resource
Guide to the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act;,” clarify that federal law
generally protects seniority-based benefits {i.e., a right or benefit that is determined by or that accrues
with length of service) that would have accrued "with reasonable certainty" had the employee remained
continuously employed. Non-seniority-based benefits are generally protected to the same extent that
those benefits are preserved during comparable kinds of leave under local policies or state law. The
district should consult legal counsel regarding any questions about entitlements to benefits.

Note that in cases where state law provides greater protections to employees, state law supersedes
federal law. In addition, the district should consult its collective bargaining agreements to determine if
the bargaining agreements provide greater military leave benefits than provided by law and should
modify or delete the following optional regulation accordingly. '

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable state and federal law to employees
performing military duties on a voluntary or involuntary basis in a uniformed service, including active
duty, active duty for training, initial active duty for training, inactive duty training, full-time National
Guard duty, examination to determine fitness for duty, and performance of funeral honors duty.
(Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.01, 395.02, 395.05, 395.1, 395.2, 395.9;
38 USC 4301, 4303, 4316)

An Any district employee who needs to be absent from the district service to fulfill his/her military
service shall provide advance written or verbal notice to the Superintendent or designee, unless the
giving of such notice is precluded by military necessity or is otherwise impossible or unreasonable. (38
USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.85, 1002.86)

Salary/Compensation

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Military and Veterans Code 395.01-395.05, employees on military leave are
entitled to receive their salary or compensation for a maximum of 30 calendar days for any one leave or
durlng one fiscal year However Mllltary and Veterans Code 395 03 ailows the Govermng Board to



an employee who is on active military duty as a member of the California National Guard or a U.5.
Military Reserve organization, for up to 180 days, the difference between the amount of the military pay
and allowances and the employee's salary.

The following paragraph should be revised to reflect decisions of the Board, if any, to extend
compensation beyond 30 days' pay. '

An employeeThe district shall reeceive histherpay an employee’s salary or compensation for the first 30
days of any one absence for military leave or during one fiscal year, under any of the following conditions

1. Active Military Training or Exercises: The employee is granted a temporary military leave of
absence to engage in ordered military duty for purposes of active military training, encampment,
naval cruises, special exercises, or like activity as a member of the reserve corps or force of the

~ United States Armed Forces, National Guard, or Naval Militia, provided that: (Military and
Veterans Code 389, 395, 395.01)

a. He/sheThe employee has been employed by the district for at least one year immediately
prior to the day the military leave begins.

b. The ordered duty does not exceed 180 days, including time involved in going to and
returning from such duty.

2. Active Military Duty: The employee is on military leave, other than a temporary military leave, to
engage in active military duty as a member of the reserve corps or force of the United States
Armed Forces, the National Guard, or the Naval Militia, provided that he/shethe employee has
been employed by the district for at least one year immediately prior to the day the military leave
begins. (Military and Veterans Code 389, 395.02)

3. War or Other Emergency: The employee, however long employed by the district, is a member of
the National Guard who is engaged in military or naval duty during a state of extreme emergency
as declared by the Governor, or during such time as the National Guard may be on active duty in
situations described in Military and Veterans Code 146, including travel time to and from such
duty. (Military and Veterans Code 395.05}

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Military and Veterans Code 395 and 395.01, the district has discretion as to
whether or not to compensate employees are compensated for military leave for periods of inactive
duty training. Optional itemltem #4 is for use by districts that choose to provide compensation to such
employees. '

4. {nactive Duty Training: The employee is a member of the reserve corps or force of the United
States Armed Forces, National Guard, or Naval Militia who is engaged in temporary inactive duty
training, provided that he/shethe employee has been employed by the district for at least one
year immediately prior to the day the military leave begins and the ordered duty does not exceed
180 days, including time involved in going to and returning from such duty.

CSBA NOTE: When calculating whether the employee has been employed by the district for a minimum
of one year for purposes of determining the employee’s right to a paid military leave of absence
pursuant to itemsltems #1, 2, and 4 above, anthe Attorney General epinion {opined in 77
Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 209 {1994)) states), that all prior military service is to be counted as public agency
service (i.e., the military service is "tacked on" to the amount of time employed in the district), even
when a period of time lapses between the military service and district employment. However, as opined
by the Attorney General in 18 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 178 {1951}, an employee may not "tack on" prior
employment in another district {18 Ops-.CalAtby.Gen: 178 (1251)). If a question arises as to whether
prior service should be counted, district legal counsel should be consulted.




employment shall be included.

For classified employees, 30 days’ compensation shall be one month's salary. For certificated employees,
30 days' compensation shall be one-tenth of the employee's annual salary.  {Education Code 45059}

W&MEWW%%MMQWWW
hon-paving months of the year:
mmmwmmwmmmmmeﬁ
the year.

During the period of military leave, an employee may; upen his/her ewn request; to use any vacation or
similar paid leave accrued before the commencement of the military leave: in order to continue receiving
compensation for the employee's employment with the district. The district shall not require the
-employee to use such leave. (38 USC 4316; 20 CFR 1002.153) '

Benefits

- An employee may elect to continue his/her health plan coverage during the military leave. The maximum
period of coverage for the employee and his/herany dependents shall be either 24 months from the
beginning of the leave or until the day after the employee fails to apply for or return to employment,
whichever is less. (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.164)

An employee on military leave may be required to pay the employee cost, if any, of any funded benefit to
the extent that other employees on leave are so required. (38 USC 4316)

An employee absent for 30 days or fewer shall not be required to pay more than the employee share for
such coverage. An employee absent for 31 days or more may be required to pay not more than 102
percent of the full premium under the plan. (38 USC 4317; 20 CFR 1002.166)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is for use by any district whose Board has taken action to
extend benefits tefor up to 180 days to employees who are on active military duty as members of the
California National Guard or a U.S. Military Reserve organization, as authorized, but not required, by
Education Code 44018.

Any employee called into active military duty as a member of the California National Guard or a United
States Military Reserve organization shall receive, for up to 180 days, the difference between the amount
of histherthe employee’s military pay and the amount the employee would have received from the
district and all benefits that the employee would have received if he/she had the employee not been
called to active military duty, unless the benefits are prohibited or limited by vendor contracts.

{Education Code 44018}

Vacation and Sick Leave Accrual

An employee on temporary military leave under the conditions described in item #1 Active Military
Training or Exercises;item #1 in the section entitled "Salary/Compensation” above, shall continue to
accrue the same vacation, sick leave, and holiday privileges to which he/shethe employee would
otherwise be entitled if not absent. {Military and Veterans Code 395)

An employee on military leave who is serving in active duty in time of war, national emergency, or United
Nations military or police operation shall not accrue sick leave or vacation leave during the period of such



Other Emergeneyltem #3 in the section entitled "Salary/Compensation” above, shall not suffer any loss
or diminution of vacation or holiday privileges because of his/herthe employee’s leave of absence.
(Military and Veterans Code 395.05)

Pension Plan Service Credit

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 20997, emplovyers that participate in the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) are required to inform employees who are CalPERS members,
of the rights of returning military veterans to receive employer-paid service credits for the period of
active military service.

Pension plan service credit and vesting shall continue during an employee's military leave as though no
break in service had occurred. Payment of employer and employee contributions shall be made in
accordance with law for members of the State Teachers' Retirement System or Public Employees'
Retirement System. (Education Code 22850-22856; Government Code 209%90-21013)

Employment Status

CSBA NOTE: Employees on military leave are deemed to be on furlough or leave of absence, pursuant t
20 CFR 1002.149 and. during the period of military leave, maintain non-seniority rights and benefits
generally provided by the émployer to other employees with similar seniority, status, and pay who are oi
furlough or leave of absence. However, pursuant to Education Code 44800 and Military and Veterans
Code 395, absence due to military leave may not be counted in satisfaction of an uncompleted
probaticnary period.

Absence for military leave shall not affect the classification of any eertificated employee. In the case of a
certificated probationary employee, the period of such absence shall not count as part of the service
required to obtain permanent status, but shall not be construed as a break in the continuity of service fo:
any purpose. (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395; 20 CFR 1002.149)

Reinstatement Rights

At the conclusion of the military duty, an employee shall be promptly reinstated in the position held at
the beginning of the leave, at the salary to which he/shethe employee would otherwise have been
entitled, except under the conditions noted below: in this section. {Education Code 44800; Military and
Veterans Code 395, 395.2; 38 USC 4304, 4313; 20 CFR 1002.180-1002.181)

Any employee who performs active military duty in time of war, national emergency, or United Nations
military or police operation has a right to return to his/herthe position held prior to the military service,
during terminal leave prior to the employee’s discharge, separation, or release from the armed forces, or
within six months of anthe employee's release, separation, honorable discharge, or placement on inactive
duty. Reinstatement rights shall not be extended to any such employee who fails to return within 12
months after the first date upon which he/shethe employee could terminate or could cause to behave
terminated histher active service. (Education Code 44800; Military and Veterans Code 395.1)

When an employee has been on military leave for reasons other than war or national emergency, the tim
frame for seeking reinstatement shall depend on the length of military service as follows: (38 USC 4312
20 CFR 1002.115, 1002.118)

1. For aleave of 30 days or fewer, the employee shall report for duty no later than the beginning of
the first full work day following the completion of the military service; provided the employee has

e A nariad Af aicrht hrnire tanf ractk fallmarine A nariad far cafa trancnartatinm £ hic /hartha



2. For aleave of 31-180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for
reinstatement not later than 14 days after the completion of military service.

3. For a leave of more than 180 days, the employee shall submit a written or verbal application for
reinstatement within 90 days after the completion of military service.

In eases where Where an employee's reporting or application for reinstatement within the periods
specified in itemsltems #1 and #2 above is impossible or unreasonable through no fault of the employee,
he/shethe report or application shall repertbe made as soon as possible after the expiration of the period.
In the case of ltems #2 and #3 where an application is reguired, the employee’s application may be made
orally or in writing and need not follow any particular format. (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002,115,
1002.117, 1002.118)

An employee who is hospitalized for, or convalescing from, an illness or injury incurred in or aggravated
during the performance of military service shall report for duty or submit an application for reinstatement
at the end of the period that is necessary to recover from such iliness or injury, but no more than two
years after the completion of military service unless circumstances beyond the employee's control make
reporting within the two-year period impossible or unreasonable. (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.116}

Upon receiving an application for reinstatement, the Superintendent or designee shall reinstate the
employee as soon as practicable under the circumstances of histherthe case, but within a time period not
to exceed two weeks, absent unusual circumstances. (20 CFR 1002.181}

If the employee's previous position has been abolished, he/shethe district shall be reinstatedreinstate the
employee in a position of like seniority, status, and pay, if such position exists, or to a comparable vacant
position for which he/shethe employee is qualified. (Military and Veterans Code 395, 395.1; 38 USC
4313; 20 CFR 1002.192)

An employee failingwho fails to report or apply for reinstatement within the appropriate period does not
automatically forfeit histher righis;the entitlement to reinstatement but shall be subject to the
Beard'sdistrict’s rules and/or practices governing unexcused absences. (38 USC 4312)

The Superintendent or designee may elect not to reinstate an employee following military leave if any of
the following conditions exists:

1. The district's circumstances have so changed as to make such re-employment impossible or
unreasonable, such as a reduction in force that would have included the employee. (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)

2. The accommodation, training, or effort described in 38 USC 4313(a)(3}, (a){4), or (b){2)}(B) would
impose an undue hardship on the district as defined in 20 CFR 1002.5 or 1002.198. (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)

3. The employee's position was for a brief, nonrecurrent period and there was no reasonable
expectation that such employment will continue indefinitely or for a significant period. (38 USC
4312; 20 CFR 1002.139)

4. The employee's cumulative length of absence and length of all previous military leave while
employed with the district exceeds five years, excluding those training and service obligations
specified in 38 USC 4312(c}. (38 USC 4312; 20 CFR 1002.99-1002.103)

5. The employee was separated from military service with a disqualifying discharge or under other
than honorable conditions. (Military and Veterans Code 395.1; 20 USC 4304, 4312; 20 CFR
1002.134-1002.138)



CSBA NOTE: 38 USC 4334 requires employers to post a notice of rights and benefits as provided below.
The U.S. Secretary of Labor has provided a sample notice listing these rights which is available on the
Department of Labor's USERRA web site.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide employees a notice of the rights, benefits, and obligations
of employees granted military leave and of the district under the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act {USERRA), 38 USC 4301-4334. (38 USC 4334)

CSBA NOTE: 38 USC 4334 states that the notice may be placed where the employerdistrict customarily
places employee notices, as provided below. However, the VETS', “A Non-Technical Resource Guide to

the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA)),” clarifies that an
employer may provide the notice in an alternative manner as long as the full text of the notice is
provided. Examples include handing the notice to employees, mailing it, or distributing it via email. The
district may revise the following paragraph to reflect district practice.

This requirement may be met by posting the notice where the district customarily places notices for

employees. {38 USC 4334)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691

All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject

matter of the policy.

State
Ed. Code 22850-22856

Ed. Code 44018
Ed. Code 44800
Ed. Code 45059

Gov. Code 18540

Gov. Code 18540.3

Gov. Code 20990-21013
M&V Code 146

M&V Code 389

M&V Code 394

M&V Code 395-395.9

Federal
20 CFR 1002.1-1002.314

38 USC 4301-4334

Management Resources

Description
Pension benefits;; STRS members on military leave

Compensation for employees on active military duty
Effect of active military service on status of employees

Employee ordered to active military/naval duty;; computation
of salary

Definition of armed forces

Recognized military service

Pension benefits;; PERS members on military leave
Events justifying calling of militia into active service
Definitions; temporary military leave
Nondiscrimination based on military service
Military leave

Description
Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights
Act of 1994

Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights
Act of 1994

Descrintion



Attorney General Opinion 63 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 924 (1978)

Attorney General Opinion 69 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 290 (1986)

Attorney General Opinion 77 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 56 (1994)

Court Decision Bowers v. San Buenaventura (1977) 75 Cal. App.3d 65

Court Decision Wright v. City of Santa Clara (1989) 213 Cal. App.3d 1503
Federal Schoel Law; 2003

U.S. Department of Labor Publication A Non-Technical Resource Guide to the Uniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), rev.

April 2005
Website National Committee for Employer Support of the Guard and
Reserve
Website U.S. Department of Labor, USERRA
Website National School Boards Association
Cross References
Code Description
2121 Superintendent's Contract
4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment
4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment
4032 Reasonable Accommodation
4112.9 Employee Notifications
4112.9-E(1) Employee Notifications
4112.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications
4116 Probationary/Permanent Status
4116 Probatidnary/ Permanent Status
4161 Leaves
4161 Leaves
4161.1 Personal lliness/Injury Leave
42129 Employee Notifications
4212.9-E{1) Employee Notifications
4212.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications
4217.3 Layoff/Rehire

4261 ' Leaves




4261.1

4312.9
4312.9-E(1)
4312.9-E PDF(1)
4361

4361

4361.1

Personal lllness/Injury Leave
Employee Notifications
Employee Notifications
Employee Notifications
Leaves

Leaves

Personal lliness/Injury Leave




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy 4216: Probationary/Permanent Status Status: ADOPTED .

Original Adopted Date: 06/01/1996 | Last Revised Date: 1009/01/20192022

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45113 mandates the Governing Board in a non-merit system district to
develop rules and regulations for the personnel management of classified employees. For districts
establishing the merit system pursuant to Education Code 45240-45320, rules for the efficient running
of the classified service are established by the personnel commission pursuant to Education Code
45260. The following policy may be revised to reflect district practice, theany applicable collective
bargaining agreement, or personnel commission rules.

The Governing Board desires to employ and retain highly qualified classified personnel to support the
district's educational program and operations. Newly hired classified employees shall serve a probationan
period during which the Board shall determine their suitability for long-term district employment.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph should be revised to reflect the specific length of the
probationary period prescribed by the district, provided the probationary period does not exceed the
time limits specified below.

m%%%mm%%&%mqmmwm
Mémmmmmmmmmwwmm‘mm
%Gdayseipaése%e&wh&hev&&bnge%ih&eﬁer&memmmumm&heﬁhemq&weé
WWWW%EW%W%M#MW%M
W%WMW%%%%%%WM%W
mmmﬁammmmmmwkwm

A probationary employee who has been employed by the district for six months or 130 days of paid
service, whichever is longer, shall be classified as a permanent employee of the district. (Education Code
45113, 45301)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45113 (non-merit system districts) and 45301 (merit system
districts), as amended by AB 486 (Ch. 666, Statutes of 2021), in order to receive permanent classified
service status, a full-time district police officer and public safety dispatcher who operates a dispatch
center certified by the Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training must serve in a probationar
status for not less than one year from the date of appointment to the full-time position. See AR 3515.3 -
District Police/Security Department.

However, in order to receive permanent classified service status, a full-time district police officer or
public safety dispatcher who operates a dispatch center certified by the Commission on Peace Officer
Standards and Training shall serve in a probationary status for not less than one year from the date of
appointment. (Education Code 45113, 45301)

Probationary employees shall receive written performance evaluations by their supervisor during the
probationary period. These evaluations shall indicate whether the evaluator is satisfied or not satisfied
with the employee's ability, performance, and compatibility with the job.

e —




Permanent employees promoted to a higher classification shall be considered probationary in their new
position until they have satisfactorily completed the probationary period.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant f_o Education Code 45301, as amended by SB 874 (Ch. 150, Statutes of 2022), th
paragraph below also applies to districts that have adopted the merit system.

A permanent employee who accepts a promotion and fails to complete the probationary period for that
promotional position shall be employed in the classification from which the employee was promoted.
(Education Code 45113, 45301)

This policy shall be made available to classified employees and the public. (Education Code 451 13)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
Al rights reserved,

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges;; classified employees
Ed. Code 45240-45320 Merit system

Management Resources Description

Website California School Employees Association

Cross References

Code ' Description

35153 District Police/Security Department (BP and AR}
4112.9 Employee Notifications

4112.9-E{1) Employee Notifications

4112.9-E PDF{(1) Employee Notifications

4161.11 Industrial Accident/llIness Leave

4212.9 Employee Notifications

4212.9-E(1) Employee Notifications

4212.9-E PDF{1) : Employee Notifications

4215 . Evaluation/Supervision

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action

4218 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
4218.1 Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action (Merit System)
4261.1 Personal lliness/Injury Leave

4261.11 Industrial Accident/IHness Leave

AMAMN M . .1 EEETE S BN I i N




4312.9-E PDF(1) Employee Notifications
4361.11 | Industrial Accident/lliness Leave




CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Polscy 4218 DlsmlssaIISuspensmnIDlsciplinaryAcl:lon SR : Slfatus: ADOPTED

Orlglnal Adopted Date: 07/01/2019 Last Revised Date: 4909/01/29%92022 L

CSBA NOTE: The following policy is for use by districts that have not incorporated the merit system for
classified employees pursuant to Education Code 45240-45320. For procedures applicable to districts
that have incorporated the merit system, see BP/AR 4218.1 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action
(Merit System).

The following policy is subject to collective bargaining and may be deleted or revised by any district
whose collective bargaining agreement covers classified employee dismissal, suspension, and other
disciplinary action. To the extent that this policy is inconsistent with provisions of the collective
bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement would prevail.

The Governing Board expects all employees to perform their jobs satisfactorily and to exhibit professional
and appropriate conduct. A classified employee may be disciplined for unprofessional conduct or
unsatisfactory performance in accordance with law or any applicable collective bargaining agreement,
Board policy, or administrative regulation.

CSBA NOTE: When disciplining an employee, the district must ensure that all the surrounding facts and
circumstances are considered and analyzed within the parameters of any applicable constitutional or legal
framework. |n Kennedy v. Bremerton School District, the U.S. Supreme Court held that the district violated
the employee’s protected free exercise and free speech rights when the district did not rehire the
emplovee, a coach, for refusing to follow the district’s direction to refrain from kneeling and praying at
the 50-vard line immediately after each football game. The district’s direction was based on a concern
that the emplovee’s prayer violated the district’s religious practices policy and could subject the district to
an Establishment Clause violation. Notwithstanding that the prayer occurred at a school event and in the
presence of students, the court reasoned that the timing and circumstances indicated that the coach’s
prayers were offered as a private citizen rather than as a district employee. According to the Court, since
the praver, a religious activity, occurred during a period when employees would ordinarily be free to
engage in personal secular activities such as speaking with friends, checking email, calling for restaurant
reservations, etc., the district's concerns about a possible Establishment Clause violation did not justify
restricting the employee’s free exercise and free speech rights to engage in a personal religious activity
such as offering a prayer. Employee discipline, especially with respect to suspension and dismissal,
involves complex legal considerations and districts are advised to consult CSBA District and County
Office of Education Legal Services or the district’s legal counsel, accordingly.

Disciplinary actions shall be based on the particular facts and circumstances involved and the severity of
the employee's conduct or performance. An employee's private exercise of personal beliefs and
activities, including religious, political, cultural, social, or other beliefs or activities, or lack thereof, shall
not be grounds for disciplinary action against the employee, provided that the beliefs or activities do not
involve coercion of students or any other violation of law, Board policy, or administrative regulation.

In addition, an employee shall not be suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, dismissed, or
otherwise retaliated against solely for acting to protect a student engaged in exercising any free speech
- or press right authorized by, or for refusing to infringe upon a student's conduct protected pursuant to,
Education Code 48907 or 48950.




The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that disciplinary actions are taken in a consistent,

nondiscriminatory manner and are appropriately documented.

A probationary classified employee may be dismissed by the Superintendent or designeewithout cause at
any time prior to the expiration of the probationary period.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45113 mandates districts not incorporating the merit system to prescribe,
by written rule or regulation, causes and procedures for disciplinary action against permanent classified
employees. Also see the accompanying administrative regulation.

Permanent classified employees shall be subject to disciplinary action only for cause as specified in the
accompanying administrative regulation. {Education Code 45113)

Procedures for Serious Disciplinary Proceedings

CSBA NOTE: The following section should be revised to reflect district practice.

In Skelly v. State Personnel Board, the California Supreme Court held that permanent public employees
have a right to certain due process protections prior to any punitive disciplinary action, such as
termination, suspension, or demotion. These procedural rights include notice of the proposed materials
upon which the action is based and the right to respond, either orally or in writing, to the individual
recommending that discipline be imposed. These procedural rights are designed to protect an employee
who may be wrongfully disciplined, without necessitating a full evidentiary hearing before the
Governing Board. Therefore, CSBA recommends that the Superintendent or designee appoint a Skelly
officer to evaluate whether there are reasonable grounds for believing that the employee engaged in the
alleged misconduct and whether the proposed discipline is justified.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop disciplinary procedures for use when dismissal, suspension,
demotion, involuntary reassignment, or other serious disciplinary action is contemplated against an
employee. The procedures for such discipline shall include an opportunity for an employee for whom any
such disciplinary action is recommended to meet with, or respond in writing to, a designated district
official ("Skelly officer"} who will determine whether the recommended discipline should proceed further
or be modified or withdrawn.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45113 and 45116, a permanent classified employee must be
given notice of any disciplinary action against the employee, including a time period during which the
employee may request a Board hearing on the charges. See the section “Initiation and Naotification of
Charges” in the accompanying administrative regulation.

Pursuant to Education Code 45113, the Board may delegate its authority to determine whether
sufficient cause exists for disciplinary action against classified employees, excluding peace officers as
defined in Penal Code 830.32, to an impartial third-party hearing officer. Hearings conducted by the
Board or a hearing officer are not subject to the procedures used by the Office of Administrative
Hearings pursuant to Government Code 11500-11529. Districts that refer all serious disciplinary
matters to a third-party hearing officer rather than holding Board hearings should revise the remainder
of this section accordingly.

Education Code 45113 requires the Board to delegate its authority to an administrative law judge in
cases involving allegations of egregious misconduct with a minor. Egregious misconduct is defined as
immoral conduct leading to an allegation of a sex offense pursuant to Education Code 44010, a



After meeting with the employee or considering the employee's written response, if the Skelly officer
determines that the recommended discipline should proceed, the Superintendent or designee shall send
the employee a notice of the recommended disciplinary action, a statement of charges, and the results o
the Skelly hearing. The notice shall include a statement advising the employee of the right to request a
Board hearing on the matter.

If the employee fails to request a hearing within the time specified in the notice, the employee is deeme
to have waived the right to do so, and the Board may order the recommended disciplinary action into
effect immediately.

If a timely request is submitted, a hearing shall be conducted by the Board. (Education Code 45113,
45312)

The hearing shall be held at the earliest convenient date, taking into consideration the established
schedule of the Board and the availability of legal counsel and witnesses. The employee shall be notified
of the time and place of the hearing.

The hearing shall be held in closed session, unless the employee requests that the matter be heard in an
open session meeting. (Government Code 54957)

The employee shall be entitled to appear personally, produce evidence, and be represented by legal
counsel.

The Board may use the services of its legal counsel in ruling upon procedural questions, objections to
evidence, and issues of law. The Board may review and consider the records of any prior personnel
action proceedings against the employee in which a disciplinary action was ultimately sustained and any
records contained in the employee's personnel files and introduced into evidence at the hearing. The
Board shalt not be bound by rules of evidence used in California courts. Informality in any such hearing
shall not invalidate any order or decision made by the Board.

At any time before a matter is submitted to the Board for decision, the Superintendent or designee may,
with the consent of the Board, serve on the employee and file with the Board an amended or
supplemental recommendation of disciplinary action. If the amended or supplemental recommendation
includes new causes or allegations, the employee shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to prepare a
defense. Any new causes or allegations shall be deemed controverted and any objections to the amendec
or supplemental causes or allegations may be made orally at the hearing and shall be noted on the record

Following the hearing or, if the employee has not requested a hearing, after reviewing the Superintenden
or designee's recommendation for disciplinary action, the Board shall affirm, modify, or reject the
recommended disciplinary action. The decision of the Board shall be in writing and shall contain findings
of fact and the disciplinary action approved, if any. The decision of the Board shall be final.

Within 10 working days of the Board's final decision, a copy of the decision shall be delivered to the
employee and/or designated representative personally or by registered mail.

i liewExcept for an allegation of heldingegregious misconduct in which a Beard hearing on the
sufficiency of the eauses for disciplinary actionminor is involved, the Board may delegate itsthe authority
to determine whether sufficient cause exists for disciplinary action to an impartial third-party hearing
officer. When thea matter is heard by a third-party hearing officer, the Board retains the autherity teshall
review the determination and te adopt or reject the recommended decision. {Education Code 45113)




CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44990, an administrative law judge in a suspension or
dismissal hearing is required to preserve the integrity of the truth-finding function by balancing the right
of a classified employee against the need to protect a minor witness.

i When any matter involves an allegation of egregious misconduct as defined in Education Code 44932
and involves a witness who is a minor, the matter shall be referred to an administrative law judge to
determine whether sufficient cause exists for disciplinary action against the employee. In such cases, the
ruling of the administrative law judge shall be binding on the district and the employee. (Education Code
45113)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2022 by Califernia School Beards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the

board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 35161

Board delegation of any powers or duties

Ed. Code 44009 Conviction of specified crimes

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44940.5 Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave
of absence

Ed. Code 45101 Definitions {ineluding; disciplinary action: and cause)

Ed. Code 45109 Fixing of duties

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges;; classified employees

Ed. Code 45123 Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 45302 Demotion and removal from permanent classified service

Ed. Code 45303 Additional cause for suspension or dismissal of employee
charge with mandatory or optional leave of absence offense

Ed. Code 45304 Compulsory leave of absence for classified persons

Veh. Code 1808.8 Schoolbus drivers; dismissal for safety-related cause

California Constitution Article 1, Section Inalienahle rights

1

Federal Description

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

U.S. Constitution First Amendment Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Mahagement Resources Description

Court Decision California School EmployeesKennedy v. Livingsteon
UrtenBremerton School District; {2007 149 Cal. App. 4th

391 (2022) 142 5.Ct. 2407

FCCAMabfrnvnin Crlvmal Frnimdasmnn vr Famd il ™ o n s om T s




Court Decision

Court Decision

Website

Website

Website

_Cross References

Code
1114

1114

13121

13121

1312.3

13123
1312.3-E PDF(1)
1312.3-E PDF(2)
3230

3230

3512
3512-E(1)
3512-E PDF(1}
3513.3

35133

3513.4

3515.2

3515.2
3515.21
3515.3

3515.3

3516.2

3542

SkellyCSEA v. California Persennel Board;Foothill Community
Coilege District (1975) 4552 Cal. App. 3rd 15034 194

Skelly v. California Personnel Board {1975) 15 Cal.3d 194

Department of General Services, About Teacher Dismissal
Case Type (https://www.dgs.ca.gov/QAH/Case-
Types/General-Jurisdiction/About/Page-Content/About-
Teacher-Dismissal}

Office of Administrative Hearings
(https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OAH)

Office of the Attorney General {https://oag.ca.gov/)

Description
District-Sponsored Social Media

District-Sponsored Social Media
Complaints Concerning District Employees
Complaints Concerning District Employees
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Federal Grant- Funds

Federal Grant Funds

Equipment

Equipment

Equipment

Tobacco-Free Schools

Tobacco-Free Schools

Drug And Alcohol Free Schools
Disruptions

Disruptions

Unmanned Aircraft Systems (Drones)
District Police/Security Department
District Police/Security Department
Bomb Threats

School Bus Drivers



4020
4030

4030

4040
4040-E(1)
4040-E PDF(1)
4112.42
4112.42
4112.5
4112.5-E(1)
4112.5-E PDF(1)
4112.6
4113.5
4119.1
4119.12
4119.12-E(1)
4119.12-E PDF(1)
4119.21
4119.21-E(1)
4119.21-E PDF(1)
4119.22
4119.23
4119.24
4119.25
4119.25

4127

4127

4136

4141.6
4141.6

4154

4154

4157

4157

Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace

Nondiscrimination In Employment
Nondiscrimination in Employment

Employee Use Of Technology

Employee Use Of Technology

Employee Use Of Technology

Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Personnel Files

Working Remotely

Civil And Legal Rights

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures.
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Dress And Grooming

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions
Political Activities Of Employees

Political Activities Of Employees

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Nonschool Employment

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Health And Welfare Benefits

Health And Welfare Benefits

Employee Safety

Employee Safety




4158

4159

4161

4161
4161.11
4200

4200

4212
4212.42
421242
42125
4212.5-E(1)
4212.5-E PDF(1)
4212.6
4213.5

4216

42191
4219.12
4219.12-E(1)
4219.12-E PDF(1)
421921
4219.21-E{1)
4219.21-E PDF(1)
4219.22
4219.23
4219.24
4219.25
4219.25
4227

4227

4236

4241.6
4241.6
4254

 acEnoa

i

Employee Security
Employee Assistance Programs

Leaves

Leaves

Industrial Accident/lliness Leave

Classified Personnel

Classified Personnel

Appointment And Conditions Of Employment
Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Personnel Files

Working Remotely

Probationary/Permanent Status

Civil And Legal Rights

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Pracedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Dress And Grooming

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions
Political Activities Of Employees

Political Activities Of Employees

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Nonschool Employment

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Health And Welfare Benefits



4257

4257

4258

4258

4259

4261

4261
4261.11
4312.42
4312.42
4312.5
4312.5-E{1)
4312.5-E PDF(1)
4312.6
4313.5
4319.1
4319.12
4319.12-E(1)

4319.12-E PDF(1)

4319.21
4319.21-E(1)

4319.21-E PDK(1)

4319.22
4319.23
4319.24
4319.25
4319.25
4327
4327
4336
4354
4354
4357
4357

Employee Safety
Employee Safety
Employee Security

Employee Security

Employee Assistance Programs

Leaves

Leaves

Industrial Accident/lliness Leave

Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Personnel Files

Working Remotely

Civil And Legal Rights

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Dress And Grooming

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions
Political Activities Of Employees

Political Activities Of Employees

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Nonschool Employment

Health And Welfare Benefits

Health And Welfare Benefits

Employee Safety

Employee Safety




4358

4359

4361

4361

4361.11
51453

5145.3

5145.7

5145.7
5145.71
5145.71-E PDF(1)
5145.9

6145.2

6145.2
6162.54

2000

9321

2321-E PDF(1}
9321-E PDF(2)

. hcEwDA

Employee Security

Employee Assistance Programs

Leaves

Leaves

Industrial Accident/Illness Leave
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Nondiscrimination/Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Hate-Motivated Behavior

Athletic Competition

Athletic Competition

Test Integrity/Test Preparation

Role Of The Board

Closed Session

Closed Session

Closed Session



CSBA Sample District Policy Manu
CSBA Sample Manual Sk

Régi_.ul_a_t’ion 4218; 'Dismissa!/S_uspension/Discipiinary__l_\_ctio_n_ - o - Status: AD_O_F_’TED‘

Original Adopted Date: 06/01/1994 | Last Revised Date: 1009/01/2049202

Causes for Disciplinary Action

CSBA NOTE: The following section should be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code 45113
mandates districts not incorporating the merit system to prescribe, by rule or regulation, causes for
disciplinary action against permanent classified employees. Pursuant to Education Code 45101, such
employees may be disciplined only for cause as so prescribed.

A permanent classified employee may be subject to suspension, demotion, involuntary reassignment, or
dismissal for one or more of the following causes:

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 45122.1, 45123, and 45124, districts must not continue to
employ anyone who has been convicted of a specified sex offense, controlled substance offense, or
violent or serious offense as defined, except for employees who have been rehabilitated or had their
conviction reversed or the charges dismissed. Also see AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record
Check.

1. Immoral conduct, including, but not limited to, egregious misconduct that is the basis for a sex
offense as defined in Education Code 44010, a controlled substance offense as defined in
Education Code 44011, or child abuse and neglect as described in Penal Code 11 165.2-11165.6

2. Conduct that constitutes a violent or serious felony as defined in Penal Code 667.5(c) or 1192.7(c

3. Unlawful discrimination, including harassment, against any student or other employee

4. Violation of or refusal to obey state or federal law or regulation, Board policy, or district or school
procedure

5. Falsification of any information supplied to the district, including, but not limited to, information
supplied on application forms, employment records, or any other school district records

6. Unsatisfactory performance

7. Unprofessional conduct

8. Dishonesty

9. Neglect of duty or absence without leave
10. Insubordination

11. Use of alcohol or a controlled substance while on duty or in such close time proximity thereto as
to affect the employee’s performance

12. Destruction or misuse of district property

13. Failure to fulfill any ongoing condition of employment including, but not limited to, maintenance
of anv license. certificate. or other similar reauirement spnecified in the emplovee's class




CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act (42 USC 12101-12213) and the
state's Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code 12900-12996), the district has a duty to -
reasonably accommodate qualified employees with known disabilities, except when such
accommodation would cause an undue hardship to the district. This accommodation is not required for
individuals who are not otherwise qualified for the job. '

“14. A physical or mental condition which precludes the employee from the proper performance of
duties and responsibilities as determined by competent medical authority, except as otherwise
provided by a contract or by law

15. Retaliation against any person who, in good faith, reports, discloses, divulges, or otherwise brings
to the attention of any appropriate authority any information relative to an actual or suspected
violation of state or federal law occurring on or directly related to the job

16. Violation of Education Code 45303 or Government Code 1028 {prohibiting the advocacy or
teaching of communism}

17. Any other misconduct which is of such nature that it causes discredit or injury to the district or
the employee's position

retaliated against solely for acting to protect a student; or for refusing to infringe on a student's protected
conduch when that student is exercising free speech or press rights pursuant o Education Cede 48907
or 48950, {Education Code 48907, 48950)

No disciplinary action shall be taken for any cause which arose before the employee became permanent,
nor for any cause which arose more than two years before the date of the filing of the notice of cause
unless this cause was concealed or not disclosed by the employee when it could be reasonably assumed
that the employee would have disclosed the facts to the district. (Education Code 45113)

Initiation and Notification of Charges

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Skelly v, State Personnel Board, permanent public employees are entitled to due
process before any punitive disciplinary action, such as termination, suspension, or demotion, may be
taken against such employees. These procedural rights include provision of notice of the materials upon
which the proposed action is based and the right to respond, either orally or in writing, to a district
official ("Skelly officer"} who is designated to decide whether the recommended discipline should be
imposed. '

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notice to the employee of a recommendation for discipline,
which includes the charges and materials upon which the recommendation is based. The notification shall
identify an impartial district official ("Skelly officer") with whom the employee may meet at a specified
time and place or to whom the empioyee may provide a written response to the recommendation of
discipline. After meeting with the employee or considering any response from the employee, the Skelly
officer shall recommend to the Superintendent or designee whether to proceed with the
recommendation for discipline.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45113 mandates districts to adopt disciplinary procedures which contain
provisions for giving classified employees a written notice of specific charges, the employee's right to a
hearing on those charges, the time within which the hearing may be requested, and a card or paper to
complete to request a hearing.

The Superintendent or designee shall file any final recommendation for a disciplinary action in writing



The notice shall, in ordinary and concise language, inform the employee of the specific charge(s) or
cause(s) for the disciplinary action, the specific acts and omissions upon which the action is based, and, if
applicable, the district rule or regulation that the employee has allegedly violated. In addition, the notice
shall include the employee's right to a hearing on those charges, the time within which the hearing may
be requested which shall be not less than five days after service of the notice to the employee, and a carc
or paper which the employee may sign and file to deny the charges and request a hearing. (Education
Code 45113, 45116)

Request for Board Hearing

CSBA NOTE: As provided in the section "Initiation and Notification of Charges" above, Education Code
45113 requires that the notice of disciplinary action include the time within which a hearing may be
requested, which cannot be less than five days after service of the notice to the employee. In California
School Employees Association v. Livingston Union School District, the appeals court ruled that the
district failed to provide due process to an employee when it denied the employee the opportunity to
request a hearing based on the employee's failure to respond within five days after service of the notice.
The district’s policy had established the date of "service of the notice" as the date of mailing, but the
employee was a 10-month employee who was out of town when the notice was delivered. The court
held that the notice was not "reasonably calculated" to provide an opportunity to timely request a
hearing. Thus, it is recommended that districts use the date of the employee's receipt of the notice as
the date upon which the five-day response period begins. For further information on the evidentiary
hearing conducted by the Board or a hearing officer, see the accompanying Board policy.

Within the time specified in the notice of the recommendation of disciplinary action, the employee may
request a hearing on the charges by signing and filing the card or paper included with the notice.
(Education Code 45113)

Any other written document signed and appropriately filed within the specified time limit by the
employee shall constitute a sufficient notice of the request for a hearing. The request shall be delivered
to the office of the Superintendent or designee during normal work hours of that office. If mailed to the
office of the Superintendent or designee, it must be received or postmarked no later than the time limit
specified by the district. In cases where an order of suspension without pay has been issued in _
conjunction with a recommendation of dismissal, any request for a hearing on the dismissal shall also
constitute a request to hear the suspension order, and the necessity of the suspension order shall be an
issue in the hearing.

Employment Status Pending a Hearing

A classified employee against whom a recommendation of disciplinary action has been issued shall remain
on active duty status pending any hearing on the charges, unless the Superintendent or designee
determines that the employee's continuance in active duty would present an unreasonabie risk of harm to
students, staff, or property. The Superintendent or designee may, in writing, order the employee
immediately suspended from duty without pay and shall state the reasons that the suspension is deemed
necessary. The suspension order shall be served upon the employee either personally or by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, immediately after issuance.

Compulsory Leave of Absence

CSBA NOTE: State law requires that classified employees in merit system districts and certificated
employees be immediately placed on compulsory leave of absence following conviction for certain

e - — P NN



Code 45113 to establish causes for suspension or dismissal. The following section may be revised to
reflect district practice. '

Upon being informed by law enforcement that a classified employee has been charged with a "mandatonr
teave of absence offense," the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place the employee on a
leave of absence. A mandatory leave of absence offense includes:

1. Any sex offense as defined in Education Code 44010
2. Violation or attempted violation of Penal Code 187 {prohibiting murder or attempted murder)

3. Any offense involving the unlawful sale, use, or exchange to minors of controlled substances as
listed in Health and Safety Code 11054, 11055, and 11056

The Superintendent or designee may place on an immediate compulsory leave of absence a classified
employee who is charged with an "optional leave of absence offense," defined as a controlied substance
offense specified in Education Code 44011 and Health and Safety Code 11357-11361, 11363, 11364,
and 11370.1 except as it relates to marijuana, mescaline, peyote, or tetrahydrocannabinols.

An employee's compulsory leave for a mandatory or optional leave of absence offense may extend for
not more than 10 days after the entry of judgment in the criminal proceedings. However, the compulsory
leave may be extended if the Board gives notice, within 10 days after the entry of judgment in the
proceedings, that the employee will be dismissed within 30 days from the date of service of the notice
unless the employee demands a hearing on the dismissal.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description

Ed. Code 35161 Board delegation of any powers or duties

Ed. Code 44009 Conviction of specified crimes

Ed. Code 44010 Sex offense; definitions

Ed. Code 44011 Controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 44940 Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Ed. Code 44940.5 Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave
of absence

Ed. Code 45101 Definitions (including disciplinary action, cause)

Ed. Code 45109 Fixing of duties

Ed. Code 45113 Notification of charges, classified empioyees

Ed. Code 45123 Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense

Ed. Code 45302 Demotion and removal from permanent classified service

Ed. Code 45303 Additional cause for suspension or dismissal of employee

1 =i [ [} L | rr



Veh. Code 1808.8

Federal

42 USC 12101-12213

Management Resources

Court Decision

Court Decision

Court Decision

Cross References

Code
1114

1114

1312.1

13121

1312.3

13123
1312.3-E PDF(1)
1312.3-E PDF(2)
3230

3230

3512
3512-E(1)
3512-E PDF(1)
3513.3

35133
35134
3515.2
3515.2
3515.21
35153
35153
3516.2

3542

SchoelbusSchool bus drivers; dismissal for safety-related
cause

Description
Americans with Disabilities Act

Description
California School Employees v. Livingston Union School
District, {2007} 149 Cal. App. 4th 391

CSEA v. Foothill Community College District, 52 Cal. App. 3rd
150, 155-156

Skelly v. California Personnel Board, (1975) 15 Cal.3d 194

Description
District-Sponsored Social Media

District-Sponsored Social Media
Complaints Concerning District Employees
Complaints Concerning District Employees
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Federal Grant Funds

Federal Grant Funds

Equipment

Equipment

Equipment

Tobacco-Free Schools

Tobacco-Free Schools

Drug And Alcohol Free Schools
Disruptions

Disruptions

Unmanned Aircraft Systems (Drones)
District Police/Security Department
District Police/Security Department
Bomb Threats

School Bus Drivers



4020
4030

4030

4040

4040-E(1)
4040-E PDF(1)
411242
4112.42
41125
4112.5-E(1)
4112.5-E PDF(1)
41126
41135

4119.1

4119.12
4119.12-E(1)
4119.12-E PDF(1)
4119.21
4119.21-E(1)
4119.21-E PDF(1)
4119.22
4119.23
4119.24
411925
4119.25

4127

4127

4136

41416

4141.6

4154

4154

4157

4157

Drug And Alcahol-Free Workplace
Nondiscrimination In Employment
Nondiscrimination In Employment

Employee Use Of Technology

Employee Use Of Technology

Employee Use Of Technology

Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Personnel Files

Working Remotely

Civil And Legal Rights

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title X Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Dress And Grooming

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information
Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions
Political Activities Of Employees

Political Activities Of Employees

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Nonschool Employment

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Health And Welfare Benefits

Health And Welfare Benefits

Employee Safety

Employee Safety



4158

4159

4161

4161
4161.11
4200

4200

4212

4212 42
421242
4212.5
4212.5-E(1)
4212.5-E PDF(1}
4212.6
42135

4216

42191
4219.12
4219.12-E(1)
4219.12-E PDF(1)
4219.21
4219.21-E(1)
4219.21-E PDF{1)
4219.22
4219.23
4219.24
4219.25
4219.25
4227

4227

4236

4241.6
4241.6

4254

Employee Security

Employee Assistance Programs

Leaves

Leaves

industrial Accident/lliness Leave

Classified Personnel

Classified Personnel

Appointment And Conditions Of Employment
Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Personnel Files

Working Remotely

Probationary/Permanent Status

Civil And Legal Rights

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Dress And Grooming

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/ Privileged Information
Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions
Political Activities Of Employees

Political Activities Of Employees

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Temporary Athletic Team Coaches

Nonschool Employment

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Concerted Action/Work Stoppage

Health And Welfare Benefits



4257
4257

4258

4258

4259

4261

4261

4261.11
4312.42
4312.42

43125
4312.5-E(1)
4312.5-E PDF(1)
4312.6

43135

4319.1

4319.12
4319.12-E(1)
4319.12-E PDF(1)
4319.21
4319.21-E(1)
4319.21-E PDF(1)
4319.22
4319.23
4319.24
4319.25
4319.25

4327

4327

4336

4354

4354

4357

4357

1

Employee Safety
Employee Safety
Employee Security
Employee Security
Employee Assistance Programs

Leaves

Leaves

Industrial Accident/lliness Leave

Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Drug And Alcohol Testing For School Bus Drivers
Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Personnel Files

Working Remotely

Civil And Legal Rights

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Professional Standards

Dress And Grooming

Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/Privileged Information

Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions
Political Activities Of Employees
Political Activities Of Employees
Temporary Athletic Team Coaches
Temporary Athletic Team Coaches
Nonschool Employment

Health And Welfare Benefits
Health And Welfare Benefits
Employee Safety

Employee Safety




4358

4359

4361

4361

4361.11
51453

5145.3

5145.7

5145.7
514571
5145.71-E PDF(1)
5145.9

6145.2

6145.2
6162.54

9000

9321

9321-E PDF(1)
9321-E PDF(2)

Employee Security

Employee Assistance Programs

Leaves

Leaves

industrial Accident/liiness Leave
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Nondiscrimination/Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures
Hate-Motivated Behavior

Athletic Competition

Athletic Competition

Test Integrity/Test Preparation

Role Of The Board

Closed Session

Closed Session

Closed Session



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Po!icy4218.1:.Dis_rn_issaI/Sus_pgnsion/Di_s_ciplinaryActibn_(Mé’_rit}_Sys_tem)_' . Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 07/01/2019 | Last Revised Date: $309/01/20493022

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy is for use by districts that have incorporated the merit
system for classified employees pursuant to Education Code 45240-45320. For procedures applicable
to districts that have not incorporated the merit system, see BP/AR 4218 -
Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action.

Pursuant to Education Code 45260-45261, in 2 merit system district, the personnel commission has
authority to prescribe rules for the efficiency of the classified service, including rules pertaining to
demotions, transfers, and dismissals of classified employees. The following policy may be replaced by
and/or supplemented with the personnel commission rules.

The Governing Board expects all employees to perform their jobs satisfactorily and exhibit professional
and appropriate conduct. A classified employee may be disciplined for unprofessional conduct or
unsatisfactory performance in accordance with law, any applicable coliective bargaining agreement, and
the rules of the personnel commission.

CSBA NOTE: When disciplining an employee, the district must ensure that all the surrounding facts and
circumstances are considered and analyzed within the parameters of any applicable constitutional or legal
framework. In Kennedy v. Bremerton School District, the U.S. Supreme Court held that the district
violated the employee's protected free exercise and free speech rights when the district did not rehire
the employee, a coach, for refusing to follow the district’s direction to refrain from kneeling and praying
at the 50-vard line immediately after each football game. The district’s direction was based on a concern
that the employee’s prayer violated the district’s religious practices policy and could subject the district to
an Establishment Clause violation. Notwithstanding that the praver occurred at a school event and in the
presence of students, the court reasoned that the timing and circumstances indicated that the coach’s
prayers were offered as a private citizen rather than as a district employee, According to the Court, since
the prayer, a religious activity, occurred during a period when emplovees would ordinarily be free to
engage in personal secular activities such as speaking with friends, checking email, calling for restaurant
reservations, etc., the district’s concerns about a possible Establishment Clause violation did not justify
restricting the employee’s free exercise and free speech rights to engage in a personal religious activity
such as offering a prayer. Employee discipline, especially with respect to suspension and dismissal,
involves complex fegal considerations and districts are advised to consult CSBA District and County
Office of Education Legal Services or the district’s legal counsel, accordingly.

Disciplinary actions shall be based on the particular facts and circumstances involved and the severity of
the employee's conduct or performance. An employee's private exercise of personal beliefs and

activities, including religious, political, cultural, social, or other beliefs or activities, or lack thereof, shall

not be grounds for disciplinary action against the employee, provided that the beliefs or activities donot
involve coercion of students or any other violation of law, Board policy. or administrative regulation.

In addition, an employee shall not be suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, dismissed, or
otherwise retaliated against solely for acting to protect a student engaged in exercising any free speech
or press right authorized by, or for refusing to infringe upon a student's conduct protected pursuant to,
Education Code 48907 or 48950.




The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that disciplinary actions are taken in a consistent,
nondiscriminatory manner and are appropriately documented.

A probationary classified employee may be dismissed without cause at any time prior to the expiration of
the probationary period.

A permanent classified employee shall be subject to suspension, demotion, or dismissal only for one or
more of the causes designated by rule of the personnel commission.- (Education Code 45302, 45304)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph should be revised to reflect district practice. In Skefly v. State
Personnel Board, the California Supreme Court held that permanent public employees have a property
right to continued public employment and that due process is required before any punitive disciplinary
action, such as termination, suspension, or demotion, may be taken against such employees, These
procedural rights include notice of the proposed materials upon which the action is based and the right
to respond, either orally or in writing, to the individual recommending that discipline be imposed. These
procedural rights are designed to protect an employee against wrongful discipline without necessitating
a full evidentiary hearing.

In addition, pursuant to Education Code 45306, an employee for whom disciplinary action is
recommended may request a hearing before the personnel commission. The personnel commission may
modify the disciplinary action, but may not make the action more stringent than was approved by the
Governing Board. If the personnel commission sustains the employee's appeal, it may order all or part of
the full compensation from the time of suspension, demotion, or dismissal and may establish other terms
and conditions for the employee's reinstatement {e.g., compensation of the employee's expenses in
pursuit of the appeal, transfer of the employee, expunction of the disciplinary action from the
employee's personnel file). -

When such serious disciplinary action is being contemplated against an employee, the district shall adhere
to disciplinary procedures developed by the personnel commission. Due process shall be afforded to the
employee, including proper notice, an opportunity for the employee to meet with a designated district
official ("Skelly officer") or to respond in writing to the charges, and an opportunity to appeal the district's
decision with the personnel commission in accordance with Education Code 45305-45307.- If the matter
is addressed in a hearing before the personnel commission, the decision of the personnel commission
shall be final.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 45312 requires the personnel commission to delegate its authority to an
administrative law judge in cases involving allegations of egregious misconduct with a minor. Egregious
misconduct is defined as immoral conduct leading to an allegation of a sex offense pursuant to
Education Code 44010, a controlled substance offense pursuant to Education Code 44011, or child
abuse or neglect pursuant to Penal Code 11165.2-11165.6.

However, if the matter involves an allegation of egregious misconduct as defined in Education Code

44932 and involves a witness who is a minor, the matter shall be referred to an administrative law judge
to determine whether sufficient cause exists for disciplinary action against the employee.- The ruling of
the administrative law judge shall be binding on the district and the employee.-_ (Education Code 45312)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copynight 2022 by California School Boards Asseciation, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:



State
Civ. Code 1286.2

Ed. Code 11500-11506
Ed. Code 35161

Ed. Code 44009

Ed. Code 44010

Ed. Code 44011

Ed. Code 44031

Ed. Code 44940

Ed. Code 44940.5

Ed. Code 44990-44994

Ed. Code 45101
Ed. Code 45109
Ed. Code 45123
Ed. Code 45124
Ed. Code 45202
Ed. Code 45240-45320
Ed. Code 45302-45307

Gov. Code 12900-12996
Gov. Code 54957

H&S Code 11054

H&S Code 11055

H&S Code 11056

H&S Code 11357-11361
H&S Code 11363

H&S Code 11364

H&S Code 11370.1

Pen. Code 11165.2-11165.6

Pen. Code 1192.7
Pen. Code 187
Pen. Code 667.5
Pen. Code 830.32

Description
Grounds for vacating decision of arbitrator

Programs to encourage parent involvement

Board delegation of any powers or duties

Conviction of specified crimes

Sex offense; definitions

Controlled substance offense

Personnel file contents and inspection

Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons

Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave
of absence :

Testimony of minor witnesses at dismissal or suspension
hearings

Definitions {including disciplinary action, cause)

Fixing of duties

Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense
Dismissal of sexual psychopath

Transfer of accumulated sick leave and other benefits

Merit system

Suspension, dismissal, or other disciplinary action; classified
employees

Fair Employment and Housing Act

Complaints against employees; right to open session
Schedule I; substances included

Schedule II; substances included

Schedule Hi; substances included

Marijuana

Peyote

Opium

Possession of controlled substances with a firearm
Child abuse or neglect; definitions

Plea bargaining limitation

Murder

Prior prison terms;; enhancement of prison terms

School district and community college police



- Acewba

California Constitution Article 1, Section Inalienable rights

1

Federal Description

42 USC 12101-12213 Americans with Disabilities Act

U.S. Constitution First Amendment Free exercise, free speech, and establishment clauses

Management Resources Description

CA School Personnel Comm Association Merit Rules and Regulations:- CSPCA Recommended

Publication Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual for California
School Merit Systems, 2014

Court Decisicn Kennedy v. Bremerton School District (2022) 142 S. Ct. 2407

Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Personnel

: Commission {1970) 3 Cal.3d 139

Court Decision California School Employees Association v. Bonita Unified
School District; (2008) No. B200141

Court Decision California School Empioyees v. Livingston Union School
District; (2007) 149 Cal. App. 4th 391

Court Decision CSEA v, Foothill Community College District; (1975} 52 Cal.
App. 3rd 150,1455-156

Court Decision Skelly v. California Personnel Board, {1975) 15 Cal.3d 194

Websit CSBA Distric L c o  Ed ‘onl I Serv

Website California School Personnel Commissioners Association

Website ' Department of General Services, About Teacher Dismissal
Case Type {https:.//www.dgs.ca.cov/OAH/Case-
Types/General-Jurisdiction/About/Page-Content/About-
Teacher-Dismissal)

Website Office of Administrative Hearings
(https://www.dgs.ca.gov/QAH)

Website Office of the Attorney General (https:/ J/oag.ca.gov/) -

Cross References

Code Description

13121 Complaints Concerning District Employees
13121 Complaints Concerning District Employees
3230 Federal Grant Funds

3230 Federal Grant Funds

4000 Concepts And Roles

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

4030 Nondiscrimination In Employment

41125 Criminal Record Check




4112.6

4119.1

4119.11
4119.11
4119.21
4119.21-E{1)
4119.21-E PDF1)
4119.24

4141

4200

4200

4212.5
4212.5-E(1)
4212.5-E PDF(1)
4212.6

4216

4219.1

421911
4219.11
4219.21
4219.21-E(1)
4219.21-E PDF(1)
421924

4241

43125
4312.5-E(1}
4312.5-E PDF(1}
4312.6

4319.1

4319.11
4319.11
4319.21
4319.21-E(1)
4319.21-E PDF(1)

Personnel Files

Civil And Legal Rights

Sexual Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Professional Standards
Professional Standards
Professional Standards
Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions
Collective Bargaining Agreement
Classified Personnel

Classified Personnel

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check
Personnel Files
Probationary/Permanent Status
Civil And Legal Rights

Sexual Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Professional Standards
Professional Standards
Professional Standards
Maintaining Appropriate Adult-Student Interactions
Collective Bargaining Agreement
Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check

Criminal Record Check
Personnel Files

Civil And Legal Rights

Sexual Harassment

Sexual Harassment

Professional Standards
Professional Standards

Professional Standards



‘CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy61642 GuldanceICounselmgSemces S _' Sta_tu_’s:_AD_OPT'ED'

Ol'lginal Adopted Date: 11/01/2007 | I.ast Revlsed Date. 9309/01/294:é2022 I I.ast Reviewed Date: ._
0309/01/. 291—62022 . :

CSBA NOTE: The following optional Board policy should be revised to reflect district practice. Education
Code 49600 autherizes, as amended b AB 2508 (Ch. 153, Statutes of 2022) urges districts to offer a
structured; eoherent; and students a comprehensive educational counseling program that is
implemented by eredentialed school eounselers:in a structured and coherent manner within a Multi-
Tiered Systems of Support framework. Pursuant to Education Code 49600, i the district chooses to
offer an educational counseling program, that as amended by AB 2508, specialized services offered
under such a program must include academic eounseling as defined,; and may include other specified
components:be provided by appropriately credentialed school counselors.

The Governing Board recognizes that a structured, coherent, and comprehensive counseling program
promotes academic achievement and growth, and serves the diverse needs of all district students. The
district shall provide an educational counseling program that offers students services and supports within
a Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS) framework, in accordance with law. Counseling staff shall be
available to provide students with individualized reviews of their educational progress toward academic
and/or career and vocational goals and, as appropriate, may discuss social, personal, or other issues that
may impact student learning and weli-being.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 44266 and 5 CCR 80049-80049.1, persons authorized to
provide services in school counseling, school psychology, or school social work must possess a pupH
personnel servieesPupil Personnel Services credential, with the appropriate specialization, issued by the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all persons employed to provide direct school
counseling, school psychology, andfer school social work services to students, and/or implement
equitable school programs and services that support students’ academic and social emotional
development and college and career readiness shall possess the appropriate credential from the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing authorizing their employment in such positions. Responsibilities
of each pesitiensuch positions shall be clearly defined in a job description.

CSBA NOTE: The following optional list may be revised to reflect district practice. Education Code
49600, as amended by $B 451 {Ch: 539, Statutes of 2015},AB 2508, expresses the Legislature's intent
that school counselors fulfill the folowing responsibilities.

Responsibilities of school counselors include, but are not limited to:

1—Engaging with; advocating for; and providing support for all students with respect to learning and
achievement

1. Engaging with, advocating for, and providing all students with direct services, such as individual
counseling, group counseling, risk assessment, crisis response, and instructional services, including
mental health and behavioral, academic, and postsecondary educational services and indirect
services, including but not limited to, positive school climate strategies, teacher and parent
consultations, and referrals to public and private community services

Z 2. Planning, implementing, and evaluating school counseling programs te premete the




3 Usingl. Working within a MTSS that uses multiple data sources of infermation to monitor
and improve student behavior, attendance, engagement, and achievement

4. Developing, coordinating, and supervising comprehensive student support systems in
collaboration with teachers, administrators, other pupil personnel services professionals, families,
community partners, and community agencies, including county mental health agencies

5. 5, Promoting and maintaining a safe learning environment for all students by providing
restorative justiee practices, positive behavior interventions, and support services
. and by developing a variety of intervention strategies, and using those strategies, to meet
individual, group, and school community needs before, during, and after a crisis

& 6. Intervening to ameliorate school-related problems, including issuesproblems related to
chronic absences
and retention

= 7 Using research-based strategies to promote mental wellness, reduce mental health stigma,

eonflict; and student-te-studentand fo identify characteristics, risk factors, and warning signs of
students who develop, or are at risk of developing, mental health and behavioral disorders and

who experience, or are at risk of experiencing, mistreatment and, including mistreatment related to

any form of conflict or bullying

8 8. Improving school climate and student well-being
by addressing the mental and behavioral health needs of students during a period of transition,
separation, heightened stress, and critical changes, accessing community programs and services to
meet those needs, and providing other appropriate services

9. 9 Enhancing students' social and emotional competence, character, health, civic _
engagement, cultural legaeyliteracy, and commitment to lifelong learning and the pursuit of high-
quality educational programs

CSBA NOTE: [tem #10 below may be revised to specify only English learners, students eligible for
free and reduced-price meals, and foster youth, as provided in Education Code 49600. However
a district is permitted to provide such services to other categories of students who may be in
need, such as students experiencing homelessness

16 10. Providing counseling interventions and suppert services for unduplicated students who
are classified as English learners, or foster youth, homeless children, and students eligible for free
erand reduced-priced meals, of foster youth; including enhaneinginterventions and support
services that enhance equity and access to theappropriate education systemsystems and
eommunitypublic and private services

11, Engaging in continued development as a professional school counselor




CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that maintain any of grades 7-12 and
may be revised to reflect district practice and the grade levels offered by the district.

Educational And Career Counseling

Beginning in grade 7, parents/guardians shall receive a general notice at least once before career
counseling and course selection so that they may participate in the counseling sessions and decisions.
(Education Code 221.5)

CSBA NOTE: items #1-5 below reflect required components of educational counseling programs
specified in Education Code 49600, as amended by SB 451 (Ch: 539, Statutes of 2015)AB 2508,

The educational counseling program shall include academic counseling and postsecondary services, in the
following areas: (Education Code 49600));

I 1. Development and implementation, with parent/guardian involvement, of the student's
immediate and long-range educational plans

Z 2 Optimizing progress towards achievement of proficiency standards and competencies

3. Completion of the required curriculum in accordance with the student's needs, abilities,
interests, and aptitudes

4 4, Academic planning for access and success in higher education programs, including
advisement on courses needed for admission to publie colieges and universities, standardized
admissions tests, and financial aid

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 49600, educational counseling must include career
and vocational counseling as described in i#emltem #5 below. As amended by B 451 {Ch: 53%;
Statutes of 20455AB 2508, Education Code 49600 requires that professional development
related to career and vocational counseling include strategies for counseling students pursuing
postsecondary education, career technical education, multiple pathways, college, and. global
career opportunities.

5. Career and vecational eounseling,5. High-quality career programs at all grade levels in which
students are assisted in doing all of the following: :

a a Planning for the future, including, but not limited to, identifying personal interests,
skilis, and abilities, career planning, course selection, and career transition

b b. Becoming aware of personal preferences and interests that influence educational
and occupational exploration, career choice, and career success

& C Developing realistic perceptions of work; self-efficacy for the ever-cha nging wark
environment, the changing needs of the workforce, and the effecteffects of work on

lifesbye guality of life

& d. Understanding the relationship between academic achievement and career
success, and the importance of maximizing career options




e e Understanding the value of participating in career technical education and werk-
based learning activities and pathways, programs, and certifications, including, but not
limited to, service learning; those related to regional occupational cepters and programs
partrership programs; job shadewing; and mentoring experience

and centers, the federal program administered by the United States Department of Labor
offering free education and vocational training to students, known as “Job Corps.” the
California Conservation Corps, work-based learning, industry certifications, college
preparation and credit, and employment opportunities

£ f Understanding the need to develop essential employable skills and work habits

voeational and technical preparation programs; as well as admission criteria and enrollment
procedures

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 49600, as amended by AB 2508, adds the following component to
educational counseling programs, reflected below.

the benefits of the Armed Services Vocational Aptitude Battery (ASVAB} test

CSBA NOTE: In addition to the required components listed above, Education Code 49400, as amended

by §B 451 {Ch. 539, Statutes of 2045)1,AB 2508, includes a list of optional components which a district
may. at its discretion, offer as part of the educational counseling program. At its diseretion; the district

may expand the following paragraph to reflect any of those optional compenents it chooses to include
in its educational counseling program:

The district's educational counseling program also may include, but not be limited to, identification of
students who are at risk of not graduating with the rest of their elasspeers, development of a list of
coursework and experience necessary to assist students to satisfy the curricular requirements for college
admission and successfully transition to postsecondary education or employment, and counseling
regarding available options for a student te centinue histher education if he/she failsstudents who fail to
meet graduation requirements:

to continue with their education.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a program of guidance, placement, and
follow-up for all high school students subject to compulsory continuation education. (Education Code

48431)

CSBA Note: As amended by AB 2508, Education Code 49600 also permits districts to offer mentatl and
behavioral health services as provided in the following paragraph.

As part of the district's educational counseling program, students may be offered mental and behavioral
health services under which a student may receive prevention, intervention, short-term counseling
services, and mental health related classroom instruction to reduce stigma and increase awareness of

counseling support services.

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 221.5 prohibits school counselors from offering vocational or school
program guidance to a student of one sex that is different from that offered to a student of the opposite
sex. In addition, 5 CCR 4930 prohibits discrimination in counseling programs to the same extent that
discrimination is prohibited in all other district programs and activities. Prohibited bases for
discrimination in district brograms are specified in BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and



No counselor shall unlawfully discriminate against any student. Guidance counseling regarding school
programs and career, vocational, or higher education opportunities shall not be differentiated on the basi
of any protected category specified in BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities.

In addition, counselors shall affirmatively explore with studentsa student the possibility_ of careers, or
courses leading to careers, that are nontraditional for that student's sex. {Education Code 221.5})

For assessing or counseling students, the district shall not use testing or other materials that permit or
require impermissible or unlawful differential treatment of students. (5 CCR 4931)

CSBA NOTE: 20 USC 7908 requires districts receiving funds under the Elementary and Secondary _
Education Act (ESEA) to provide military recruiters with the same access to students as is provided to
colleges and prospective employers. Districts that do not grant similar access may lose those funds and
may be subject to specific interventions, such as notification to the Governor and Congress, so that
public officials can work with the district. Districts that do not receive ESEA funds and that choose to
grant access to college and employment recruiters should do so on a nondiscriminatory basis. Education
Code 49603 provides that military service recruiters may not be denied on-campus access to students in
grades 9-12 if the district provides such access to other employers. For information regarding military
recruiter access to student directory information, see BP/AR 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information.

Option 1 below is for use by districts that choose to adopt a policy that permits college and employment
recruiters, including military recruiters, access to students. Option 2 is for districts that choose to adopt
a policy that does not permit such access.

OPTION 1: Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall have the same access
to students for recruiting purposes. (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503: 20 USC 7908)

OPTION 1 ENDS HERE

OPTION 2: Colleges and prospective employers, including military recruiters, shall not have access to
students for recruiting purposes. (Education Code 49603; 10 USC 503)

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 3074.2, as added by AB 643 (Ch. 324, Statutes of 2021), districts
"are encouraged to provide students with opportunities to explore, make career choices, and seek
appropriate instruction and training to support those choices, by hosting locally focused apprenticeship
and/or career and technical education fair events, such as college and career fairs.

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with businesses, government agencies, postsecondary
institutions including universities and career technical schools, community organizations, and/or other
emplovers to provide students with actual or simulated work-based iearning opportunities through
college and/or career fairs.

CSBA NOTE: Labor Code 3074.2, as added by AB 643, requires any district planning to hold a college or
career fair to identify approved apprenticeship programs in the county and notify such programs that
they are hosting a college or career fair. To identify approved programs the district is required to rely on
the Division of Apprenticeship Standards’ database of approved apprenticeship programs, published by
the Division of Apprenticeship Standards located on its internet web site.

When planning to hold a college or career fair, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each
apprenticeship program in the county. The notification shall include the planned date, time and location
of the college or career fair. (Labor Code 3074.2)




CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. A school
counselor, school psychologist, or school social worker may offer personal or family counseling in
accordance with the authorizations on histhertheir credentials, In addition, districts may provide menta
health services through school-based health centers (see BP 5141.6 - School Health Services) and/or
may collaborate with community agencies, organizations, and heaith care providers to ensure that
services are available.

A school counselor, school psychologist, or school social worker may provide individualized personal,
mental health, or family counseling to students in accordance with the specialization(s} authorized by
histhertheir credential. Such services may include, but are not limited to, support related to the student"
social and emotional development, behavior, substance abuse, mental health assessment, depression, or
mental illness. As appropriate, students and their parents/guardians shall be informed about community
agencies, organizations, or health care providers that offer qualified professional assistance.

CSBA NOTE: If a minor is 11 years old or younger, consent by a parent/guardian is required before
providing the minor with outpatient mental health counseling or treatment services. Family Code 6920-
6929 and Health and Safety Code 124260 allow a minor age 12 or older to consent to outpatient
mental health counseling or treatment services without parent/guardian consent if, in the opinion of a
school psychologist or other professional person, as defined, the minor is mature enough to participate
intelligently in the services. However, the child's parent/guardian must still be involved unless the
professional person determines it would be inappropriate. '

Written parent/guardian consent shall be obtained before mental health counseling or treatment ser\_/icer
are provided to a student, except when the student is authorized to consent to the service pursuant to
Family Code 6920-6929, Health and Safety Code 124260, or other applicable law.

Any information of a personal nature disclosed to a school counselor by a student age 12 years or older
or by his/herthe student’s parent/guardian is confidential and shall not become part of the student recore
without the written consent of the person who disclosed the confidential information. The information
shall not be revealed, released, discussed, or referred to except under the limited circumstances specified
in Education Code 49602. (Education Code 49602)

A counselor shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and, as appropriate, with the district's legal
counsel whenever unsure of how to respond to a student's personal problem or when questions arise
regarding the possible release of confidential information regarding a student.

Crisis Counseling

The Board recognizes the need for a prompt and effective response when students are confronted with a
traumatic incident. School counselors shall assist in the development of the comprehensive school
safety plan, emergency and disaster preparedness plan, and other prevention and intervention practices
designed to assist students and parents/guardians before, during, and after a crisis.

Early identification and intervention plans shall be developed to help identify those students who may
be at risk for violence so that support may be provided before they engage in violent or disruptive
behavior.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall identify crisis counseling resources to train district staff
in effective threat assessment, appropriate response techniques, and/or methods to directly help

students cope with a crisis if it occurs.

Teacher-Based Advisory Program




CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to provide a teacher-
based advisory program as authorized by. Education Code 49600. The following section may be revised
to reflect district practice, including the grade levels at which the program will operate. It should be
deleted by districts in which all student counseling is provided by credentialed school counselors.

The Board recognizes that a supportive, ongoing relationship with a caring adult can provide a student
with valuable advice, enhance student-teacher relationships, and build the student's feelings of
connectedness with the school. The Board authorizes the development of a teacher-based advisory
program in which teachers advise students in such areas as academic planning, character development,
conflict resolution, and self-esteem. Any teacher participating in this program shall be under the
supervision of a credentialed school counselor as appropriate, receive related information and training,
and be subiject to this Board policy and law, including requirements pertaining to student confidentiality
and nondiscrimination.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description

5 CCR 4930-4931 Counseling

5 CCR 80049-80049.1 Pupil personnel servicesPersonnel Services credential

5 CCR 80632-80632.5 Preparation programs for pupit persennel servicesPupil
Personnel Services

Ed. Code 221.5 Equal opportunity

Ed. Code 44266 Pupil personnel serdeesPersonnel Services credential

Ed. Code 48431 Establishing and maintaining high school guidance and
placement program

Ed. Code 49600-49604 Educational counseling

Ed. Code 51250-51251 Assistance to military dependents

Ed. Code 51513 Personal beliefs

Fam. Code 6920-6930 Consent by minor for medical treatment

Gov. Code 6254 Exemption for personnel records if invasion of personal
privacy

H&S Code 124260 Mental health services: consent by minors age 12 and older

Labor Code 3074.2 College and career fairs; notice to apprenticeship programs

Pen. Code 11166-11170 Reporting known or suspected cases of child abuse

W&I Code 5850-5883 Mental Health Services Act

Federal Description

10 USC 503 Military recruiter access to directory information

IMNIICRC 19270 ex Camilhs EAdniratinnal Riaghtc and Drivams Art {EERDAY ~f 1Q7A




20 UsSC 7908

34 CFR 99.1-99.67

Management Resources
California Department of Education
Publication

Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Website

Cross References

Code
0410

0415

0450

0450

0460

0460

0470

13123

1312.3

1312.3-E PDF(1)
1312.3-E PDF{(2)
1313

1400

3515
3515
3516
3516
3516.2
4112.2
41122

Armed forces recruiter access to students and student
recruiting information

Family Educational Rights and Privacy

Description

California Results-Based School Counseling and Student
Support Guidelines, 2007

California Association of School Counselors

American School Counselor Association

U.S. Department of Education, access to military recruiters
Commission on Teacher Credentialing

California Department of Education

California Division of Apprenticeship Standards

Description
Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

Equity
Comprehensive Safety Plan
Comprehensive Safety Plan

Local Control And Accountability Plan
Local Control And Accountability Plan
COVID-19 Mitigation Plan

Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Civility

Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies And The
Schools

Campus Security

Campus Security

Ermergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Emergencies And Disaster Preparedness Plan
Bomb Threats

Certification

Certification



4131 Staff Development

4219.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidentiai/ Privileged Information
4319.23 Unauthorized Release Of Confidential/ Privileged Information
5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5022 Student And Family Privacy Rights

5113 Absences And Excuses

5113 Absences And Excuses

51131 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.1 Chronic Absence And Truancy

5113.11 Attendance Supervision

5125 Student Records

5125 Student Records

51251 Release Of Directory Information

51251 Release Of Directory Information

5125.1-E PDF(1)
5131
5131.2
5131.2
5131.6
5131.6
5136
5136
5137
5138
5141.22
5141.22
5141.4
5141.4
5141.52
5141.52
5141.6
5141.6
5144
5144

Release Of Directory Information
Conduct

Bullying

Bullying

Alcohol And Other Drugs

Alcohol And Other Drugs

Gangs

Gangs

Positive School Climate

Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation
Infectious Diseases

Infectious Diseases

Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting
Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting
Suicide Prevention

Suicide Prevention

School Health Services

School Health Services

Discipline

Discipline



51453
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.6-E PDF(1)
5145.9

5147

6120

6141.4
6141.5
6142.8
6142.8

6143

6143

6146.2
6146.2
6146.2-E(1)
6146.2-E PDF(1)
6164.5

6164.5

6171

6171

6172

6172

6173

6173

6173-E PDF(1)
6173-E PDF(2)
6173.1

6173.1

6175

6175

6178

6178

6178.2

Nondiscrimination/Harassment

ParentalParent/guardian Notifications
ParestalParent/guardian Notifications
Parental NetificationsParent/guardian Notifications

Hate-Motivated Behavior

Dropout Prevention

Response To Instruction And Intervention
International Baccalaureate Program

Advanced Placement

Comprehensive Health Education

Comprehensive Health Education

Courses Of Study

Courses Of Study

Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
Student Success Teams

Student Success Teams

Title | Programs

Title | Programs

Gifted And Talented Student Program

Gifted And Talented Student Program

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Foster Youth

Education For Foster Youth

Migrant Education Program

Migrant Education Program

Career Technical Education

Career Technical Education

Regional Occupational Center/Program




6184
6185
6185
6200
6200

o aceNoa

Continuation Education
Community Day School
Community Day School
Adult Education
Adult Education



CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy6178 Career'l'echnlcal Educat:on _ _ L e Status ADOPTED__-'

Original Adopted Date' 03/01/2008 I I.ast Revised Date. 4909/01/—2@4:82022 I l.ast Reviewed Date.
-1009/01/20%82022 :

CSBA NOTE: The following policy is for use by districts that maintain any of grades 7-12. Education
Code 51220 requires that the adopted course of study for grades 7-12 include courses in career
technical education (CTE); see BP/AR 6143 - Courses of Study.

Funding for CTE programs may be available through the federal Strengthening Career and Technical
Education for the 21st Century Act, sometimes referred to as Perkins V (20 USC 2301-2414, as
amended by P 115-224 and effective July 1; 2019), and state grant programs such as the California
Career Pathways Trust pursuant to Education Code 53010-53016 and, the California Career Technical
Education Incentive Grant Program pursuant to Education Code 53070-53076.4, as amended by AB
1808 {Ch: 32; Statutes of 2018).the Golden State Pathways Program pursuant to Education Code
53020-53025, the Apprenticeship Innovation Funding Program pursuant to Labor Code 3110-3112.1,
and Youth Apprenticeship pursuant to Labor Code 3120-3122.4. In addition, secondary schools may
offer CTE through partnership academies (Education Code 54690-54697), regional occupational centers
and programs (ROC/Ps) (Education Code 52300-52335.12), and/or district-funded programs.

The following policy should be revised to reflect program(s) offered by the district and grade levels at
which such programs shall be offered.

The Governing Board desires to provide a comprehensive career technical education (CTE) program in the
secondary grades which integrates core academic instruction with technical and occupational instruction
in order to increase student achievement, graduation rates, and readiness for postsecondary education
and employment. The district's CTE program shall be designed to help students develop the academic,
career, and technical skills needed to succeed in a knowledge- and skilis-based economy. Fhe program
shall include a rigoreus academic component and provide students with practical experience and
understanding of all aspects of an industry.

The district's CTE program shall focus on preparing students to enter current or emerging high-skill, high-
wage, and/or high-demand occupations: by providing a rigorous academic component and practical
experience in all aspects of an industry. CTE opportunities may be offered through linked learning
programs, partnership academies, apprenticeship programs or orientation to apprenticeships, regional
occupational centers or programs (ROC/Ps), charter schools, small [earning communities, magnet
programs, or other programs that expose students to career options while preparing them for future
careers in a given industry or interest area.

The Superintendent or designee shall explore available funding sources that may be used to support CTE
programs. The Board shall review and approve all district plans and applications for the use of district,
state, and/or federal funds supporting CTE.

CSBA NOTE: State model curriculum standards for CTE for grades 7-12 integrate the state's academic
content standards with industry-specific knowledge and skills in 58 career pathways organized into 15
industry sectors: agriculture and natural resources; arts, media, and entertainment; building trades and
constructlon education, chlld development and family services; energy and utilities; engineering and

ATl [ S e [TV Ep. P [ Y & SRR, I CAPIPIEIS SV NPPRPR S 1IN DI SO S A Al L e L



CTE provides guidance in implementing the state content standards. Any district that adopts a course o
study that meets or exceeds the state model curriculum standards will be deemed to have satisfied the

requirement of Education Code 51228 that the district offer students in grades 7-12 the opportunity tc
attain entry-level employment skills in business or industry upon high school graduation; see BP 6143 -
Courses of Study.

The Board shall adopt district standards for CTE which meet or exceed the state's model content
standards and describe the essential knowledge and skills that students enrolled in these courses are
expected to master. The course curriculum shall be aligned with district-adopted standards and the
state's curriculum framework.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 52376, the following two paragraphs are mandated for
districts that accept funds for the purpose of developing and implementing, in consultation with the
ROC/P and community college serving the geographic area of the district, a CTE program for high
school students.

At least every three years, the Board shall compare the district's curriculum, course content, and course
sequence of CTE with the model state curriculum standards. (Education Code 52376)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 52376 requires districts to determine the extent to which their CTE
courses may offer an alternative means for completing course requirements for high school graduatijon.
i addition; Education Code 51225.3, as amended by AB 101 (Ch. 661, Statutes of 2021), no longer
authorizes the Board to include a course in CTE to serve as an alternative to the visual or performing
arts or fereigaworld language course requirement for high school graduation, However, if a student
completed a CTE course prior to July 1, 2022 that met the requirements of Education Code 51225.3.
such course will fulfill the visual or performing arts or world language graduation requirement: see BP
6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements.

The Superintendent or designee shall systematically review the district's CTE courses to determine the
degree to which each course may offer an alternative means for completing and receiving credit for
specific portions of the course of study prescribed by the district for high school graduation. The Board
CTE courses approved for these purposes shall ensure that these elasses arebe equivalent in content and
rigor to the courses prescribed for graduation. {Education Code 52376)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 51760.1 authorizes districts, county offices of education, ROC/Ps, and
partnership academies to provide work-based learning opportunities which may include, but are not
limited to, work experience education as defined in Education Code 51764, community classrooms or
cooperative CTE programs as defined in Education Code 52372.1, and job shadowing as defined in
Education Code 51769; see BP/AR 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning. In addition, although not specified in
state law, other examples of work-based learning opportunities cited in the CDE's publication , “Multiple
Pathways to Student Success: Envisioning the New California High School,” include student
internships/field study, apprenticeships, service learning, work in social/civic enterprises or school-
based enterprises such as student stores, and technology-based or other simulated work experiences.

The Superintendent or designee shall develop partnerships with local businesses and industries to ensure
that course sequences, career technical and integrated curriculum, classroom instruction and projects,
and assessments have real-world relevance and reflect labor market needs and priorities. He/sheThe
Superintendent or designee shall also work to develop connections with businesses, postsecondary
institutions, community organizations, and/or other employers to provide students with actual or
simulated work-based learning opportunities.

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with postsecondary institutions to ensure that the



CSBA NOTE: Education Code 8070 requires the Board to appoint a CTE advisory committee composed
of representatives from specified groups, as detailed below. During the Federal Program Monitoring
process, CDE staff will review whether the district has appointed such a committee.

In addition, pursuant to 20 USC 2354, as amended by P 415-224, districts that receive Perkins V
funding are required to involve specified stakeholders in conducting a needs assessment and developing
the district application, and on a continuing basis thereafter. One way to accomplish this is to include
such stakeholders on the CTE advisory committee. Other programs may have similar requirements for’
stakeholder involvement. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect requirements applicable to
programs offered by the district.

The Board shall appoint a CTE advisory committee to develop recommendations on the district's CTE
program and to serve as a liaison between the district and potential employers. The committee shall
consist of at least one student, teacher, business representative, industry representative, school
administrator, member of the general public knowledgeable about the disadvantaged, and representative
of the field office of the California Employment Development Department. (Education Code 8070)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Among the
criteria for admission to the University of California {(UC) or California State University (CSU) system is a
requirement that high school students satisfactorily complete 15 units of specified courses ("a-gA-G"
courses). These include a growing number of CTE courses that connect knowledge of academic content
with practical or work-related applications. Education Code 51229 requires that districts annually
provide parents/guardians of students in grades 9-12 with {1) a brief explanation of the a-gA-G course
requirements; (2) a list of UC and CSU web sites that provide related information and a list of certified a-
8A-G courses; (3} a brief description of CTE, as defined by CDE; (4) the Internet address for the portion
of the CDECDE's web site where students can learn more about CTE; and (5) information about how
students may meet with school counselors to help them choose courses that will meet college admission
requirements and/or to enroll in CTE courses. See AR 6143 - Courses of Study and E 5145.6 - Parental

Notifications:

mwéﬁ%d%ﬁsmmw%ae%em%%%mmm%%wmmgf
%&m%@%%%@%ah#%%#&d%%m
paragraph accordingly:(1) 5145.6 - Parental Notifications, '

The Superintendent or designee shall inform all secondary students and their parents/guardians about
the CTE experiences available in the district, CTE courses that satisfy college admission criteria, and, if
applicable, CTE courses that satisfy high school graduation requirements. In addition, secondary
students shall receive individualized academic counseling which provides information about academic and
CTE opportunities related to the student's career goals.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 34 CFR 100 (Appendix B), the notice specified below may be made in local
newspapers, publications or media reaching target populations, or by other means and should include a
brief summary of program offerings, admission criteria, and the name and contact information of the
person designated to coordinate Title IX and Section 504 compliance activity. If the population within
the district contains a community of persons with limited English language skills, the notification must be
disseminated in the languages of the community. See BP 5145.6 - Parental Notifications for state
requirements pertaining to the translation of parental notifications.

Prior to the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall advise students,




o _

steps to ensure that the lack of English language skills will not be a barrier to admission and participation
in the district's CTE program. (20 USC 2354; 34 CFR 100 Appendix B, 104.8, 106.9)

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that receive funding through Perkins V for
basic CTE programs pursuant to 20 USC 2301-2414. See the accompanying administrative regulation
for further information regarding the participation of private school students and staff in district
programs.

To the extent required by law, the Superintendent or designee shall invite the participation of private
school students in CTE programs supported by federal funding under the Strengthening Career and
Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (Perkins). (20 USC 2397)

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Labor Code 3074.2, as added by AB 643 (Ch. 324, Statutes of 2021}, districts
are encouraged to provide students with opportunities to explore, make career choices, and seek '
appropriate instruction and training to support those choices, by hosting locally focused apprenticeship
and/or career technical education fair events, such as college and career fairs.

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with businesses, government agencies. postsecondary
institutions including universities and career technical schools, community organizations, and/or other
employers to provide students with actual or simulated work-based learning opportunities through
college and/or career fairs.

CSBA NOTE; Labor Code 3074.2, as added by AB 643, requires any district planning to hoid a college or
career fair to identify approved apprenticeship programs in the county and notify such programs that
they are hosting a college or career fair. To identify approved programs the district is required to rely on
the Division of Apprenticeship Standards’ database of approved apprenticeship programs, located on its
web site.

When planning to hold a college or career fair, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each
apprenticeship program in the county. The notification shall include the planned date, time and location
of the college or career fair. (Labor Code 3074.2)

CSBA NOTE: Teachers of technical, trade, or vocational courses must possess a single subject credential
or a designated subjects credential issued by the Commission on Teacher Credentialing which authorizes
teaching CTE courses. The designated subjects CTE credential is available in 15 subjects which reflect
the 15 industry sectors identified in the state's model curriculum standards; see AR 4112.2 -
Certification. In order to obtain the preliminary designated subjects credential, teachers must have at
least three years of work experience directly related to each industry sector specified on the credential.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers of CTE courses possess the qualifications and
credentials necessary to teach their assigned courses. He/sheThe Superintendent or designee shall also
provide teachers and administrators with professional development designed to enhance their knowledge
of standards-aligned CTE and shall provide opportunities for CTE teachers to collaborate with teachers of
academic courses in the development and implementation of integrated curriculum models.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide counselors and other guidance personnel with professional
development that includes, but is not limited to, information about current workforce needs and trends,
requirements of the district's CTE program, work-based learning opportunities, and postsecondary
education and employment options following high school.

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Education Code 17078.72 provides funding for
improving and expanding CTE programs through construction of new facilities, remodeling of existing
facilities, and/or purchase of equipment.




CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph may be revised to reflect requirements applicable to programs
offered by the district. Pursuant to Education Code 52060, the district must annually review its progres
toward the goals identified in its local control and accountability plan, including, when applicable,
measures of student achievement such as the percentage of students who have successfully completed
courses that satisfy the requirements for CTE sequences or programs of study that align with state CTE
standards and frameworks. The California School Dashboard provides a tool to assist in evaluation of
district and school performance and includes measures of CTE pathway completion within the
college/career readiness indicator.

In addition, each district receiving Perkins V funding must evaluate its progress in achieving specific
performance levels on core indicators as detailed in the state plan and 20 USC 2323; as amended by Pt
+15-224, Pursuant to 20 USC 2343, if the district falls below 90 percent on any of these targets, the
district will be required to develop and implement an improvement plan.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board achievement data on participating
students, including, but not limited to, the percentage of participating students who successfully
complete CTE programs, their performance on state and district academic achievement tests, and
graduation raterates. Data shall be disaggregated by program and various student subgroups. Based on
such data, the Board shall determine the need for program improvements and update the goals in the
district's local control and accountability plan as necessary.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description
5 CCR 10070-10075 Work experience education
5 CCR 10080-10092 Community classrooms
5 CCR 10100-10111 Cooperative vocational education
5 CCR 11500-11508 Regional occupational centers and programs
5 CCR 11535-11538 Career technical education contracts with private
postsecondary schools
5CCR 11610-11611 Regional adult and vocational education councils
5 CCR 1635 Credit for work experience education
5 CCR 3051.14 Specially designed career technical education for students
with disabilities
8 CCR 200-240 Apprenticeships
Ed. Code 1205 Classification of counties
Ed. Code 17078.70-17078.72 Career technical education facilities
'Ed. Code 33430-33432 Health science and medical technology grants

Ed. Code 35168 Inventory of equipment




Ed. Code 44257.3

Ed. Code 44260-44260.1
Ed. Code 44260.9

Ed. Code 48430

Ed. Code 48980

Ed. Code 51220-51230
Ed. Code 51760-51769.5
Ed. Code 52060-52077
Ed. Code 52300-52499.66
Ed. Code 52519-52520
Ed. Code 53010-53016
Ed. Code 53020-53025
Ed. Code 53070-53076.4

Ed. Code 53086
Ed. Code 54690-54699.1
Ed. Code 54750-54760

Ed. Code 56363

Ed. Code 66205.5-66205.9

Ed. Code 8006-8155
Ed. Code 88500-88551

Gov. Code 54950-54963
Lab. Code 3070-3099.5
Lab. Code 3110-3112.1
Labor Code 3120-3122.4

Federal
20 USC 2301-2414

20 USC 6301-6578
34 CFR 100

34 CFR 104.1-104.39

R4 CFR 10A 1-10A A1

CTC recognition of study in linked learning teaching methods
Designated subjects career technical education credential
Designated subjects career technical education credential
Continuation education schools and classes |
Parent/Guardian notifications

Course of study for grades 7-12

Work experience education

Local control and accountability plan

Career technical education

Adult education;; occupational training

California Career Pathways Trust

Golden State Pathways Program

The California Career Technical Education Incentive Grant
Program

California Career Resource Network
California Partnership Academies

California Partnership Academies;; green technology and
goods movement occupations

Related services for students with disabilities; specially
designed career technical education

Approval of career technical education courses for admission
to California colleges

Career technical education

Community college economic and workforce development
program

The Ralph M. Brown Act
Apprenticeships

Apprenticeship Innovation Funding Program

Youth Apprenticeship

Description
Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st
Century Act

Improving the Academic Achievement of the Disadvantaged

Appendix B Guidelines for eliminating discrimination in career
technical education programs

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Nicrriminatinn on the hacic nf cev affertiiatine Titla 1Y



California Department of Education
Publication

California Department of Education
Publication

California Department of Education
Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

Website
Website

Woebsite

Website
Website

Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Cross References

Code
0410

0415
0420.4
0420.4
0440
0440

AT

California Career Technical Education Model Curriculum
Standards, Grades Seven Through Twelve, January 2013

Career Technical Education Framework for California Public
Schools, Grades Seven Through Twelve, January 2007

Multiple Pathways to Student Success: Envisioning the New
California High School, 2010

The Linked Learning Approach to High School Reform,
Governance Brief, January 2014

A Governance Perspective: Interviews with School Board
Members from the Nine Linked Learning Initiative School
Districts, March 2014

Association for Career and Technical Education

California Association of Regional Occupational Centers and
Programs

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Vocational and Adult
Education

U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics

California Department of Education, Career Technical
Education

California Department of Employment Development
California Workforce Development Board

California Department of Industrial Relations
University of California, A-G Course Submissions
California Career Resource Network

California Department of Industriat Relations

Commission on Teacher Credentialing

CSBA

Description
Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities

Equity

Charter School Authorization
Charter School Authorization
District Technology Plan
District Technology Plan

I 1l /~_ ..t A . 0 A __ [ R ) L R L e



0500

1220

1220

13123

1312.3
1312.3-E PDF(1)
1312.3-E PDF(2)
1700

3230

3230

3440

3512

3512-E(1)
4112.2

4112.2

4131

4331

51131

5113.1

5113.2

5113.2

5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.6-E PDF(1)
5148.2

Accountability

Citizen Advisory Committees
Citizen Advisory Committees
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures

Uniform Complaint Procedures

Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools

Federal Grant Funds

Federal Grant Funds
Inventories

Equipment

Equipment

Certification

Certification

Staff Development

Staff Development

Chronic Absence And Truancy
Chronic Absence And Truancy
Work Permits

Work Permits

Parental Notifications
Parental Notifications
Parental Notifications

Before/After School Programs

5148.2 Before/After School Programs

6011 Academic Standards

6020 Parent Involvement

6020 Parent involvement

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation
6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

61414 International Baccalaureate Program




6143

6145

6145
6145.5
6145.5
6146.1
6146.1
6146.11
6146.11
6146.2
6146.2
6146.2-E(1)
6146.2-E PDF(1)
6159

6159
6162.5
6162.51
6162.51
6164.2
6164.5
6164.5
6171

6171

6172

- 6172
61721
6172.1
6173

6173
6173-E PDF(1)
6173-E PDF(2)
6175

6175

6176

Courses Of Study

Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities
Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

Student Organizations And Equal Access

Student Organizations And Equal Access

High School Graduation Requirements

High School Graduation Requirements

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
Individualized Education Program |
Individualized Education Program

Student Assessment

State Academic Achievement Tests

State Academic Achievement Tests
Guidance/Counseling Services

Student Success Teams

Student Success Teams

Title | Programs

Title | Programs

Gifted And Talented Student Program

Gifted And Talented Student Program

Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes
Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes
Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Education For Homeless Children

Migrant Education Program

Migrant Education Program

Weekend/Saturday Classes



Work-Based Learning

Regional Occupational Center/Program
Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
Continuation Education

Continuation Education

Evaluation Of The Instructional Program.
Adult Education

Adult Education

Facilities Master Plan




S acEwa

CSBA Sample District Policy Manu
CSBA Sample Manual Sk

Regulation 6176; Career Technical Education .~ Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 03/01/2008 | Last Revised Date: 49@/01/29432'022_] Last Reviewed Date: - -
1009/01/20182022 _ ) o SRR

CSBA NOTE: The following optional administrative regulation should be revised to reflect program(s)
offered by the district.

Federal Grants for Career Technical Education (Perkins)

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that receive basic grants to support
programs of career technical education (CTE) pursuant to the Strengthening Career and Technical
Education for the 21st Century Act, often referred to as Perkins V (20 USC 2301-2355; as armended by
%%%%ameﬁdeé%he%hmbs&ﬁmmﬂhasbeenreﬂaeedw%hagaamme& which
guarantees that each state will receive a minimum grant equal to 90 percent of its prior year allocation,
effective in fiseal year 2021,

During the Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) process, California Department of Education (CDE) staff
will review whether the district uses these federal funds to supplement, not supplant, state and local
funds for CTE activities, as required by 20 USC 2391, and whether funds are used for appropriate
purposes as described in 20 USC 2355 and in the state plan adepted pursuant to 20 USC 2342 As
ameaéedby%ﬂ%%%%@%@%wﬁwﬁesmmdwemaeﬁeww%ﬂéﬁen%uﬂ%ﬂ
PeFkiﬂsteeemese#eetNe:}uw%%}%aﬁerwhiehafeu%-yearstateﬁlanmubewqu#ed:four—year
state plan adopted pursuant to 20 USC 2342.

The district shall submit to the California Department of Education an application for a basic grant of the
federal Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act. The application shall
address the components specified in 20 USC 2354 and any additional requirements specified in the state
plan developed pursuant to 20 USC 2342. (20 USC 2354)

The district shall conduct a needs assessment in accordance with 20 USC 2354, which shall be updated at
least once every two years. The needs assessment shall be conducted in consultation with
representatives of district career technical education (CTE) programs, postsecondary CTE programs, state
or local workforce development boards and businesses, parents/guardians, students, and other specified
stakeholders. (20 USC 2354}

CSBA NOTE: The district may use Perkins V and other federal, state, and/or district funds to meet the
program requirements listed below. Pl 145-224 amended 20 USC 2355 to streamline the allowable
uses of funds and eliminate the additional list of permissible uses. :

To meet the needs identified in the needs assessment, the Superintendent or designee shall develop,
coordinate, implement, or improve CTE programs that are of sufficient size, scope, and quality to be
effective and that fulfill the following purposes: {20 USC 2355)

1. Provide career exploration and career development activities through an organized, systematic
framework designed to aid students, including students in the middle grades, in making informed
plans and decisions about future education and career opportunities and programs of study. Such
activities shall occur before students enroll and while they are participating in a CTE program, and

e s Sl A,



a. Introductory courses or activities focused on career exploration and career awareness,
including non-traditional fields

b. Readily available career and labor market information, including information on
occupational supply and demand, educational requirements, other information on careers
aligned to economic priorities, and employment sectors

¢. Programs and activities related to the development of student graduation and career plans

d. Career guidance and academic counselors who provide information on postsecondary
education and career options

e. Any other activity that advances knowledge of career opportunities and assists students in
making informed decisions about future education and employment goals, including
nontraditional fields

f. Activities that provide students with strong experience in, and comprehensive
understanding of, all aspects of an industry

2. Provide the skills necessary to pursue careers in high-skill, high-wage, or in-demand industry
sectors or occupations

3. Integrate academic skills into CTE programs and programs of study to support participating
students in meeting state academic standards

4. Provide professional development for teachers, school leaders, administrators, specialized
instructional support personnel, guidance counselors, and/or paraprofessionals, which may
include the types of activities listed in 20 USC 2355

5. Plan and carry out elements that support the implementation of CTE programs and programs of
study and that result in increased student achievement. Such elements may include curriculum
aligned with program requirements, sustainable relationships among community stakeholders,
opportunities for students to participate in accelerated learning programs, equipment and
instructional materials aligned with business and industry needs, and other activities specified in
20 USC 2355.

6. Develop and implement evaluations of the activities funded by the grant

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to 20 USC 2354, the district application for Perkins V funding must describe how
individuals will not be discriminated against based on their status as members of ““special populations;2,”
as defined in 20 USC 2302 as amended by Pk 445-224. In addition, a district that receives federal aid is
required by 34 CFR 100 (Appendix B), 104.8, and 106.9 to take ““continuing steps®” to notify students,
parents/guardians, employees, employee organizations, and applicants for admission and employment
that it does not discriminate in its educational programs or activities. See BP 0410 -- Nondiscrimination

in District Programs and Activities.

During the FPM process, CDE staff will check whether the district complies with requirements to (1)
ensure equitable access by special population students through outreach, recruitment, enrollment, and
placement activities; (2) identify and adopt strategies to overcome barriers to access or success in the
program; (3) ensure that counseling materials and activities, including student program selection and
career/employment selection, and promotional and recruitment efforts are nondiscriminatory; and 4
advise students, parents/guardians, employees, and the general public, prior to the beginning of the
school year, that all CTE opportunities are offered without regard to race, color, national origin, sex, or
disability in accordance with 34 CFR 100 (Appendix B).




Special populations include, but are not limited to, students with disabilities, students from economically
disadvantaged families, pregnant and parenting students, out-of-work individuals, English learners,
homeless students, foster youth, children of military families, and students preparing for nontraditional
fields. Nontraditional fields include occupations or fields of work, including careers in computer science,
technology, and other emerging high-skill occupations, for which individuals from one gender constitute
less than 25 percent of the individuals employed in each such occupation or field of work. {20 USC
2302, 2354, 2373)

Upon written request from a nonprofit private school within the geographical area served by the district,
the Superintendent or designee shall consult with private school representatives in a timely and
meaningful manner and may provide for the participation of private school secondary students in the
elistrict'sdistrict’s programs and activities funded pursuant to 20 USC 2301-2414. To the extent
practicable, the Superintendent or designee shall also, upon request, permit participation of CTE teachers
administrators, and other personnel from private schools in the distriet'sdistrict’s inservice and preservice
professional development programs funded through such grants. (20 USC 2397)

Linked Learning Programs

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that offer “linked learning®” programs
integrating academic and career technical study (sometimes called ““multiple pathways") and may be
revised to reflect district practice.

The district shall offer one or more comprehensive, multi-year linked learning programs in grades 9-12
that are organized around a broad theme, interest area, or industry sector including, but not limited to,
the industry sectors identified in model standards adopted by the State Board of Education pursuant to
Education Code 51226. The program shall provide all participating students with curriculum choices that
prepare them for career entry and a full range of postsecondary options, including two-year and four-year
colleges, apprenticeships, and formal employment training.

At a minimum, the district'sdistrict’s linked learning program shall include:

1. Anintegrated core curriculum that meets the eligibility requirements for admission to the
University of California (UC} and the California State University (CSU) and is delivered through
project-based learning and other engaging instructional strategies that bring real-world context
and relevance to the curriculum where broad themes, interest areas, and CTE are emphasized

2. Anintegrated technical core of a sequence of at least four related courses that may reflect CTE
standards-based courses and that provide students with career skills, are aligned to academic
principles, and fulfill academic core requirements described in itemitem #1 above to the extent
possible

3. Aseries of work-based learning opportunities that begin with mentoring and job shadowing and
evolve into intensive internships, school-based enterprises, or virtual apprenticeships

4. Support services, including supplemental instruction in reading and mathematics, that help
students master the advanced academic and technical content that is necessary for success in
colfege and career

Partnership Academies

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that have established a partnership
academy pursuant to Education Code 54690-54699.1 and 54750-54760. A partnership academy
functions as a school-within-a-school with a career theme and related academic courses primarily

-




The district shall operate one or more partnership academies as a school-within-a-school focused on a
broad career theme. The program shall be available to students in grades 10-12, at least half of whom
shall be students who are at risk of dropping out of school as indicated by three or more of the following
criteria: (Education Code 54690-54691)

1. Past record of irregular attendance, with absence from school 20 percent or more of the school
year

2. Past record of underachievement in which the student is at least one-third of a year behind the
coursework for the respective grade level, or as demonstrated by credits achieved

3. Past record of low motivation or disinterest in the regular school program
4. Economic disadvantage

5. Scores below basic or far below basic on the mathematics or English language arts test of the
California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress

6. A grade point average of 2.2 or below or the equivalent of a C minus

Ninth-grade teachers and counselors shall identify students eligible to participate in a partnership
academy. Participating students shall be selected by academy staff from among those who have
expressed an interest in the academy and whose parents/guardians have approved the student'sstudent’s
participation. (Education Code 54695)

The district's program shall provide: (Education Code 54692)

1. During each regular school term, instruction in at least three academic subjects that:
a. Prepares students for a regular high school diploma
b. Where possible and appropriate, prepares students to meet subject requirements for
admission to the Califernia State UniversitylUC and University of Califernia
Ccsu

¢. Contributes to an understanding of the occupational field of the academy

CTECSBA NOTE: Education Code 54692, as amended by AB 1923 (Ch. 114, Statutes of 2022), includes
science, technology. engineering, and mathematics courses as required alternative courses that must be
offered to students participating in partnership academies.

2. CTE or science, technology, engineering, and mathematics courses offered at each grade level at
the academy that are part of an occupational course sequence that targets comprehensive skills
and meets the criteria specified in Education Code 54692

3. Classes that are block scheduled in a cluster whenever possible to provide flexibility to academy
teachers and which may vary in number during grade 12

4. A mentor from the business community for students during grade 11

5. An employer-based internship or work experience that occurs during the summer following grade
11 or during grade 12

6. Additional motivational activities with private sector involvement to encourage academic and
occupational preparation

L




The Superintendent or designee shall establish an advisory committee consisting of individuals involved ir
academy operations, including district and school administrators, lead teachers, and representatives of
the private sector. (Education Code 54692)

Apprenticeship Programs

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be used by districts that provide a program of
"grientation to apprenticeships” to students who have not yet applied to an apprenticeship program.
Such programs are sometimes referred to as "pre-apprenticeship programs.” However, the Department
of Industrial Relations {DIR), in its publication , “Orientation to Apprenticeship: A Guide for Educators;,”
notes that “pre-apprentice” is used by some trades as a classification of worker and therefore prefers
the term "orientation to apprenticeship” to refer to a program offered by secondary schools. ltems #1-5
below reflect key program components recommended in the DIR publication and may be revised to
reflect district practice.

The district shall offer high school and/or adult education students a program of orientation to
apprenticeships that acquaints students with a broad range of career options, provides information
regarding available apprenticeship programs, and provides classroom instructional job training which
guides students to a registered apprenticeable occupation.

The district's program shall:

1. Introduce students to what they need to know in order to apply, test, and interview for
acceptance into an apprenticeship program

2. Demonstrate the need for proficiency in reading and comprehension, mathematics, science, and
technology

3. Emphasize the necessity to have the ability to communicate in reading, writing, speaking, listening
and numeration skills

4. Identify the knowledge, skills, and attitudes needed to enter and successfully complete an
apprenticeship program

5. Provide an orientation to a specific craft or trade or to an industry

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that contract with sponsors of
approved apprenticeship programs (e.g., individual employers, labor or management apprenticeship
committees, or joint labor-management apprenticeship committees) pursuant to Education Code 8150-
8155 and Labor Code 3070-3099.5 to provide classes of related and supplemental instruction.
Apprenticeship programs are offered for a period of one to six years {typically four years) and provide
specialized on-the-job training that prepares an individual for employment in a craft or trade profession.

The district may enter into an agreement with a local business, labor or management apprenticeship
committee, and/or joint labor-management apprenticeship committee that has been approved by the -
Department of Industrial Relations' Division of Apprenticeship Standards to sponsor an apprenticeship
program in order to develop and deliver related and supplemental instruction to students participating in
a registered apprenticeship program. (Education Code 8150-8155; Labor Code 3074, 3075, 3078)

Regional Occupational Center/Program

| CSBA NOTE: The following optional section is for use by districts that partner with or offer their own



ROC/P by (1) the County Superintendent of Schools, with the approval of the State Board of Education
(SBE); (2) two or more districts maintaining high schools, with the approval of he SBE and the County
Superintendent; or (3) a single district with an average daily attendance (ADA) of 50,000 or more locate
in a class 1 county or a district with an ADA of 100,000 or more located in a class 2 county, as defined i
Education Code 1205. ROC/P courses are open to secondary students, with priority enroliment given t
students ages 16-18 or in grades 11-12. See BP 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program for
additional program requirements. :

The district shall operate and/or partner with a regional occupational center or program (ROC/P),
established pursuant to Education Code 52335.12, which offers CTE courses, linked learning programs,
partnership academies, and/or pre-apprenticeship and apprenticeship programs as appropriate.

Occupational course sequences offered by the ROC/P shall provide prerequisite courses needed to ente;
apprenticeship or postsecondary vocational certificate or degree programs, focus on occupations
requiring comprehensive skills leading to high entry-level wages and/or the possibility of significant wage
increases after a few years on the job, offer as many courses as possible that meet college admission
requirements, and lead to attainment of an occupational skill certificate. (Education Code 52302)

Student Organizations

CSBA NOTE: The following optional section may be used by districts providing any CTE program(s}. 20
USC 2355 permits the use of Perkins V funding to support career technical student organizations and
related activities. According to CDE, state-supported organizations include California DECA: A
Marketing Association (formerly Distributive Education Clubs of America), Future Business Leaders of
America (FBLA), Future Farmers of America (FFA), Future Homemakers of America-Home Economics
Related Occupations (FHA-HERO)}, Health Occupations Students of America (HOSA), and Skills USA
(formerly Vocational Industrial Clubs of America-VICA).

The district may provide support, including supplies, materials, activities, and advisor expenses, to student
organizations which engage in activities that are integral to the CTE program and provide for the
development of student leadership skills. However, no state or federal funds shall be used to pay
students’ membership dues, food or lodging expenses, out-of-state travel, or the cost of a social activity
or assemblage.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All righfs reserved,

Policy Reference Disclaimer: .
These references are not intended to be part of the palicy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description

5 CCR 10070-10075 Work experience education

5 CCR 10080-10092 Community classrooms

5 CCR 10100-10111 Cooperative vocational education

5 CCR 11500-11508 Regional occupational centers and programs
5CCR 11535-11538 Career technical education contracts with private

postsecaondary schools




5 CCR3051.14

8 CCR 200-240

Ed. Code 1205

Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

- Ed.
Ed.
Ed.

Ed.

Ed.

Ed.
Ed.

Code 17078.70-17078.72

Code 33430-33432
Code 35168

Code 41540-41544
Code 44257.3

Code 44260-44260.1
Code 44260.9

Code 48430

Code 48980

Code 51220-51230
Code 51760-51769.5
Code 52060-52077
Code 52300-52499.66
Code 52519-52520
Code 53010-53016
Code 53070-53076.4

Code 53086
Code 54690-54699.1
Code 54750-54760

Code 56363
Code 66205.5-66205.9

Code 8006-8155
Code 88500-88551

Gov. Code 54950-54963

Lab. Code 3070-3099.5

Federal
20 USC 2301-2414

| AGENDA
Specially designed career technical education for students
with disabilities
Apprenticeships
Classification of counties
Career technical education facilities
Health science and medical technology grants
Inventory of equipment
Targeted instructional improvement block grant
CTC recognition of study in linked learning teaching methods
Designated subjects career technical education credential
Designated subjects career technical education credential
Continuation education schools and classes
Pa.rent/ Guardian notifications

Course of study for grades 7-12

~ Work experience education

Local control and accountability plan
Career technical education

Adult education, occupational training
California Career Pathways Trust

The California Career Technical Education Incentive Grant
Program

California Career Resource Network
California Partnership Academies

California Partnership Academies, green technology and
goods movement occupations

Related services for students with disabilities; specially
designed career technical education

Approval of career technical education courses for admission
to California colleges

Career technical education

Community college economic and workforce development
program

The Ralph M. Brown Act
Apprenticeships
Description

Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st
Ceanturvy Art



34 CFR 100 Appendix B Guidelines for eliminating discrimination in career

34 CFR 104.1-104.39
34 CFR 106.1-106.61

Management Resources
Caiifornia Department of Education
Publication

California Department of Education
Publication

California Department of Education
Publication

CSBA Publication

CSBA Publication

Website
Woebsite

Website

Website
Website

Website
Website
Website
Website

Website
Website
Website
Website
Website

Website

Cross References

Code

NATN

technical education programs
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Discrimination on the basis of sex, effectuating Title IX

Description
California Career Technical Education Model Curriculum
Standards, Grades Seven Through Twelve, January 2013

Career Technical Education Framework for California Public
Schools, Grades Seven Through Twelve, January 2007

Multiple Pathways to Student Success: Envisioning the New
California High School, 2010

The Linked Learning Approach to High School Reform,
Governance Brief, January 2014

A Governance Perspective: Interviews with School Board
Members from the Nine Linked Learning Initiative School
Districts, March 2014

Association for Career and Technical Education

California Association of Regional Occupational Centers and
Programs

U.S. Department of Education, Office of Vocational and Adult
Education

U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics

California Department of Education, Career Technicai
Education :

California Department of Employment Development
California Workforce Development Board

GCalifornia Association of Regional Occupational Centers and
Programs

California Career Resource Netwerk

California Department of Industrial Relations
University of California, a-g Course Submissions

California Career Resource Network

Commission on Teacher Credentialing

CSBA

. e
Description
NaAanAircrinminatinmn lin Mickeiad Deanvamne AmA A nbbuidine



0420.4
0420.4

0440

0440

0460

0460

0500

1220

1220

1312.3

1312.3
1312.3-E PDF(1)
1312.3-E PDF(2)
1700

3230

3230

3440

3512
3512-E(1)
3512-E PDF(1)
4112.2
41122

4131

4331

5113.1

51131

5113.2
5113.2
5145.6
5145.6-E(1)
5145.6-E PDF(1)
5148.2

5148.2

6011

Charter School Authorization

Charter School Authorization
District Technology Plan
District Technology Plan

Local Control And Accountability Plan
Local Control And Accountability Plan
Accountability

Citizen Advisory Committees
Citizen Advisory Committees
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Uniform Complaint Procedures
Relations Between Private Industry And The Schools
Federal Grant Funds

Federal Grant Funds
Inventories

Equipment

Equipment

Equipment

Certification

Certification

Staff Development

Staff Development

Chronic Absence And Truancy
Chronic Absence And Truancy
Work Permits

Work Permits

Parental Notifications

Parental Notifications

Parental Notifications
Before/After School Programs
Before/After School Programs

Academic Standards




6020 Parent Involvement

6112 School Day

6112 School Day

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation

6141.4 International Baccalaureate Program

6143 Courses Of Study

6143 Courses Of Study

6145 Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

6145 ' Extracurricular And Cocurricular Activities

61455 Student Organizations And Equal Access

6145.5 Student Organizations And Equal Access

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements

6146.11 Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

6146.11 Alternative Credits Toward Graduation

6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
6146.2 Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
6146.2-E(1)} Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
6146.2-E PDF(1) Certificate Of Proficiency/High School Equivalency
6159 Individualized Education Program

6159 Individualized Education Program

61625 Student Assessment

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6162.51 State Academic Achievement Tests

6164.2 Guidance/Counseling Services

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6164.5 Student Success Teams

6171 Title | Programs

6171 Title | Programs

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6172 Gifted And Talented Student Program

6172.1 Concurrent Enroliment In College Classes

61721 Concurrent Enrollment In College Classes




6173

6173-E PDF{(1})
6173-E PDF(2)
6175

6175

6176

6178.1

6178.1

6178.2

6181

6181

6184

6184

6190

6200

6200

7110

Education For Homeless Children
Education For Homeless Children
Education For Homeless Children
Migrant Education Program

Migrant Education Program
Weekend/Saturday Classes

Work-Based Learning

Work-Based Learning

Regional Occupational Center/Program
Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
Alternative Schools/Programs Of Choice
Continuation Education

Continuation Education

Evaluation Of The Instructional Program
Adult Education

Adult Education

Facilities Master Plan




CSBA Sample District Policy Manu
CSBA Sample Manual Si

Policy 7110: FaciliesMasterPlan .~  Status:ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 02/01/1996 | Last Revised Date: 6309/01/20122072 | Last Reviewed Date:
0309/01/20422022 L | N IR |

CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to the
School Facility Program (Education Code 17070.10-17079.30), the State Allocation Board (SAB} and
Office of Public School Construction administer state funding programs for new construction,
modernization, career technical education facilities, charter school facilities, critically overcrowded
school facilities, facility hardships, seismic mitigation, high performance incentives (environmentally
efficient schools), joint use programs, labor compliance, overcrowding relief, emergency repairs, and
deferred maintenance.

For additional information about the facilities master planning process, see CSBA's fact sheet , “Facilities
Master Planning..” In addition, CSBA's Facilities Planning program provides assistance with enrollment
projections and/or the development of facilities master plans.

Although not required by law, the California Department of Education's {CDE) publication , “Educational
Specifications: Linking Design of School Facilities to Educational Program,” recommends that the
district’s facilities master plan be adopted by formal resolution of the Governing Board.

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of long-range planning for school facilities in order to
address changes in student enrollment, teacher housing needs, and ia the district's educational program
Aeeds. The Superintendent or designee shall develop, for Board approval, a master plan for district
facilities which describes the district's anticipated short- and long-term facilities needs and priorities.

Plan Development

The district's facilities master plan shall be based on an assessment of the condition and adequacy of
existing facilities, a projection of future enrollments, and alignment of facilities with the district's vision
for the instructional program.

To solicit broad input into the planning process, the Superintendent or designee may establish a facilities
advisory committee consisting of staff, parents/guardians, and business, local government, and other
community representatives. He/she alse The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the public is
informed of the need for construction and modernization of facilities and of the district's plans for
facilities.

At least 45 days prior to completion of any facilities plan that relates to the potential expansion of
existing school sites or the necessity to acquire additional school sites, the Superintendent or designee
shall notify and provide copies of the plan or any relevant and available information to the planning
commission or agency of the city or county with land use jurisdiction within the district. (Government
Code 65352.2)

If the city or county commission or agency requests a meeting, the Superintendent or designee shall meet
with the commission or agency within 15 days following the notification. [tems that the parties may
discuss at the meeting include, but are not limited to, methods of coordinating planning with proposed
revitalization efforts and recreation and park programs, options for new school sites, methods of

L P T 1



CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. In its “Public

School Construction Cost Reduction Guidelines; the,” SAB recommends that facilities master plans be
reevaluated whenever a new construction project is initiated or at intervals not exceeding five years.

The master plan shall be regularly reviewed and updated as necessary to reflect changes in the
educational program, existing facilities, finances, or demographic data.

Plan Components

CSBA NOTE: The CDE's publication , "Educational Specifications: Linking Design of School Facilities to
Educational Program {Appendix 1}).” recommends components that should be addressed in the facilities
master plan. Iltems #1-8 below are optional and may be revised to reflect district practice.

The facilities master plan shall include:

1. A statement of purpose, including district goals, philosophy, and related policies

2. A description of the planning process

3. Demographics of the community, such as economic trends, migration patterns, employment base,
residential base, socioeconomic makeup, historical school enrollments, and inventory of physical
resources and needs :

4, A description of the educational program, such as grade-level organization, class size, staffing
patterns, technology plans, special programs and support services, and other educational
specifications

5. Analysis of the safety, adequacy, and equity of existing facilities and potential for expansion,
including the adequacy of classrooms, school cafeterias and food preparation areas, physical
activity areas, playgrounds, parking areas, and other school grounds

6. Site selection criteria and process

7. Development of a capital planning budget and identification of potential funding sources

8. Policy for reviewing and updating the plan

Planning shall ensure that school facilities meet the following minimum standards: (5 CCR 14001)

1. Are aligned with the district's educational goals and objectives
2. Provide for maximum site enrollment at school facilities

3. Are located on a site that meets California Department of Education standards as specified in 5
CCR 14010

4. Are designed for the environmental comfort and work efficiency of the occupants
5. Are designed to require a practical minimum of maintenance

6. Are designed to meet federal, state, and local statutory requirements for structure, fire, and public
safety

7. Are designed and engineered with flexibility to accommodate future need




is state funded or locally funded. Other legal requirements for facilities pfans, including Education Code
16011, 16322, and 17251, vary depending on the funding source and type of project.

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA} (42 USC 12101-12213} and 28 CFR 35.150 and
35.151, district facilities must be accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities. In achieving
compliance, a district need not make structural changes to existing facilities if other methods are
effective and the district can demonstrate that the structural change would result in a fundamental
alteration in the nature of the activity or an undue financial or administrative burden. However, starting
Mareh 15; 2012, all newly constructed facilities must comply with the 2010 ADA Standards for
Accessible Designs pursuant to 28 CFR 35.151; as amended by 75 Fed- Reg: 178, CSBA's ADA
Compliance Program offers a variety of accessibility services including, but not limited to, facilities
inspections and planning to transition facilities into full ADA compliance.

California Green Building Standards Code, Title 24 CCR 101 et seq: {"CalGreen, Part 11 of the California
Code of Regulations, ("CALGreen") establishes both mandatory requirements and voluntary standards
for "green” building, which apply to all new construction and are applicable to K-12 schools.
CalGreenCALGreen addresses five major areas: (1) planning and design, (2) energy efficiency, (3) water

efficiency, (4) material conservation and resource efficiency;, and (5) indoor environmental quality.

Health and Safety Code 53570-53574, The Teacher Housing Act of 2016, authorizes districts to
establish and implement programs that address the housing needs of teachers and district employees
facing challenges in securing affordable housing. Pursuant to Education Code 17283.5 and Government
Code 4454.5, as added by AB 306 (Ch. 49, Statutes of 2021), residential housing, defined as any building
used as a personal residence by a teacher or employee of a district, with the teacher’s or employee’s
family, is specifically exempt from obtaining approval from the Department of General Services for
earthquake safety (Field Act) and access by persons with disabilities.

Plans for the design and construction of new school facilities alse shall also meet the standards described
in 5 CCR 14030, green building standards pursuant tothe California Green Building Standards Code, Title
24 CCR 101 et seqs, Part 11 of the California Code of Regulations {"CALGreen"), the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) pursuant to 42 USC 12101-12213, and any other requirements applicable to the
funding source and type of project.

However, plans for residential housing, which includes any building used or intended to be used by the
district as a personal residence by a teacher or employee of the district, is not considered to be a “school
building” and does not require approval by the Department of General Services regarding earthquake
safety and/or the ADA. {Education Code 17283.5; Government Code 4454.5}

CSBA NOTE: Subject to the availability of funds, districts may apply pursuart to Education Code
17077.40-17077.45 to fund joint use projects which are part of {1} a qualifying new construction
project that will either increase the size and/or create extra costs beyond that necessary for school use
of the multipurpose room, gymnasium, child care facility, library, or teacher education facility; or (2) a
modernization project or a stand-alone project to provide for a multipurpose room, gymnasium, child
care facility, library, or teacher education facility at a school that does not have the type of faahty
needed or has an inadequate facility.

To facilitate the efficient use of public resources when planning for new construction or modernization of
school facilities, the district may consider designs that facilitate joint use of the facility with a local
governmental agency, public postsecondary institution, or nonprofit organization.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service

Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.




These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject

matter of the policy.

State
2 CCR 1859-1859.199

24 CCR 101

5 CCR 14001

5 CCR 14010

5 CCR 14030-14036
Ed. Code 16011

Ed. Code 16322

Ed. Code 17017.5

Ed. Code 17070.10-17079.30
Ed. Code 17251-17256
Ed. Code 17260-17268
Ed. Code 17280-17317
Ed. Code 17283.5

Ed. Code 17365-17374
Ed. Code 17405

Ed. Code 35275

Gov. Code 4454.5

Gov. Code 53090-53097.5
Gov. Code 65352.2

Gov. Code 65995.6

H&S Code 53570-53574

Federal
28 CFR 35.101-35.190

42 USC 12101-12213

Management Resources

California Department of Education

Publication

California Department of Education

Publication

California Department of Education

Publication
CSBA Publication

Description
Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

California Building Standards Code

Minimum standards for school facilities

Procedure for site acquisition

Standards, planning, and approval of school facilities
Long-range comprehensive master plan

California Department of Education services
Approval of applications for projects

Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act

Powers concerning buildings and building sites
Plans and specifications for school facilities

Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction

School building does not include residential housing

Field Act; fitness for occupancys; liability of board members
Relocatable structures; lease requirements

New school planning; cooperation with recreation and park
authorities

Approval of plans and specifications; exemption of residential
housing

Regulation of local agencies by counties and cities

Communicating and coordinating of school sites
School facilities needs analysis
Teacher Housing Act of 2016

Description
Americans with Disabilities Act

Americans with Disabilities Act

Description
Educational Specifications: Linking Design of School Facilities
to Educational Program, 1997

Guide for the Development of a Long-Range Facilities Plan,
1986

Schools of the Future Report, September 2011

Maximizing Opportunities for Physical Activity Through Joint



Office of Public School Construction
Publication
Office of Public School Construction
Publication

State Allocation Board Publication

Website

Website
Website

Cross References

Code
0000

0200
0400
0410
0415
0460
0460
1220
1220
1330.1
1340
1340
3280
3280
33111
33111
3311.3
3470
3510
3511
3511
3511.1
35111

3514

School Facility Program Handbook, January 2019

AnA Brief Overview of the State School Facility Programs; rev-
October 2011Program, May 2016

Public School Construction Cost Reduction Guidelines, 2000

Department of General Services, Office of Public School
Construction

California Department of Education

CSBA

Description
Vision

Goals For The School District

Comprehensive Plans

Nondiscrimination In District Programs And Activities
Equity

Local Control And Accountability Plan

Local Control And Accountability Plan

Citizen Advisory Committees

Citizen Advisory Committees

Joint Use Agreements

Access To District Records

Access To District Records

Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures ‘
Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures
Design-Build Contracts

Debt Issuance And Management

Green School Operations

Energy And Water Management

Energy And Water Management

Integrated Waste Management

Integrated Waste Management

Frnvironmental Safetv




3517
3517-E(1)
3550
3550
5030
5141.7
5142
5142
5142.2
5142.2
5145.3
5145.3
5148
5148
5148.3
5148.3
6117
6141
6141
61427
61427
6145.2
6145.2
6163.1
6178
6178
7000
7111
7131
7140

7140
7150
7150
7160

Facilities Inspéction

Facilities Inspection

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program
Food Service/Child Nutrition Program
Student Wellness

Sun Safety

Safety

Safety

Safe Routes To School Program

Safe Routes To School Program
Nondiscrimination/Harassment
Nondiscrimination/Harassment

Child Care And Development

Child Care And Development
Preschool/Early Childhood Education
Preschool/Early Childhood Education
Year-Round Schedules

Curriculum Development And Evaluation
Curriculum Development And Evaluation
Physical Education And Activity
Physical Education And Activity
Athletic Competition

Athletic Competition

Library Media Centers

Career Technical Education

Career Technical Education

Concepts And Roles

Evaluating Existing Buildings

Relations With Local Agencies
Architectural And Engineering Services
Architectural And Engineering Services
Site Selection And Development

Site Selection And Development

Charter School Facilities




7210
7212
7213
7214
7214
9000

Facilities Financing

Mello-Roos Districts

School Facilities Improvement Districts
General Obligation Bonds

General Obligation Bonds

Role Of The Board




' CSBA Sample District Policy Manual
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Policy 7450: Site Selection And Development . . L E Status.ADOPTED .

Orlginal Adopted Date 02/01/1999 | Last Revised Date: 9309/01/29922022 [ Last Reviewed Date:
9309/ 01/29922022

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 17070.10-17077.10 setsets forth eligibility requirements for the receipt
of state facilities funds under the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities PregramAct of 1998 (Proposition

1A). As a condition for receipt of the funds, Education Code 17070.50 requires districts to obtain
written approval from the California Department of Education {CDE) and certify to the State Allocation
Board that the district's site selection and building plans comply with the regulations developed by the
departmentCDE, pursuant to Education Code 17251(b} and {c). In addition, Education Code 17070.50 -
requires the district to certify that the services of an architect, a structural engineer, or other design
professional has been selected using a competitive process consistent with Government Code 4526. See
BP/AR 7140 - Architectural and Engineering Services.

The Governing Board believes that a school site should serve the district's educational needs in
accordance with the district's master plan, as well as show potential for contributing to other community
needs.

The Board recognizes the importance of community input in the site selection process. To this end, the
Board will solicit community input whenever a school site is to be selected and shall provide public notice
and hold public hearings in accordance with law.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a site selection process which complies with law and
ensures that the best possible sites are acquired and developed in a cost-effective manner.,

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 17211, districts are required to ensure that property acquired
for a new school or an addition to an existing school site meets standards for school site selection as
specified in 5 CCR 14010-14012. :

Before acquiring property for a new school or an addition to an existing school site, the Board, at a public
hearing, shall either evaluate the property at a public hearing using state site selection standards:
{Education Code 17211 specified in 5 CCR 14010 or, if a district advisory committee was appointed to
evaluate the property, receive the committee’s report of findings based on those standards. (Education
Code 17211,17251)

Environmental Impact Investigation for the Site Selection Process

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Public Resources Code 21082, districts are mandated to adopt procedures for
the evaluation of all projects (beyond just site selection) and the preparation of environmental impact
reports and negative declarations required under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). In
order to satisfy this mandate, the district may either (1) adopt the actual CEQA guidelines, as applicabie,
as its own procedures, (2) adopt the county or city guidelines, {3) or develop its own procedure, In most
cases, the district's environmental investigation will conclude with a simultaneous public review of both
the environmental documentation and, if applicable, the Department of Toxic Substance Control {DTSC)
documents.




to post on its web site those environmental review documents, and public notice of the preparation and
availability of such documents. The district must email specified notices when written requests for
notices have been filed. See Exhibit 1113-District and School Web Sites and the accompanying
administrative regulation.

The following paragraph provides for the use of CEQA guidelines for the evaluation of all projects,
including site selection. Districts that have adapted the city/county gwdelmes or thelr own procedure
should modify the paragraph accordingly.

The Superintendent or designee shall determine whether any proposed development project is subject to
the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and shall ensure compliance with
this Act whenever so required: , including any web site posting requirements. When evaluating district
projects, the CEQA guidelines shall be used.

Environmental review documents, including a draft environmental impact report, environmental impact
report, negative declaration or mitigated negative declaration, and public notice of the preparation and
availability of such documents, shall be posted on the district’s web site. (Public Resources Code 21082.1,
21092, 21092.2)

Agricultural Land

CSBA NOTE: In 82 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 130 {1999), the Attorney General opined that a district may
construct a school on land designated by a county ordinance for "agricultural, open space or rural land
use." However, the Board must, by a two-thirds vote pursuant to Government Code 53094, render the
ordinance inapplicable to the proposed use of the property. See 9323.2 - Actions by the Board. The
exemption can be blocked only by a court determination that the action was "arbitrary and capricious."

If the proposed site is in an area designated in a city, county, or city and county general plan for
agricultural use and zoned for agricultural production, the Board shall determine all of the following:
(Education Code 17215.5)

1. That the district has notified and consulted with the city, county, or city and county within which
the prospective site is to be located

2. That the Board has evaluated the final site selection based on all factors affecting the public
interest and not limited to selection on the basis of the cost of the land

3. That the district shall attempt to minimize any public health and safety issues resulting frdm the
neighboring agricultural uses that may affect students and employees at the site

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
rmatter of the policy.

State Description
14 CCR 15000-15285 tmplementation of California Environmental Quality Act of
1970

5 CCR 14001-14036 Minimum standardsCalifornia Department of Education:




CCP: 1263.710-1263.770

Ed. Code 17006
Ed. Code 17024

Ed. Code 17070.10-17077.10
Ed. Code 17210-17224

Ed. Code 17240-17245

Ed. Code 17250.10-17250.55
Ed. Code 17251-17256

Ed. Code 17260-17268

Ed. Code 17280-17317

Ed. Code 17565-17592.5

Ed. Code 35271

Ed. Code 35275

Gov. Code 53094

Gov. Code 65402

Gov. Code 65995-65997
Gov. Code 66455.9

H&S Code 44360
Pub. Res. Code 21000-21177

Management Resources
Attorney General Opinion

Website

Website
Website

Website

Website

Cross References

Code
1113

Remediation of hazardous substances on property to be
acquired by school district

Definition of self-certifying district

Prior written approval of CDE for selection of school site or
construction of building

leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998
School Sites; Generalgeneral provisions {sehool sites)
New Schools Relief Act

Design-build contracts

CDE Pewerspowers concerning buildings and building sites

Plans and spetifications for school facilities

Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction
Board duties re-; management and control of school property
Power to acquire and construct on adjacent property

New school planning; cooperation with recreation and park
authorities

Authority to render zoning ordinances inapplicable
Acquisition or disposition of property
Developer fees

Written notices of proposed public school site within
development; investigation and report; conditions for
acquisition

Risk assessment
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970

Description
82 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 130 (1999}

Department of General Services, Office of Public School
Construction

California Department of Education, School Facilities

California Department of Education, School Site Selection
and Approval Guide

Department of Toxic Substances Control

Governor's Office of Planning and Research

Description
District and School Web Sites (BP/AR/E(1)




1220
1330.1

3311.2

3510

3514

3514

51422

51422

7000

7110

7131

7140

7140

7210

2000

9320

9323.2
9323.2-E PDF(1)
9323.2-E PDF{(2)

Citizen Advisory Committees

Joint Use Agreements
Lease-Leaseback Contracts

Green School Operations
Environmental Safety

Environmental Safety

Safe Routes To Schoo! Program

Safe Routes To School Program
Concepts And Roles

Facilities Master Plan

Relations With Local Agencies
Architectural And Engineering Services
Architectural And Engineering Services
Facilities Financing

Role Of The Board

Meetings And Notices

Actions By The Board

Actions By The Board

Actions By The Board




CSBA Sample District Policy Manua
CSBA Sample Manual Site

Regulatlon 7150' SlteSe!ectlon And Development ' S o StatusADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 11/01/ 2000 ] Last Revised Date 9309/01/—29962022 I Last Reviewed Date:
9309/01/290é2022 . . _

As part of the district's site selection process, the Superintendent or designee shall:

1. Meet with appropriate local government recreation and park authorities to review all possible
methods of coordinating the planning, design, and construction of new school facilities and school
sites or major additions to existing school facilities and recreation and park facilities in the
community. (Education Code 35275)

2. Notify the appropriate local planning agency in writing and request its report and
recommendations regarding the proposed site or proposed addition's conformity with the
adopted general plan. (Government Code 65402; Public Resources Code 21151.2)

3. Have the site investigated by competent personnel with regard to population trends,
transportation, water supply, waste disposal facilities, utilities, traffic hazards, surface drainage
conditions, and other factors affecting initial and operating costs. This investigation shall include
geological and soil engineering studies to preclude locating the school on terrain that has the
potential for earthquake or other geologic hazard damage as specified in Government Code
65302. (Education Code 17212-17212.5)

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 17212.2; as added by AB 2485 {Ch: 505; Statutes of 2004). authorizes the
district to request information from the following entities in order to evaluate the safety of a proposed
site. '

4. As neeessary,Make a written request for information necessary or useful to assess and determine
the safety of a proposed school site, or an addition to an existing school site, from a person,
corporation, public utility, locally publicly owned utility, or governmental agency regarding
pipelines, electric transmission and distribution lines, railroads, and storage tanks in accordance
with law. (Education Code 17212.2, 17251)

5. Ensure that the site meets state standards for school site selection as specified in 5 CCR 14010-
14012.

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Public Resources Code 21092, 21092.2, 21092.3, and 21152, as amended by
AB 819 (Ch. 97, Statutes of 2021), districts are required to (1) post specified notices to the district’'s web
site, (2} submit a notice of determination or notice of exemption with the county clerk electronicaily, if
that option is offered by the county clerk, and (3) file an environmental notice with the Office of Planning
and Research using their online process.

6. Ensure compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as required by laws,
including posting required notices to the district web site. {Public Resources Code 21000-21177)

CSBA NOTE: AB 1358 {Ch: 229, Statutes of 2005) amended Education Code 17215 to reguire
notification to the Galifornia Department of Education (CDE) if the district is leasinz a site near an airport:

7. #Notify the California Department of Education in writing before acauiring title or leasing the site
if the proposed site is within two miles of the air line of an airport runway or proposed runway;

before acquiring title to or leasing the site; notify the California Department of Education in




13 _

%%Mm@e@%%%%&a%ﬁem%@mmm
freeway or other busy traffic corrider; unless the district performs an air quality analysis as specified in
faw

8. HConduct an air quality analysis pursuant to Health and Safety Code 44360 and Education Code
17213 if the proposed site is within 500 feet of the edge of the closest traffic lane of a freeway or
other busy traffic corridor; eonduct an air quality analysis pursuant to Health and Safety Code
44360 and Education Code 17213 and determine that the air quality at the proposed site is such
that neither short-term nor long-term exposure poses significant health risks to students.
(Education Code 17213)

1 CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 17243:1; bethBoth a Phase | environmental assessment and a
preliminary endangerment assessment, if necessary, must be conducted pursuant to Education Code
17213.1 to determine whether a release of hazardous materials has occurred, as provided in #emltem
#1 below. The district must submit these documents to the CDE and the Department of Toxic *
Substance Control (DTSC) for review. If hazardous substances are disclosed, Education Code 17213.1
authorizes DTSC to order the district to complete certain "response actions” prior to securing state
funding.

In the selection and development of projects funded pursuant to the School Facilities Program of 1998
(Proposition 1A) as contained in Education Code 17070.10-17077.10, the Superintendent or designee
shall:

1. Determine whether the proposed site is free of toxic contamination by ensuring that a Phase |
environmental assessment and/or preliminary endangerment assessment is conducted as required
by law (Education Code 17213.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the preliminary endangerment assessment is
made available for public review and comment in accordance with Education Code 17213.1.

2. Annually submit aSubmit an annual summary report of expenditures to the State Allocation Board
in accordance with law (Education Code 17076.10)

3. Include in the plans a hard-wired connection to a public switched telephone network or utilization
of wireless technology (Education Code 17077.10)

CSBA NOTE: The Office of Public School Construction recommends that districts consult with legal
counsel to ensure compliance with the disabled veteran provisions of itemltem #4 below.

4. Establish a participation goal of at least three percent, per year, of the overall dollar amount
expended each year by the district for disabled veteran business enterprises (Education Code
17076.11)

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California Schoel Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

" Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description _
14 CCR 15000-15285 Implementation of California Environmental Quality Act of

A~



CCP- 1263.710-1263.770

Ed. Code 17006
Ed. Code 17024

Ed. Code 17070.10-17077.10
Ed. Code 17210-17224

Ed. Code 17240-17245

Ed. Code 17250.10-17250.55
Ed. Code 17251-17256

Ed. Code 17260-17268

Ed. Code 17280-17317

Ed. Code 17565-17592.5

Ed. Code 35271

Ed. Code 35275

Gov. Code 53094

Gov. Code 65402

Gov. Code 65995-65997
Gov. Code 66455.9

H&S Code 44360
Pub. Res. Code 21000-21177

Management Resources
Attorney General Opinion

Website

Website

Website

Website

Cross References

Code
1113

1220

Remediation of hazardous substances on property to be

.acquired by school district

Definition of self-certifying district

Prior written approval of CDE for selection of school site or
construction of building

Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998
GeneralSchool Sites: general moviéions {schoel! sites)
New Schools Relief Act

Design-build contracts

PowersCDE powers concerning buildings and building sites

Plans and specifications for school facilities

Field Act; approval of plans and supervision of construction
Board duties re~; management and control of school property
Power to acquire and construct on adjacent property

New school planning; cooperation with recreation and park
authorities

Authority to render zoning ordinances inapplicable
Acquisition or disposition of property
Developer fees

Written notices of proposed public school site within
development; investigation and report; conditions for
acquisition

Risk assessment
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970

Description
82 Ops.Cal. Atty.Gen. 130 (1999)

Department of General Services, Office of Public School
Construction

California Department of Education, School Facilities

Department of Toxic Substances Control
(https://dtsc.ca.gov/)

Governor’s Office of Planning and Research
{https://opr.ca.gov/cega/)

Description
District and School Web Sites (BP/AR/E(1))

Citizen Advisory Committees



1330.1 Joint Use Agreements

3311.2 Lease-Leaseback Contracts

3510 . Green School Operations

3514 Environmental Safety

3514 ' Environmental Safety

51422 Safe Routes To School Program
51422 Safe Routes To School Program

7000 Concepts And Roles

7110 Facilities Master Plan

7131 Relations With Local Agencies

7140 Architectural And Engineering Services
7140 Architectural And Engiheering Services
7210 Facilities Financing

9000 Role Of The Board

2320 Meetings And Notices

9323.2 Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(1) Actions By The Board

9323.2-E PDF(2) Actions By The Board




CSBA Sample District Policy Manu:
CSBA Sample Manual Sit

Bylaw9100 Organization L ":  Status: ADOPTED

Original Adopted Date: 09/01/ 1992 | I.ast Revised Date. 9?09/01/29}52022 I Last Reviewed Da‘hE'
9209/01/29152022 _

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 35143, as amended by AB 486 (Ch. 666, Statutes of 2021),
the Governing Board is required to set and hold an annual organizational meeting, in the manner
described below, prior to the end of each calendar year. If the Board fails to select a day and time for the
meeting, the County Superintendent of Schools must designate and notify all Board members and
members-elect of the day and time of the meeting. A city board of education whose members are
elected in accordance with a city charter may, by a rule of its board, establish a different timeline for
setting the annual meeting and revise the following paragraph accordingly.

Each year, the Governing Board shall hold an annual organizational meeting. in any year in which a regula
election of district Board members is conducted, the organizational meeting shall be held within a 15-day
peried beginning from days following the date upon which a Board member elected at thatsecond Friday
in December after the regular election takes effice., During non-electionall other years, the meeting
shalimay be held within the same 15-day peried on the calendar: any date in December, but no later than
December 20, (Education Code 35143)

CSBA NOTE: Unless otherwise provided by rule of the Board, the following paragraph is required
pursuant to Education Code 35143;, as amended by AB 486.

Fhe day and time of the annual meeting shall be seleeted byDuring any vear in which a regular election is
conducted, the Board, at #sthe regular meeting held immediately prior to the firstsecond Friday in
December, shall select the day and time of the organizational meeting. For any other year, the day and
time of the 45-day periedorganizational meeting shall be selected at the last regular meeting held
immediately before the annual meeting. On behalf of the Board, the Superintendent shall notify the
County Superintendent of Schools of the day and time selected. Within 15 days prior to the date of the
annual meeting, the elerk of the Board; with the assistance of the Superintendent; shall notify in writing
all Board members and members-elect of the date and time selected for the meeting. (Education Code
35143)

CSBA NOTE: The foliowing items should be modified to reflect district practice. Education Code 35022
requires all boards with five or more members to elect a president. Education Code 35143 requires the
election of a clerk and a president for high school, union high school, and joint union high school
districts. City boards of education are required to elect only a president or a president and vice
president, and all other types of districts are required to elect a clerk. For more information about
election of officers, see the section "Election of Officers” below.

At this meeting the Board shall:
1. Elect a president and a clerk and/or vice president from its members
2. Appoint the Superintendent as secretary to the Board

3. Authorize signatures

I FCOTA MATE. b HA i b bl i Peeed v bm mmmr v bl e b e £



4. Approve a schedule of regular meetings for the year and a Board governance calendar stating the
time when the Board will address important governance matters

5. Designate Board representatives to serve on committees or commissions of the district, other
public agencies, or organizations with which the district partners or collaborates

CSBA NOTE: Item #6 below is recommended by CSBA through its governance trainings, including the
Masters in Governance program.

6. Review and/or consider resources that define and clarify the Board's governance and leadership
roles and responsibilities including, but not limited to, governance standards, meeting protocols,
Board rules and bylaws, and other Board development materials

Election of Officers

CSBA NOTE: Option 1 below is for districts that rotate offices so that each Board member has the
opportunity to become president, while Option 2 is for districts that each year elect their entire slate of
officers. The following options should be revised to reflect the sequence of offices used in the district.

OPTION 1: The Board shall each year elect one of its members to be (clerk}/{vice president). This
member shall be one who previously has not served in office, unless all the Board's members have
previously served in office. After serving one year as (clerk)/(vice president}, the elected member shall
serve one year as president of the Board.

CPTION 1 ENDS HERE
OPTION 2: The Board shall each year elect its entire slate of officers.

OPTION 2 ENDS HERE

CSBA NOTE: The following optional sentence may be used with Option 2.

No Board member shall serve more than consecutive year(s) in the same office.

CSBA NOTE: The following sentence may be used by all districts regardless of the option selected
above. The California Attorney General has disapproved secret ballot voting in open meetings, as well as
the casting of mail hallots (68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 65, 1985). As long as they do not use secret ballots,
boards may elect their officers in any way they choose.

The election of Board officers shall be conducted during an open session of the annual organizationa
meeting.

Policy Reference UPDATE Service
Copyright 2022 by California School Boards Association, West Sacramento, California 95691
All rights reserved.

Policy Reference Disclaimer:

These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for the
board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the subject
matter of the policy.

State Description
Ed. Code 35143 Annual organizational meetings; date and notice

md oo nrAAr | 2 T P - PR I SO



Gov. Code 54953 Meetings to be open énd public; attendance
Management Resources Description

Attorney General Opinion 59 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 619; 621-622 (1976)
Attorney General Opinion 68 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 65 (1985)

Cross References

Code Description

2000 Role Of The Board

9005 ' Governance Standards

9121 President

9123 Clerk

9140 Board Representatives

9223 Filling Vacancies

9224 Oath Or Affirmation

9230 | Orientation

9240 Board Training

9320 Meetings And Notices

9323 Meeting Conduct




S1'SZ8 68'6/8 66°968 8C'888 98'068
ze/te 12/0C 0Z/6T 61/8T 8T/L1
(syauows g Jano aduepuane Ajtep s3elane) eleq |eLIOISIH Z-d JEAA ALY
11vaAdn IDNVANILLY
816 816 Ev6 Z€6 (0173) je1o],
44444 12/02 0Z/6T 61/81 8T/LT RIS
(1390130 jo Aepsaupapn 1s414) JUaW(joauy $a3g)
0 192 19¢ 19¢ S22
068 68 68 PsIg
£ {ejol
8- 6L€ 58¢ L8E 1S9M
T+ TS 604 01s Y3ION
-/+1ualn)
019T/6 €¢//90 | €2//s0 | €2//v0 | €T/ /€0 | €¢//T0 | €¢/ /10 | TT/ [TV | 2T/ST/AT | TT/ET/OT | 2T/9t/60
@Juaiayiq josy Jo sy Jo sy josy josy Jo sy Jo sy Jo sy Jo sy jo sy |ooyas
NNQN\Oﬂ\.n.n JO Se luauljjoiul Juasin)

113151d |O0YdS Uoiun POOMUOII0)

31vadn LNJNTI0OYN3




	Button1: 
	Button2: 


